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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS Bf I E

2016 Changes
A %
B AT B
Profit (loss) for the year Attributable 72 R1EA A BIEFER
to Owners of the Company s F (E18) 260.2 (35) 843%
Total Assets BERE 11,946 10,736 1%
Equity Attributable to Owners of RREVER AN FEM R
the Company 7,103 6,357 12%
Pledged Bank Deposits, Structured Tfﬁ#ﬁfﬁfﬂ_m AR IR
bank deposits and Bank Balances {T{FsKRIT&E#HKEIRE
and Cash 1,485 737 101%
Charlges
@
Key Performance and Liquidity FEZEXRRAR HK$ HKS$ %
Indicators MR RIEE Er BT B2
Basic Earnings (loss) Per Share SREARZF(EE) 0.113 (0.015) 853%
Net Assets Per Share (Note 1) BREEREMET) 3.08 2.76 11.6%
P/E Ratio (Note 1) MAEEF1) 11.1x (55.8x) 120%
Return on Capital Employed (Note 2) BRZR[EIFR K (Hf:2) 3.7% (0.6%) 717%
Return on Total Assets (Note 3) BEERRE(MF3) 2.2% (0.3%) 833%
Gearing Ratio (Note 4) BELER(MF4) 45.5% 48.9% (7%)
Adjusted Gearing Ratio (Note 5) CRBIEELR(H:25) 25% 37% (32%)
Current Ratio (Note 6) mENL K (HFE6) 1.0x 1.3x (23%)
Interest Coverage (Note 7) RSB EMZT7) 2.7x 1.0x 170%

Notes:

1. Based on 2,304,849,611 shares issued and fully paid as at 31
December, 2017 (2016: 2,304,849,611 shares) and the market
closing price of HK$1.25 (2016: HK$0.85) per share.

2. Calculated as profit (loss) for the year attributable to owners
of the Company over equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

3. Calculated as profit (loss) for the year attributable to owners of
the Company over total assets.

4. Calculated as total borrowings over equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

5. Calculated as net borrowings over equity attributable to owners
of the Company.

6. Calculated as current assets over current liabilities.

7. Calculated as profit (loss) for the year before finance costs and

taxation over finance costs.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 1t%& 8

Board of Directors

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Silver
Grant International Industries Limited (the “Company”) as at
the date of this report are set out below:

Executive Directors

Gao Jian Min (Managing Director)

Liu Tianni (Deputy Managing Director)

Ma Yilin (appointed on 20 January 2017)
Gu Jianguo (resigned on 20 January 2017)

Non-executive Directors

Luo Zhenhong (Chairman) (appointed on 28 August 2017)

Wu Songyun (Chairman) (appointed on 20 January 2017 and
resigned on 28 August 2017)

Chen Xiaozhou (Chairman) (resigned on 20 January 2017)

Hui Xiao Bing (Vice Chairman)

Chen Qiming (Vice Chairman)

Independent non-executive Directors

Liang Qing
Zhang Lu
Hung Muk Ming

Audit Committee

Hung Muk Ming (Committee Chairman)
Liang Qing
Zhang Lu

Remuneration Committee

Zhang Lu (Committee Chairman)
Liang Qing

Nomination Committee

Luo Zhenhong (Committee Chairman)
(appointed on 28 August 2017)
Wu Songyun (Committee Chairman) (appointed on
20 January 2017 and resigned on 28 August 2017)
Chen Xiaozhou (Committee Chairman)
(resigned on 20 January 2017)
Zhang Lu
Hung Muk Ming

Annual Report 2017

Exg

RAREBHNEERBREEBR AR (AR
rEANER(EFDS(EFEg ) 250
T

HITES

SRER(EFHHIE)

BIRA7 (5 FBARAEE)
BIEM (R 2017F1 F20 A EZT)

EE%I(EC2017¢1 A 20 BE )

FUITEE

BIRR(L/E)(R2017FE8 A28 HEZT)

RIME(F/E)(R201741 A20 BEEE
W7 2017 8 A28 HEHT)

BREZE (/) (R 201791 A 20 BEHE)

BINE(GERE)

PREZRR (B /)

BYFITES

RE
SR
HARHA

EREE"

AR ZEEEE)

=
25

ORI
FMEES

K ZRE2LE)
RE

REEES

BIRR(ZESLRE)
(R201749F8 A28 HEZRT)
SNE(ZE2FE)(R2017F1 200 %
AW 2017 F 8 A 28 HEHT)
MEZR(ZESLE)
(A201741 A20 HEHT)

SR I

PN

T EER



X § ¢

CORPORATE INFORMATION 1t%& 8

Company Secretary
Chow Kwok Wai
Company Lawyer
Tung & Co. Solicitors
Legal Counselor
Tung Tat Chiu, Michael
Auditor

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Principal Bankers

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
China Citic Bank International Limited
Share Registrar and Transfer Office
Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East,

Hong Kong

(Tel: 29801888 Fax: 28610285)
Registered Office

Suite 4901, 49th Floor,

Office Tower, Convention Plaza,

1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
(Tel: 28770030 Fax: 28029506)
Company Website
http://www.silvergrant.com.hk

Stock Code

171
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS ES#KEHRE

Review of Results

The results of the Group have recorded a turnaround
from loss in last year to profit for the current year. The
profit attributable to owners of the Company for 2017 was
approximately HK$260.2 million (2016: loss of approximately
HK$35.1 million). Basic earnings per share was 11.29 HK
cents (2016: loss of 1.52 HK cents).

The increase in profit was mainly attributable to the significant
improvement in the operating results achieved by the
subsidiary, Tai Zhou United East Petrochemical Company
Limited (“TZ United East”) and the associate, Zhong Hai You
Qi (Tai Zhou) Petrochemical Company Limited (“Zhong Hai
You Qi”) during the current year.

In 2017, the global economy recovered moderately. The
global crude oil supply gradually tended to be balanced,
the international crude oil price increased prominently as
compared with the previous year. As a result, the overall
selling prices of petrochemical products in the Mainland China
recorded a moderate increase. In additions, as production
efficiency and effectiveness was enhanced under the joint
production arrangements, the operating results of TZ United
East and Zhong Hai You Qi recorded significant improvement
during the current year. The net loss of TZ United East
decreased significantly by approximately HK$330.7 million to
approximately HK$27.1 million (2016: HK$357.8 million) in the
current year. Share of results of Zhong Hai You Qi improved
significantly from profit of approximately HK$29.0 million
in the last year to profit of approximately HK$251.5 million
in the current year. Having taken into account the effect of
the one-off gain on early redemption of loan receivable with
embedded derivative of approximately HK$75.8 million in
the last year, profit contributions from the petrochemical
products business, still made significant contribution to the
improvement and increment in the net profit in the current
year.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS ES#KEHRE

Review of Results (Continued)

In additions, the Group’s associate, Cinda Jianrun Property
Company Limited (“Cinda Jianrun”) has completed the
disposal of a majority portion of its investments in the second
half year of 2017. As a result, Cinda Jianrun recorded an
improved result with net profit of approximately HK$198.8
million (2016: loss of approximately HK$53.5 million) and
contributed a growth of approximately HK$75.7 million to the
profit growth of the Group in the current year.

Outlook

The Board anticipates that global economy will continue to
be very challenging in 2018. The possibility of a slowdown in
China’s economy, a potential further US rate hikes coupled
with the protective policies adopted by US government to
support domestic economy and geopolitical uncertainties are
three major threats in 2018. Macro-economic outlook will
remain volatile in 2018.

While the Board believes that the China authorities have
appropriate tools to support growth and the financial system
in order to maintain the target economic growth rate. In a
tough operating environment in 2018, the Board will continue
to focus on the execution of its business plans and strategies
and will endeavor to lower the Group’s debt level.

Changes in Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss Items:

Sub-contracting Income/Cost of Sales and Services

In 2017, TZ United East and Zhong Hai You Qi have agreed
to increase their production effectiveness and efficiency under
the joint production arrangements. Under the joint production
arrangements, Zhong Hai You Qi provides key production
raw materials such as crude oil and fuel oil and authorizes
TZ United East to process the production by sub-contracting
and receive sub-contracting income by TZ United East. Cost
of sales and services also record a significant increment in
light of the new sub-contracting services.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS ES#KEHRE

Changes in Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss Items: (Continued)

Other Income, Gains and Losses

Increase was mainly due to increase in interest income
amounting to approximately HK$15.9 million as a result of
increase in average interest rate.

Change in fair value of loan receivable with embedded
derivative

Loan receivable with embedded derivative represents the
exchangeable bond issued by China Uranium Development
Company Limited (“CUDC”) to the Company on 1 June
2012 with a term of five years and coupon interest at 5%
per annum and is exchangeable into certain quantities of the
listed shares of CGN Mining Company Limited (Stock code:
1164) upon fulfillment of certain conditions (the “Bond”).
CUDC early redeemed all the principal amount outstanding
under the Bond on 6 May 2016 in cash, thus a fair value gain
was recognised by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2016.

Share of results of associates

Share of results of associates increased significantly. The
main reason was that the operating results of Zhong Hai You
Qi in current year improved significantly and thus contributed
profit of approximately HK$251.5 million to the Group. In
addition, Cinda Jianrun disposed of a majority portion of
its investments in the current year and recognised disposal
gain. Its result was improved significantly and contributed
approximately HK$59.6 million profit to the Group.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS ES#KEHRE

Changes in Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss Items: (Continued)

Non-controlling interests

The amount in the current year mainly represented the non-
controlling interests’ share of the profit of Tai Zhou Dong Thai
Petrochemical Company Limited (“TZ Dong Thai”) whereas
the amount in the previous year mainly represent the non-
controlling interests’ share of the loss of TZ United East.
TZ Dong Thai is the shareholder of Zhong Hai You Qi and
thus benefited from the significant improvement in operating
results of the same.

Changes in Iltems on Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position:

Investment properties

Increase in carrying value was mainly due to the translation
gain recognised amounting to approximately HK$172.9
million, which was credited directly to reserve and the
increase in the fair value amounting to approximately
HK$55.3 million in the current year.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Increase in carrying value was mainly due to the additions
of construction in progress amounting to approximately
HK$186.7 million during the current year.

Interests in Associates

The increase was mainly attributable to the shares of
results of associates amounting to approximately HK$311.1
million, capital injection to the associate, Zhong Hai You
Qi amounting to approximately HK$77.6 million and the
translation gain recognised amounting to approximately
HK$55.2 million, which was credited directly to reserve.

Held-for-trading Investments

Decrease was mainly due to the disposal of certain listed
shares during the year.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS ES#KEHRE

Changes in Items on Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position: (Continued)

Available-for-sale Investments

REVBRRERNNE 288 - (&)

AHHERE

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

Carrying balances under non-current IEnEEEB NREEAS
assets 300,655 288,903
Carrying balances under current assets MEVEER TREAR 606,242 —
Total B 906,897 288,903

Increase was mainly due to the new investment amounting
to RMB505.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$606.2
million) made in The National Trust Ltd. (“National Trust”)
during the year.

ENMTITERFANHFEREARE
505,000,000 (48 & # #7606,200,0007%& 7T )
REREIXBRAR(BERELD AT -

Loan Receivables FEWER
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE FET

Carrying balances under non-current IEnEEEB NREA S

assets 223,044 —
Carrying balances under current assets MEEER NREAR = 407,682
Total Fok 223,044 407,682

These were loans made to certain independent borrowers for
the purpose of utilising a portion of the Group’s idle funds
for better returns and to increase interest income in the
prevailing low deposit rates era. The decrease was mainly
due to repayment of certain loan receivables during the year.

Annual Report 2017

HERETETEIERAZER  BOE
BRAAKERNEAEES  UTEERNER
TR BB HA PR AR A [ R K B AN A B o
WO EBRNAFAREETERMEK -

T LR )



10

MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS ES#KEHRE

Changes in Items on Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position: (Continued)

Trade Receivables

Increase was mainly due to the sub-contracting income
amounted to approximately HK$62.6 million receivable from
Zhong Hai You Qi.

Deposits, Prepayments and Other Receivables

The decrease was mainly due to repayment of certain other
receivables during the year.

Amounts due from Associates

Decrease was mainly due to repayment of amount due from
Cinda Jianrun.

Bank deposits, Bank balances and Cash

REVBRRERNE 288 - (@)

FE U iR K

2 00 R AR A B R 2 T B

U A& 5849 62,600,000 B TTFTE ©

BE > ANRREMERR

B 3 B R A P e A W o L R MR PR

FE W st & 1 R FR

B E B R W RIS QR ERBEBMOER

2017 2016

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Pledged bank deposits EARITER 844 1,730
Structured bank deposits EEERTTER 1,182,473 —
Bank balances and cash RITER MRS 301,850 734,988
Total R 1,485,167 736,718

Increase in total bank deposits, bank balances and cash
was mainly attributable to the net cash generated from
operating activities including profit for the year amounting to
approximately HK$321.2 million. At the end of the reporting
period, a majority of the cash was placed with principal banks
with principle protection clauses for higher interest income.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS ES#KEHRE

Changes in Items on Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position: (Continued)

Borrowings

REVBRRERNNE 288 - (&)

B&

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFET

Carrying balances under non-current ERHEBEE TNEFERAS
liabilities 989,915 1,487,075
Carrying balances under current liabilities BN & &8 R A & 2,241,205 1,621,026
Total Gk 3,231,120 3,108,101

Borrowings in both years mainly represent the RMB
denominated working capital loan granted to the Group’s
subsidiaries in China. Total borrowings as at the year end
of 2017 increased slightly as compared with the ended of
2016 was mainly due to the effect of exchange translation.
In additions, the changes in the carrying values under non-
current liabilities and current liabilities was caused by the
reallocation and reclassification in accordance with the
maturity dates of individual bank loans.

Trade and bills payables

The decrease was mainly resulted from the disposal of Beijing
Yinda Property Management Limited (“Yinda”) during the
year which has carrying balances of trade and bills payables
amounting to approximately HK$65.1 million in aggregate as
at 31 December 2016.

Accrued Charges, Rental Deposits and Other Payables

Increase was mainly due to the fact that the Group collected
a proceed amounting to approximately HK$391.1 million
for and on behalf of a company controlled by a director of
the Company in the second half year of 2017. The proceed
has been repaid to that company in early 2018. Moreover,
the significant decrease in the carrying amount of receipts
in advance from customers as at the year end of 2017
amounting to approximately HK$92.7 million has partially
compensated the effect of the aforesaid reason.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS ES#KEHRE

Business Review
Property Investments, Management and Development
Property Leasing

Rental income of Beijing East Gate Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Beijing East Gate”) for the current year amounted to
approximately HK$100.4 million (2016: HK$120.3 million).
Rental income decreased by approximately 17% was mainly
due to the fact that the Group has carried out an extensive
review on rental operations to cope with the replacement
of business tax by value-added tax policy which was
effective from 1 May 2016. The occupation rates of the
commercial portion and the residential portion of East Gate
Plaza in the current year was approximately 97% (2016:
98%). The property leasing segment recorded a decrease
of approximately 32% to approximately HK$97.9 million
(2016: HK$143.4 million). Segment results recorded a larger
decrease was mainly due to the additional impact of fair value
gain on revaluation of investment properties decreased by
21% to approximately HK$55.3 million (2016: approximately
HK$70.0 million) which has further reduced the segment
results.

Property Management

On 30 June 2017, the Company completed the disposal of
its entire interest in Straight View and its subsidiary at a cash
consideration of approximately HK$31.7 million in aggregate.
Straight View was an investment vehicle of the Company to
hold the Group’s 90% interests in Yinda. Yinda is a company
established in the PRC whose principal business is the
provision of property management services in Beijing. Even
though the property management business of Yinda remained
stable in terms of number of projects and gross floor area
managed for the last five years, the results recorded by Yinda
in the property management segment in the corresponding
period could not keep up with the growing trend in its total
revenue. In anticipation of continuing growth in labour cost
in the PRC whilst it is doubtful as to whether Yinda could
secure new projects or could increase management fees to
keep up with the increasing labour cost, the Board expects
that the operating results of the property management
segment will continue to be volatile and is likely to incur loss
in the foreseeable future.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS ES#KEHRE

Business Review (Continued)

Property Investments, Management and Development
(Continued)

Property Management (Continued)

Having considered that the property management business
operated by Yinda is not able to contribute a stable profit
to the Group, is a labour intensive business and will not be
able to solicit any significant business opportunities in the
foreseeable future, the Board is of the view that the property
management business simply cannot meet the Board’s
expectation and thus decided to cease investing in such
business segment.

Property Development

Cinda Jianrun is a 30% owned associate of the Group.
In 2014, there was a downward adjustment trend in the
real estate market in China as both prices and floor area
of commodity houses sold declined over the previous
years. In the second half year of 2014, there were signs
of improvement in the real estate market after the local
governments (except Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and
Shenzhen) gradually loosened the restrictions on mortgage
lending and purchase. In addition, as the authority to take
austerity measures on the real estate market was delegated
from the central to the local governments and with the full
liberalization of financing to the real estate industry and
mortgage loans for home purchases, it will provide the
impetus for recovery of the real estate market.

In addition, due to the fact that Cinda Jianrun need more
time to realise its short-term and medium-term investments at
appropriate price levels, the Board decided not to close the
operations of Cinda Jianrun in 2014 and continue to retain
Cinda Jianrun as a vehicle company. When the operating
environment of the real estate sector have signs of further
improvement, the Group will re-consider to invest in and/or
develop medium to high grade real estate projects.

Annual Report 2017
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS ES#KEHRE

Business Review (Continued)

Property Investments, Management and Development
(Continued)

Property Development (Continued)

In the second half year of 2017, Cinda Jianrun completed
the disposal of a majority of its investments to realize a large
amount of cash and recognized a significant gain at the
same time. As a result, the results of Cinda Jianrun achieved
improvement and recorded a net profit of approximately
HK$198.8 million (2016: loss of approximately 53.5 million).

Financial Investments

The Group strategically invested in certain PRC enterprises.
These enterprises have good potential for separate listing.
As at 31 December 2017, the carrying value of these
strategic investments was approximately HK$906.9 million in
aggregate (2016: HK$288.9 million) with individual allocation
(unless otherwise explained, changes in the carrying balance
as at both year ends were due to changes in exchange rates)
detailed below:

EBOEE)

MERE - EERBR(E)

VE LI AC Y

2017 FTRH¥F - FERBHTHHEH K
DA EFREREES  UHBAEE
Mo FERHEEARGINZWHRE TR
FI 47 ¥ 198,800,000 7 7T (2016 : E 18 4
53,500,0008 L) °

TRRE

REBRBEEHZRERETHEMCE - %%
tEAEEBLEM2E N - R2017F12 A
31H ZEXBUREZEAERAEOA
906,900,000 7T (2016 £ : 288,900,000 8
) HEEMMBERIESEHA - mESF
EREEAESRZEB RS FEXRMB)F7
LU

2017 2016

HK$ million HK$ million

BEEET BEET

JC International ST HR B BR 124.6 124.6
National Trust B REFE 606.2 —
Beijing TeraSolar JKIG 69.7 64.7
CUP FP [ SR 54.0 50.3
Kema Yinxiang RIS % — 21.2
Hejing Zhongdao B 24.2 225
CITIC International Trading FIEBIFR R 50 22.6 —
Others Hh 5.6 5.6
906.9 288.9

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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Business Review (Continued)

Financial Investments (Continued)

JC International

The Group invested RMB100.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$124.6 million) for an indirect equity interest
of 10% in Jiangxi Copper International Trading Co., Ltd. (“*JC
International”). JC International is 60% owned subsidiary of
Jiangxi Copper Company Limited and is principally engaged
in the trading of copper on both the spot and futures market.

National Trust

On 24 November 2017, Beijing East Gate which is a
subsidiary of the Group entered into a trust agreement with
National Trust for a term of one year. Pursuant to the trust
agreement, Beijing East Gate agreed to invest a principal
amount not exceeding RMB500.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$600.2 million) in aggregate in the trust
scheme, and National Trust agreed to apply, through
investment vehicles, the principal amount for investment in
merger, acquisition and reorganisation funds on behalf of
and for the benefit of Beijing East Gate during the term of the
trust scheme. The expected annual rate of return of the trust
scheme is 6% but is not a guaranteed return. National Trust
was established in 1987 in the PRC which is a non-banking
financial institution regulated by the China Banking Regulatory
Commission and is specializing in trust business and financial
advisory services. Pursuant to the trust agreement and for the
service provided, National Trust will charge a service fee of
RMB1.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$1.2 million)
per year from the effective date. Beijing East Gate has the
right to renew for another year or terminate the trust scheme
at each anniversary date from the effect date by mean of
giving a 30-days prior written notice.

Annual Report 2017

EBOEE)

TRMRE(E)

T 575 BF

REBILE AR 100,000,000 70 (FHE R4
124,600,000 7T) - MEFEIREERES
BRAAN (DI 1) 10% B A#EzZ - )T
BB 2 T 78 8 3 AR 10 B BR A A5 AR 60% 2 Fit
BAR EX2EBERRERIBEMISH
S -

EREET

NRZZE—+E+—A-+MHE - NEEHS
AR RRBRERRERII L —FHRZE
iz o REBEZERHZE - ERREBRAER
BEXReefEA AT EAARES500,000,000
70 (M8 & 7 49600,200,0007% Jt ) A {5 7L &f
2 WHBEREANGEEERARILERR
RAENZDALSCHTERTVET AR
EREH WEREAES - 8l
TEHFRHRELCR ML IERFLR - BR
SRR —NMNEFEFRBEKYL - B—HXF
BT EEEREZEgRE ZIFRITEM
HHE - P EEER IR KRR
% - BREFHBREETHEHEIREHR R
% BEMABRFRERBEEFARE
1,000,000 7t (A8 & A %7 1,200,000%7T) © 4t
RRRANETERBHEZE—@RAFA
RSO RUNEZEEAHAREESE —FREULET

B

T EER

15



16

MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS ES#KEHRE

Business Review (Continued)

Financial Investments (Continued)

Beijing TeraSolar

Beijing TeraSolar Photothermal Technologies Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing TeraSolar”) is a high-tech enterprise providing
complete solution for solar thermal electric system
specialising in research and development, manufacture
and marketing services of solar mirrors, concentrating
collectors, thermal storage systems, solar tracking devices
and supporting structures. It is further supported by a strong
technical team of experienced experts, with doctor and
master degrees who have been focusing on the research
and development of concentrating solar thermal (“CST”)
technologies and products for over 6 years. In the PRC,
it has been granted with 57 patents in total, including 12
invention patents and 45 utility model patents. It also has 35
patents pending for application in total, including 32 invention
patents and 3 utility model patents. On the other hand, the
Beijing TeraSolar devotes itself to comprehensive utilisation
and development of renewable energy. With its advanced
technologies, rich experience, foreseeing idea and continuous
technical innovation, Beijing TeraSolar is well positioned to
play an important role in new product’s development, quality
assurance and service system, and promote the CST industry
in the PRC and the world.

In May 2015, the Group entered into an agreement to invest
RMB116.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$139.3
million) in cash to Beijing TeraSolar for an equity interest of
8.29%. During the year of 2015, the Group paid RMB58.0
million (equivalent to approximately HK$69.6 million) as partial
payment in accordance with the terms of the agreement, the
remaining balance will be paid in accordance with the actual
funding need of Beijing TeraSolar.

Beijing TeraSolar has utilised its patent technologies in
core technology in solar thermal power generation system
to construct a photothermal power station with a 15MW
capacity and is progressing at a steady pace as scheduled.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS ES#KEHRE

Business Review (Continued)

Financial Investments (Continued)

cup

CUP is the largest bank card association and credit card
issuers in the Mainland China having a very bright business
prospect. At 31 December 2017, the Group beneficially owns
7.5 million shares in CUP.

Kema Yinxiang

Kema Yinxiang Industries Limited (“Kema Yinxiang”),
a former 50% owned joint venture of the Group, is a
construction material supplier specialized in providing all-
round bathroom solutions to customers. Its business is
the design, manufacture and wholesaling of Italian Style
bathroom products in its own brand name of “FE %R . The
core product is bathroom suite known as the “CubiX” series.
CubiX series are pre-made modules of bathroom structures
capable of being combined into different stylish and tailored
bathrooms. The Group disposed the entire interest to the
PRC shareholder at the carrying value of RMB19.0 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$21.9 million) during the year.

Hejing Zhongdao

In the second half year of 2016, the Company’s wholly
subsidiary established a partnership venture with independent
third parties by investing approximately RMB20.2 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$24.2 million) to Beijing
Hejing Zhongdao Technology Investment Partnership (“Hejing
Zhongdao”) for a partnership interest of approximately
18.0%. The partnership purpose of Hejing Zhongdao is to
invest unlisted entities engaged in high and new technology
sectors such as information technology, new energy and new
materials industries.

Annual Report 2017

EBOEE)

TRMRE(E)

A [ 2R B

FERE R B R R KR RTT RIS 484
RERF#ETE EBFEFBNESH
S R2017F12A31H  AREEZHMHA
7,500,000 A% A B SR B i 25 o

MEHR

MEHNKREBEEERAR(NENR]) g1 &
BEREAEBBRS0%NMNEEAR] B—RE
MEER  EFRNAEFPRH2EMNEEM
BATR - EEBRUNBREEEIFEHR)
W ERE - EE R E AR R K & LR
Em e ROERB(ERGERDRT - (EHR
MER RV ABR HEREM - AJUESE
REBTRRAKBEAEGTENGER - F
A A BR EE A R #5 19,000,000 7T (HHE R 49
21,900,000/ ) B2 iEm E R T 5 %

R2016F N F KRB 22 AN E A A
BREBULETHETARER  BEAR
& #920,200,000 7t (48 & 7 49 24,200,000 4
TRFELRAHFPEBERREERESKDE
([BHPE]H18% A KKER - BT EN
BIKE B BE S IR E S s B - #
BEREFM B STERR EMHEEELRE
>§ °

TR FER

17



18

MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS ES#KEHRE

Business Review (Continued)

Financial Investments (Continued)

CITIC International Trading

In the second half year of 2017, the Group invested RMB20.0
million (equivalent to approximately HK$22.6 million) for
an 20% initial equity interest in CITIC International Trading
Center Co., Limited (“CITIC International Trading”). Pursuant
to mutual agreement, certain equity interest will be transferred
to the key management and critical persons of core business
of CITIC International Trading in 2018. Citic International
Trading was a new company established in Qianhai Shenzhen
in China by CITIC Limited. It has a dual development plan.
One is to carry on an exchange platform for resources after
national policies open up for such business. For the time
being, it is focusing on the development of data management,
application and exchange including electronic identity
certification (elD) services.

Petrochemical Products

In light of the fact that there are complementary advantages
in the raw materials structure, the manufacturing processes
and the common engineering systems employed in
production by TZ United East and Zhong Hai You Qi. TZ
United East and Zhong Hai You Qi has reached a joint
production arrangement in 2017 for the purpose of enhancing
production effectiveness and efficiency of each other. Under
the joint production arrangement, Zhong Hai You Qi will
provide the critical raw material including crude oil and fuel
oil and appoint TZ United East to carry out the production
processes as a subcontractor. Consequently, Zhong
Hai You Qi will oversee sales on a group basis. Through
joint production arrangement, the purpose of centralizing
the processing of resources, reducing logistic costs,
consolidating complimentary advantages and enhancing the
economics of scale and synergy effect is achieved.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS ES#KEHRE

Business Review (Continued)

Petrochemical Products (Continued)

TZ United East

TZ United East is a 66.77% owned subsidiary of the Group.
TZ United East’s principal business is the manufacturing
and trading of organic solvent methyl ethyl ketone. After
the completion of the Binjiang Project, the current annual
production capacity of TZ United East has been increased
from 110,000 tons to 1,600,000 tons.

The operating results of TZ United East are summarized
below:

EBOEE)

AL TERE)

EMEBIT

FMREE T AR KB R I 66.77% 0 K 8
NEl FMRBE T EF2EBREE NIH
EERBEF L BIIIEE K& F
JNERE#E T2 FERD 110,000 i £ =

1,600,000 W8 ©

FMREBE THRERERBEM D ¢

Changes

2016 L)

Tons %

w BEAH

Raw material processed under joint  Bt&4AESENIE N/A
production 1,160,900 — i A
Raw materials sold =M REE 34,900 13,100 166%
Changes

HKS$ million HK$ million %

BEETT A &5 A7t

Revenue — raw materials processed YA — R EINT 715.2 — N/A 3 FB
Revenue — raw materials sold WA — EMRHE 90.1 48.8 85%
Net loss FEE (27.1) (357.8) (92%)
Annual Report 2017 T FFR
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Business Review (Continued)
Petrochemical Products (Continued)
TZ United East (Continued)

Revenue from raw materials sold for both years represented
revenue received from the direct selling of the raw materials
acquired through previously contracted supply contracts.
As the revenue from sale of raw materials is limited which
is not capable of covering all the operating expenses during
the period. Therefore, TZ United East incurred a net loss for
both periods. However, net loss for the current year reduced
significantly as a result of the joint production arrangement
which benefited TZ United East by way of recovering certain
direct production cost like direct labour cost, consumables,
interest expenses and depreciation, etc.

The OPEC had reached an agreement to reduce crude oll
production in December 2016. Moreover, Russia also agreed
to freeze her production. Together with arbitration activities
of investors, international crude oil prices rose continuously
from US$45-55 per barrel in the first quarter of 2017 to over
US$60 per barrel for the time being. The Board believes that
international crude oil prices has basically stabilized at the
current prices and the possibility for a further significant drop
is relatively low. The production cycle of TZ United East is
approximately one month, a long-term stable or a continuous
rising international crude oil prices is most beneficial to the
operation of TZ United East.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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Business Review (Continued)

Petrochemical Products (Continued)

Zhong Hai You Qi

Zhong Hai You Qi is a 23.03% owned associate of the Group.
Its principal business is the manufacturing and trading of fuel
oil, basic lubricant oil and heavy duty bitumen. Following the
completion of the Integration Project in September 2016,
Zhong Hai You Qi is capable to produce a full range of
petrochemical products including liquid gas, lubricant oil, fuel
oil (diesel) and solvent oil, covering over 90% of the products
output. The current annual production capacity of Zhong Hai
You Qi is 4.5 million tons.

The operating results of Zhong Hai You Qi are summarized

EBOEE)

AL TERE)

HEH SR

HROER R AN B E &SRR 23.03% Y B &
NAle EXBEBREEREEMREH - B
BRERE  BEXESEER - £ B(HE
HERTEN2016F9ATTHE  AEHT
EHBEERERIR - BBH - BB R
) RSB R E 2 RS M AR TE R

EmEZRE0% -
4,500,000 M

TERRNELEREREWT

EmFERCKEME

below:

Changes
2016 L)
Tons %
c EAH
N/A
Annual production capacity FER 4,500,000 4,500,000 N3 A
Crude oil processed [RminT 4,032,600 1,332,100 203%
Changes
HK$ million HK$ million %
BEETT H&E5T Bt
Revenue A 19,003.6 2,978.1 538%
Net profit 5 i ) 762.0 87.7 769%

Profit contribution before non- FEIEHIE AT
controlling interests g lB=N S 251.5 29.0 767%
Annual Report 2017 T FFR
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Business Review (Continued)

Petrochemical Products (Continued)

Zhong Hai You Qi (Continued)

In 2017, the global economy recovered moderately. The
global crude oil supply gradually tends to be balanced,
the international crude oil price increased prominently as
compared with the corresponding period of last year. As a
result, the overall selling prices of petrochemical products in
Mainland China recorded a moderate increase. In addition,
as production efficiency and effectiveness was enhanced
under the joint production arrangements, the operating
results of Zhong Hai You Qi during the current period have
recorded significant improvement and contributed profit of
approximately HK$251.5 million (2016: HK$29.0 million) to
the Group.

Growth Strategies

To expand its existing investments in power and
petrochemical products production remain the growth
strategy of the Group. The Group is also actively searching
and identifying investment and/or merger and acquisition
opportunities which is capable of generating enormous profit
and ample cash flows to the Group. The Board remains
to focus on executing its business plan and strategy in
2018. The Board believes that these growth strategies will
eventually result in extending the sources of recurring income
and expanding the magnitude of recurring income.

Petrochemical Products Aspect

The joint production arrangements carried out by TZ United
East and Zhong Hai You Qi have indicated that profitability
of both companies were enhanced and translated into much
improved operating results as a whole. The Board anticipates
that full year results of the petrochemical businesses will
also mark significant improvement under the joint production
arrangements.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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Growth Strategies (Continued)
Petrochemical Products Aspect (Continued)

Nevertheless, the Board is currently investigating the
feasibility of a collective capital restructure of the Group’s
petrochemical investments located in Tai Zhou for the
purpose of achieving a more efficient and effective operation
model in the long run.

Power Aspect

The Group has made further investment in renewable energy
sector. On 8 October 2015, the Group’s wholly owned
subsidiary Taizhou Yinjian Energy Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Taizhou Yinjian”) entered into a joint venture agreement with
six other parties (including two connected parties). Pursuant
to the joint venture agreement, the joint venture shareholders
agreed to co-invest in construction and operation of the
concentrated solar power stations in Zhangbei, Hebei in
two phases with a total installed capacity of 100MW by
establishing Zhongxin Zhangbei Solar Energy Thermal Power
Generation Co., Ltd (“Solar Energy Thermal Power”). Due to
the advantageous geological location, the Zhangbei county
area is selected by the PRC Government as one of the key
districts for developing solar power generation.

The total investment of the concentrated solar power
stations is expected to be RMB3,400.0 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$4,082.0 million), of which RMB1,800.0
million (equivalent to approximately HK$2,161.0 million) shall
be applied to its first phase of the construction of a 50MW
demonstration power station with a construction period of 24
months. Whereas the second phase of the construction of
a 50MW commercial power station shall proceed only after
the demonstration power station is to be proven to meet the
expected technical indicator. The construction period of the
second phase is 18 months. The registered capital of Solar
Energy Thermal Power is RMB1,000.0 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,200.5 million). Taizhou Yinjian shall
contribute RMB150.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$180.1 million) for an equity interest of 15% in Solar
Energy Thermal Power.
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Growth Strategies (Continued)
Power Aspect (Continued)

The proposed establishment of Solar Energy Thermal Power
and the investment in the construction of the concentrated
solar power stations was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 19 February 2016. On 13 September 2016,
the National Energy Administration announced China’s
first batch of 20 accredited solar power projects. The
concentrated solar power stations project was selected
as one of the on-list projects. Accordingly, Solar Energy
Thermal Power will proceed with the construction works of its
demonstration power station being the first phase of the CSP
Project and will make further investments in accordance with
the terms of the shareholders’ agreement.

Financial Review
Exchange Exposure

The Group’s principal assets, liabilities, revenue and
payments are denominated in HKD and RMB. Moreover, the
Board is capable of maintaining a net monetary asset position
denominated in RMB for the Group. Therefore, the Board
is confident that the Group’s exposure to exchange rate
fluctuations in respect of RMB will not have material adverse
effect on the financial position of the Group given that the
RMB to HKD exchange rate is maintained at a relatively
stable range. In addition, the Board does not anticipate that
there is any material exchange exposure in respect of other
currencies.

In the opinion of the Board, RMB will still be currency under
control in the foreseeable future. Although the market expects
that RMB will widen its exchange rate fluctuation, the Board
is not expected that it will have material adverse effect on
the financial position of the Group. However, the Board will
closely monitor the future development of the RMB exchange
rate and will take appropriate measures as necessary.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS ES#KEHRE

Financial Review (Continued)
Exchange Exposure (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has no material
liability denominated in other foreign currencies other than
RMB. There was also no hedging transaction contracted for
by the Group during the year.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Group pledged certain
investment properties, leasehold land and buildings,
land use right and factory, plant and machinery with an
aggregate carrying value at the end of the reporting period of
approximately HK$2,424.7 million (2016: HK$2,205.2 million),
HK$228.3 million (2016: HK$200.5 million), HK$131.8 million
(2016: HK$182.5 million) and HK$737.5 million (2016:
HK$719.8 million) respectively to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group, other loans and other payable
to an independent third party.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group also pledged
approximately HK$0.8 million (2016: HK$1.7 million) bank
deposits to secure settlements for certain of Group’s
purchase of raw materials.

Working Capital & Borrowings

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s total
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$3,231.1 million
in aggregate. The composition of these borrowings is
summarized below:
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Financial Review (Continued)

Working Capital & Borrowings (Continued)

Interests for all borrowings were charged at fixed and floating
rates ranging from 2.30% per annum to 7.50% per annum.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s cash
and bank balances (included pledged bank deposits and
structured bank deposits) was approximately HK$1,485.2
million in aggregate. The Group’s net borrowings was
approximately HK$1,745.9 million. The Group’s net current
assets was approximately HK$111.9 million. In addition,
the Group has unutilised banking facilities of approximately
HK$762.2 million in aggregate. Based on the foregoing
information, the Board is confident that the Group has
adequate working capital to meet daily operations and to
finance future expansion. Despite this, the Board will seek
to dispose short and medium term investments to replenish
funds in order to further increase the Group’s working capital
to a stronger level.

At the end of the reporting period, the Gearing Ratio
(calculated as total borrowings over equity attributable to
owners of the Company) and Current Ratio (calculated as
current assets over current liabilities) of the Group were
45.5% (2016: 48.9%) and 1.0x (2016: 1.3x) respectively.
Both ratios are maintained at good level.

Capital Structure

At the end of the reporting period, the shareholders’ fund of
the Group increased by HK$746.3 million to approximately
HK$7,103.4 million (2016: HK$6,357.1 million), representing
a increment of approximately 12%. The increase was mainly
due to the profit for the year amounting to approximately
HK$260.2 million and the appreciation of RMB resulted in
exchange gain amounting to approximately HK$443.9 million
upon translating PRC subsidiaries and associates.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS ES#KEHRE

Human Resources

At the end of the reporting period, the Group employed 559
(2016: 1,453) employees in Hong Kong and in the PRC.
The total number of employees decreased significantly
was due to the cessation of the property management
business which is a labour intensive business and hired 909
employees as at 31 December 2016. The Group offers its
employees competitive remuneration packages, which are
consistent with the prevailing market practices. The Group’s
remuneration policies remain unchanged during the year.
Total staff costs for the year was approximately HK$159.5
million (2016: HK$115.3 million). Total staff costs increased
by approximately 38%. The main reasons were due to the
effect of annual salary increment and the appreciation of
RMB exchange rate by approximately 7% which had led to
a further increase in translating staff cost of the Company’s
subsidiaries in the Mainland China. Moreover, as the results
recorded a turnaround from loss to profit with a very
satisfactory profit in the current year, the Group granted
special bonus to the senior management of those critical
business units and granted a long service payment to a
retired senior management amounting to HK$20.0 million in
aggregate in the current year which has further increased
staff costs.

Final Dividend

As the Board intends to retain more working capital for the
Group, the Board has resolved not to recommend payment of
a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
Nil). The Board will endeavor to resume payment of dividend
soonest possible.

Compliance with the Model Code

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. All directors have confirmed that, following
specific enquiry by the Company, they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code throughout
the year.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed
securities.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
appreciation and gratitude to those resigned directors for
their contribution and service to the Group during their tenure
and give my warmest welcome to those newly appointed
directors for joining our Group. Moreover, | would like to
express my appreciation and gratitude to our shareholders
for their support and all the Group’s employees for their
hard work and dedication in carrying out their duties and in
achieving the Group’s business goal.

By order of the Board of
Silver Grant International Industries Limited

Gao Jian Min
Executive Director & Managing Director

Hong Kong, 23 March 2018

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS E=ft

Executive Directors
Gao Jian Min Managing Director

Mr. Gao, aged 58, was appointed as an executive director
and served as the Managing Director of the Company on 22
June 1993. He was also appointed as a director of various
companies of the Group. Mr. Gao is also an executive
director of Jiangxi Copper Co., Ltd (“diangxi Copper”) (Stock
code: 358). Up to 24 March 2017, Mr. Gao was an executive
director of Qingling Motors Co. Ltd. (“Qingling Motors”)
(Stock code: 1122). The H shares of Jiangxi Copper and
Qingling Motor are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Gao
graduated from the Qing Hua University with a bachelor
degree in engineering. He has over 25 years of experience
in finance, industrial investment and property investment and
development.

Liu Tianni Deputy Managing Director

Mr. Liu, aged 54, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 26 May 2001. Mr. Liu is the Deputy
Managing Director of the Company. Mr. Liu was also
appointed as a director of various companies of the Group.
Mr. Liu is currently an executive director and the chairman of
Wonderful Sky Financial Group Holdings Limited (Stock code:
1260), which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. He
graduated from the Beijing Normal University with a master’s
degree in science in 1990. Mr. Liu is also an independent
non-executive director of Qingling Motors (Stock code: 1122)
and Luoyang Glass Company Limited (stock code: 1108),
the H shares of which are all listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Liu has over 20 years of experience in capital market
operations.
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Executive Directors (Continued)
Ma Yilin

Mr. Ma, aged 53, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 20 January 2017. Mr. Ma is currently
the Managing Director of China Cinda (Hong Kong) Holding
Company Limited (“Cinda Hong Kong”), which is a wholly
owned subsidiary of China Cinda Asset Management Co.,
Ltd. (“China Cinda”). He is an intermediate economist. Mr. Ma
graduated from the graduate school of the China University
of Political Science and Law with a master degree in law.
Commencing 2011, Mr. Ma had held various positions
successfully in Cinda Hong Kong, including senior manager,
head of legal affairs, investment controller, assistant to
general manager, deputy general manager, general manager
and director of Cinda Hong Kong. Mr. Ma has abundant
experience asset management and legal affairs.

Non-executive Directors
Luo Zhenhong Chairman

Mr. Luo, aged 52, was appointed as a non-executive director,
Chairman on the Board and a member and the committee
chairman of the nomination committee of the Company on
28 August 2017. Mr. Luo is currently the Chief Risk Officer
of China Cinda. From July 1988 to April 1999, Mr. Luo held
various position in China Construction Bank. Mr. Luo joined
China Cinda in April 1999 and served successfully as the
deputy general manager and the general manager of Legal
Department of China Cinda. From April 2009 to August 2017,
Mr. Luo has served as the general manager of the Legal and
Compliance Department of China Cinda. From October 2008
to November 2012, Mr. Luo served as vice president of the
Banking Law Division of China Law Society and has served
as the vice president of China Banking Law Society since
November 2012. Mr. Luo graduate from Peking University
with a bachelor’s degree in law in 1988, a master’s degree
in law in 2002, and an EMBA degree in 2012. Mr. Luo has
abundant experience in risk and compliance management.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Hui Xiao Bing Vice-chairman

Mr. Hui, aged 64, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company and was elected vice-chairman of the Board
on 22 June 1993. He was redesignhated as a non-executive
director of the Company on 1 September 2006. Mr. Hui was
the deputy managing director of China Everbright Financial
Holdings Limited and was also the president of China
Construction Bank, Shenzhen Branch. He previously worked
for the Research Centre for Economic Development of the
State Council of the PRC and China Investment Consultancy
Company. He has over 28 years of experience in banking and
finance. Mr. Hui graduated from the Inner Mongolia Industrial
University with a bachelor degree in engineering. Mr. Hui
is currently the president of the Society for the Promotuion
of Science and Technology Commericialization. He is also
appointed independent director of ABCI Insurance Company
Limited (an authorized insurers of Hong Kong Insurance
Authority) with effect from March 2018.
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Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Chen Qiming Vice-chairman

Mr. Chen, aged 55, was appointed as a non-executive
director and vice-chairman of the Board of the Company on
15 February 2012. He is a senior engineer in the PRC. He
obtained a bachelor’s degree in science in engineering from
the East China University of Metallurgy in 1984 and a master’s
degree in economics from the University of International
Business and Economics in 2003. Mr. Chen joined China
Guangdong Nuclear Power Holding Co., Ltd. (now known
as China General Nuclear Power Corporation) (“CGNPC”), a
substantial shareholder of the Company, in 1996 and served
various positions including head of the construction contract
division of Ling Ao Nuclear Power Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of
CGNPC, manager of the contract procurement department
of Liaoning Hongyanhe Nuclear Power Co., Ltd., manager of
the contract and procurement department of China Nuclear
Power Engineering Co., Ltd. and the deputy general manager
and general manager of the capital operation department
of CGNPC. Mr. Chen is currently the general manager of
CGN Capital Holdings Co., Ltd. During the period from 5
December 2013 to 29 June 2016, Mr. Chen was a non-
executive director of CGN Mining Company Limited (Stock
Code:1164). During the period from 9 March 2012 to 12 July
2016, Mr. Chen was a non-executive director of CGN New
Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. (Stock code: 1811). The shares of
both companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chen
has over 20 years of experience in the power industry.
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Zhang Lu

Mr. Zhang, aged 65, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 4 May 2000.
He is also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Zhang graduated from the
Sichuan International Studies University in 1979. He was the
General Manager of CITIC Central Tanshi Money Brokering
Company Limited, which is a joint venture of CITIC Trust Co.,
Ltd. engaged in the money brokering business for financial
institutions. From 1987 to 2000, Mr. Zhang was the executive
vice president and treasurer of CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited,
responsible for both the Treasury and International Business.
From 1974 to 1987, he worked for Bank of China and CITIC
Industrial Bank. Mr. Zhang has engaged in the banking sector
for over 35 years.

Liang Qing

Mr. Liang, aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 28 February 2014. He
is also a member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Liang is also currently an
executive director and an independent non-executive director
of Jiangxi Copper (Stock code: 358) and Sinotruck (Hong
Kong) Limited (“Sinotruck”) (Stock code: 3808) respectively.
The H shares of Jiangxi Copper and Sinotruck are listed on
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Liang graduated from Beijing Open
University (formerly known as Beijing Radio and Television
University) in 1985, where he studied Chinese language and
literature. Mr. Liang was a director and the general manager
of China Minmetal H.K. (Holdings) Limited and has now
retired. Mr. Liang has abundant experience in international
trading and investment.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Hung Muk Ming

Mr. Hung, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 23 December 2004.
He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr.
Hung is a Certified Public Accountant (Practicing) and is a
Fellow CPA of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, a Fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors and an associate of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. He is also a
Certified Tax Adviser and a member of The Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong. Mr. Hung received his bachelor degree in
social sciences from the University of Hong Kong in 1990,
and a master degree in corporate governance from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 2008. Mr. Hung is also an
independent non-executive director of Cinda International
Holdings Limited (“Cinda International”) (Stock code: 111),
Century Sage Scientific Holdings Limited (“Century Sage”)
(Stock code: 1450), China Animation Characters Company
Limited (“China Animation”) (Stock code: 1566) and IBO
Technology Company Limited (“IBO Technology”) (Stock
code: 2708). The shares of Cinda International, Century Sage,
China Animation and IBO Technology are all listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Hung has over 20 years of experience
in the accounting and audit sector.
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Chen Yongcun

Mr. Chen, aged 53, re-joined the Company on 1 May 2016.
Mr. Chen is one of the Deputy General Managers of the
Company. He is currently the legal representative and the
Managing Director of Beijing East Gate Development Co.,
Ltd., which is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr.
Chen is responsible for the Group’s property development
and investments in the mainland China. Mr. Chen previously
worked with China Construction Bank and China Cinda.
During the period from 25 October 2000 to 27 February
2008, Mr. Chen was an executive director of the Company.
Mr. Chen graduated from Qing Hua University with a bachelor
degree in engineering and a master degree in business
management. He has over 20 years of experience in finance
and investment.

Chow Kwok Wai

Mr. Chow, aged 51, is one of the Deputy General Managers
of the Company. He is responsible for the finance and
accounting matters of the Group. Mr. Chow joined the
Company in October 1993 and was an executive director
of the Company during the period from 20 April 2004 to
28 December 2013. Mr. Chow was appointed company
secretary of the Company on 28 December 2013. Mr. Chow
has worked in Price Waterhouse, which is now known as
PriceWaterhouseCoopers and has accumulated valuable audit
experience there. Mr. Chow received his bachelor degree in
social sciences from the University of Hong Kong in 1990.
Mr. Chow is a Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a Fellow CPA of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a Certified
Tax Adviser and a Fellow Member of the Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong. Mr. Chow has over 20 years of experience
in accounting, financial management and corporate finance.
Mr. Chow is also an independent non-executive director of
SSY Group Limited (formerly known as Lijun International
Pharmaceutical (Holding) Co., Ltd.) (Stock code: 2005) which
H shares are listed on the Stock Exchange and Youyuan
International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 2268) which
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also a non-
executive director of Cinda International (Stock code: 111)
which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of
its businesses and the communities with which it engages.
The Group pursue this business approach by managing our
business prudently and executing management decisions
with due care and attention.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group maintains a continuous dialogue with stakeholders
that include customers, employees, regulators and the public.
The Group seeks to balance the views and interests of these
various stakeholders through constructive conversations with
a view to charting a course for the long-term prosperity of the
Group and the communities.

Customers

Customer feedback plays an important role in the operation
of the Group. Various channels are established to maintain
interactive communications between tenants and the Group.

Employees

Hard-working and dedicated employees are the backbone
of a company. The Group treasures its loyal and industrious
staff members. In addition, it adopts non-discriminatory hiring
and employment practices and strives to provide a safe and
healthy workplace.

Government & Public

Tough efforts are exerted to ensure compliance with the
laws and regulations of the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates. The public at large is also an important stakeholder
of the Group. A stable and prosperous community is
important to the steady growth and long-term future
prospects of the Group.
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Workplace Quality

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed 559 staff
members. Total employee costs for the year ended 31
December 2017, including directors’ emoluments, amounted
to approximately HK$159.5 million.

The quality of the employees of the Group is crucial to
maintaining a competitive position in the market. With this
in mind, the Group seeks to attract and retain talented
individuals committed to achieving goals and objectives in
a work environment that nurtures values such as fair play,
respect and integrity. The Group sees career development
an important aspect of its staffs and provides ongoing
training, according to the needs of the Group. Compensation
packages are competitive, and individuals are rewarded
according to performance plus an annually-reviewed
framework of salary, working conditions, bonuses and
incentive systems. Benefits include medical cover, provident
funds, share options scheme.

The Group is committed to providing a healthy and safe
workplace for all its employees and complying with all
applicable health and safety laws and regulations. Health
and safety considerations are incorporated into the design,
operations and maintenance of the premises of the Group.
Employees are provided appropriate job skills and safety
training and are educated with regard to their responsibilities
for achieving the health and safety objectives of the Group.
The Group also communicates with its employees on
occupational health and safety issues.

Environmental Protection

Energy saving measures are enforced in the Group’s offices
and commercial premises for the purpose of achieving
reduction of electricity consumption and greenhouse gas
emissions.

The Group adopted policies to promote recycling and use
of eco-friendly stationery, plus a series of measures to save
paper and energy, resulted in more efficient use of resources,
as well as reduction of waste.

Annual Report 2017
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Operating Practices

The Group is committed to adhering to the highest ethical
standards. All employees are given a Code of Conduct
to which they are required to adhere. The Code explicitly
prohibits employees from soliciting, accepting or offering
bribes or any form of advantage. The Code also outlines
the Group’s expectations on staff with regard to conflicts
of interest. All managers are expected to communicate and
instill a culture of good corporate governance to their staffs.

ESG Report

The Company engaged external professionals to review the
ESG policies of the Group and issue a ESG report for the
Board’s consideration. Upon finalising the 2017 ESG report,
the Company will published the 2017 ESG report on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange only in
due course on or before the month end of June 2018. No
hardcopy of the 2017 ESG report will be printed and mailed
to shareholders of the Company.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to establish and maintain a
standard of corporate governance that is consistent with
market practices. The Company has applied the principles
and complied with all the mandatory code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December
2017, except for a deviation from code provision A.6.7.

Under code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the view of the shareholders. The Company held its annual
general meeting on 23 May 2017 (the “AGM”) and held
an extraordinary general meeting on 27 June 2017 (the
“EGM”). Due to their pre-arranged business commitments,
independent non-executive director Mr. Liang Qing was
not able to attend the AGM and the EGM. Independent
non-executive director Mr. Zhang Lu was not able to attend
the EGM. Non-executive directors Mr. Hui Xiao Bing and
Mr. Chen Qiming were not able to attend the AGM and the
EGM. Non-executive director Mr. Wu Songyun was not able
to attend the EGM.

The following summarizes the Company’s key corporate
governance practices.
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Board of Directors

Board Composition

The Board led by the Chairman, steers the Group’s business
direction. The management, led by the Managing Director,
which is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Group, is
responsible for the Group’s management and operations.
The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
the Managing Director are clearly established and set out in
writing. The role of the Chairman and the Managing Director
are separated and are performed by different persons to
avoid concentration of authorities to one single person.

The Board is responsible for formulating the Group’s long-
term strategies, setting business development goals,
assessing the results of management policies, monitoring
management’s performance and ensuring the existence
of an effective internal control system. The independent
non-executive directors serve the important function of
ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective corporate
governance framework.

The current Board comprises three executive directors, three
non-executive directors and three independent non-executive
directors, which composition is set out in the section headed
Corporation Information on page 3 and the biographies of
the directors are set out on page 29 to 34. The number of
independent non-executive directors represent no less than
one-third of the board members.

Members of the Board possess the appropriate expertise and
skills to discharge their duties.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

The Company’s directors, Messrs. Luo Zhenhong and Ma
Yilin are also directors and/or senior officers within the group
of China Cinda, Messrs. Gao Jian Min and Liu Tianni are also
directors and shareholders of Silver Grant Group Limited (“SG
Group”) and Mr. Chen Qiming is also a director and/or senior
officer within the group of CGNPC. China Cinda, SG Group
and CGNPC are substantial shareholders of the Company.
Save for the aforesaid, there is no relationship between
members of the Board, in terms of financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationship.

To assist the Board in discharging its duties and to fulfil
the requirements of the CG Code, three standing board
committees were set up under the Board: Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. When
it become necessary, the Board will set up ad hoc board
committee to handle specific issues and report back to the
Board.

The Board considers that each independent non-executive
director is independent in character and judgment and that
they all meet the specific independence criteria as required
by the Listing Rules. The Company has received from each
independent non-executive director an annual confirmation
confirming his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

All directors are regularly updated on governance and
regulatory matters. There are established procedures for
directors to obtain independent professional advice, at the
expense of the Company, in the furtherance of their duties.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder of the Company or a director arise, the matter
will be discussed in a physical Board meeting, as opposed
to being dealt with by a written resolution. Independent non-
executive directors with no conflict of interest will be present
at meetings dealing with such conflict issues.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

Independent non-executive directors are explicitly identified
in all corporate communications containing the names of
the directors. An updated list of directors identifying the
independent non-executive directors and the role and the
functions of the directors is maintained on the website of the
Company at www.silvergrant.com.hk and the website of the
Stock Exchange.

All directors are appointed for a specific term of service no
longer than three years. They are also subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with Article 102 of the
Company’s Articles of Association.

The full board will meet regularly and at least four times
throughout a year to review the overall strategy and to
monitor the operations as well as the financial performance
of the Group. Notice of at least 14 days will be given to all
directors in respect of full board meeting and the directors
can include matters for discussion in the agenda if necessary.
Agenda and the accompanying board papers in respect of full
board meeting are sent out in full to all directors no less than
three days before the meeting. Minutes of full board meeting
and meeting of board committee are properly kept. All
directors have access to relevant and timely information. They
also have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary of the Company, who is responsible for providing
the directors with Board papers and related materials. Where
queries are raised by the directors, prompt and full responses
will be given if possible.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

During the year, four board meetings were held and the

attendance of each director is set out below:

ExgE)
EESAME)

RER - RBBENAZBESEE  SUE
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Name of Directors Number of Meeting attended/held Notes Attendance rate
BEEHR HESEAY 2HEERK M &t HE=E
Executive Directors
BITEE
Gao Jian Min 4/4 100%
BER
Liu Tianni 4/4 100%
2R
Ma Yilin 1/3 1 33%
BB
Gu Jianguo 11 2 100%
AN
Non-executive directors
HHTEE
Luo Zhenhong 0/0 3 N/A
BRR N iE A
Wu Songyun 2/3 1 67%
RNE
Chen Xiaozhou 0/1 2 0%
R JE
Hui Xiao Bing 4/4 100%
HE
Chen Qiming 3/4 75%
BRI AR
Independent non-executive

directors
BUFHTESE
Liang Qing 3/4 75%
Zhang Lu 3/4 75%
SR I
Hung Muk Ming 4/4 100%
HEARAR
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

Notes:

1. Only three meetings were held during the director’s tenure of
office.

2. Only one meeting was held during the director’s tenure of
office.

3. No meeting was held during the director’s tenure of office.

According to the Articles of Association of the Company, the
Board has the power to appoint any person as a director
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board.
The director so appointed shall hold office until the next
general meeting (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or
until the next annual general meeting (in the case of new
addition to the Board) following his appointment and shall
then be eligible for re-election. In other cases, all directors,
including the Chairman, Vice Chairmen and Managing
Director, shall retire by rotation at least once every three
years at annual general meetings and be eligible for re-
election.

Changes in Board Members

On 20 January 2017, Mr. Chen Xiaozhou resigned as a non-
executive director of the Company and chairman of the
Board in order to pursue more commitments on the strategic
development of China Cinda.

On 20 January, 2017 Mr. Gu Jianguo resigned as an

executive director of the Company due to change in his
employment and ceased to be employed by China Cinda.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Changes in Board Members (Continued)

On 20 January 2017, Mr. Wu Songyun (“Mr. Wu”) was
appointed as a non-executive director of the Company and
chairman of the Board. Subsequently, Mr. Wu resigned as a
non-executive director of the Company and chairman of the
Board on 28 August 2017 due to change in his employment
and ceased to be employed by China Cinda.

Mr. Ma Yilin was appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 20 January 2017.

Mr. Luo Zhenhong was appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company and chairman of the Board with effect from
28 August 2017.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted the board diversity policy in August 2013.
The policy sets out the approach to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board.

The Company considered diversity of board members
can be achieved through consideration of a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Diversity Policy (Continued)

The Board developed measurable objectives to implement
the board diversity policy, where selection of candidates will
be based on a range of diversity perspectives as set out
above, and the ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidate will bring to the Board.

An analysis of the board diversity based on a range of
diversity perspectives is set out below:

Exgw®)
EsgsnibBEAE)

EZSHF TAMERE  RETESEK
BZITCEE B NESIE EXEs —
RZTEBEREE  FREBRAEZE
BRA/EZTERHZARBMIERE

B—FI ST BBREEFHZEFTEK
BEZIEoMEIMT:

9
8 Executive
Directors 61-70
7 HITES
6
Number of 5
Directors 4
EE2HE
3
2
1
0
Designation Age Group
i 4V FHRA R

Corporate Governance Committee

The CG Code recommends listed company to set up a
corporate governance committee to look after issues relating
to corporate governance. However, the Directors consider
that it is more appropriate and more efficient for the Company
to retain in the Board the function of overseeing corporate
governance issues. The Directors will continuously review
and improve the Company’s and the Group’s corporate
governance practices to ensure that business activities and
decision-making processes are regulated in a proper and
prudent manner.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Corporate Governance Committee (Continued)

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
corporate governance duties performed by the Board were
mainly set out below:

—  reviewed the corporate governance practices;

— reviewed the continuous professional development and
training of the directors;

— reviewed compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

Securities Dealing by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own
code of conducts regarding directors’ securities transactions.
All directors have confirmed that, following specific enquiry
by the Company, they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2017.

The Company has also adopted codes of conduct regarding
securities transactions by relevant employees (as defined in
the CG Code) on terms no less exacting than the required
standards set out in the Model Code.

Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in 1999. The composition and professional
qualifications of the members of the Audit Committee
complies with the requirements under Rules 3.21 of the
Listing Rules. The Audit Committee has written terms of
reference that conform to the provisions of the CG Code. The
written terms of reference is set out in detail on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The current Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Hung Muk Ming
(Committee chairman), Mr. Liang Qing and Mr. Zhang Lu.

The Audit Committee meets at least two times each year
to review the reporting of financial and other information
to shareholders, the system of internal controls, risk
management and the effectiveness and objectivity of the audit
process. The Audit Committee also provides an important link
between the Board and the Company’s external auditors in
matters coming within the scope of its terms of reference and
keeps under review the independence and objectivity of the
external auditors.

During the year, the work performed by the Audit Committee
includes the review of the annual results for the year ended
31 December 2016, the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group for 2016 and the interim results for the
period ended 30 June 2017. On 23 March 2018, the Group’s
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2017 have
also been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee together with the Board have reviewed
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system and
risk management system and considered that it is effective
and adequate for the time being.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year, two Audit Committee meetings were held
and the attendance of each member is set out below:

Name of Directors

Number of meetings attended/held

ExgE)
BEREREE(H)

ERZBEFANATBHAMAREE  TKEZ
hE R

Attendance rate

BEEBS HEGBEAE 2R RE HfE =&
Hung Muk Ming 2/2 100%
PN

Liang Qing 2/2 100%
25

Zhang Lu 2/2 100%
o 1%

Remuneration Committee FHZEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in 2005 and adopted a written
terms of reference which conform to the provisions of the CG
Code. The terms of reference was revised on 15 February
2012. The written terms of reference is set out in detail on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
current Remuneration Committee comprises two independent
non-executive directors namely, Mr. Zhang Lu (Committee
chairman) and Mr. Liang Qing.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee are
to ensure that there is no director or any of his associates
is involved in deciding his own remuneration and that the
Company has an equitable and competitive remuneration
policy to attract and retain talent persons to serve the
Company. The Board has adopted the model where the
Remuneration Committee performs an advisory role to
the Board (i.e. make recommendations to the Board on
the remunerations packages of individual director and
senior management). The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all directors’ and senior
managements’ remuneration and making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive directors.

The remuneration package for each employee is structured
according to his quality and qualification. The remuneration
package will contain a combination or modification of some
or all of the following four main components:

1. Basic salary

Basic salary ranges for each position are established
with reference to the responsibilities and the duties
attached to the position. The actual salary for the
person filling the position is determined based on the
experience and ability of the individual selected for the
position.

The basic salary ranges are reviewed periodically by
reference to the general market and by comparison
to comparable positions at competitors in the relevant
industry. The actual salaries of employees are reviewed
annually and may be adjusted from time to time based
on the cost of living and financial performance of the
Company.

Salaries are base remuneration and not intended to
reward performance, either individually or corporately.
Performance is rewarded through the other components
of the remuneration plan.
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Board of Directors (Continued) BEER(E)

Remuneration Committee (Continued) FMHMEER(E)

2. Incentive bonus 2. EEMAT
Incentive bonus is linked to individual and corporate RENEEA R ERE B &R RIER
performance. The incentive bonus for each employee Mo BREEBMEMEREIASKE
is determined with reference to his position and his/her B M/ A AR RIRMETE o

performance during the year.

3. Share option 3. BERE
Share options to subscribe for shares in the Company g fHBERES &L ER
are granted to employees from time to time at the - HREARRERG - LWBBEER
discretion of the Board, in order to retain valuable METIWHBE THEES N TE-
employees and to motivate future performance of the
employees.
Share options granted to individual employee EARE TERMERESE KRER
are determined with reference to his position, his I~ RIBME R R BR AL ATIER & B
performance and his ability to contribute to the overall MmEE °

success of the Group.

However, the Group does not have any Share Option SR - ZANEE[E | R e (T ] B AR
Scheme in force for the time being. HEE

4.  Other benefits 4. BEFR
The Group offers other customary and/or mandatory AREBNERX~EZE/@ AT ERERE A
benefits to employees, such as statutory retirement HEFREERHEEENR, R H
scheme, employee compensation and medical MEER - EERKRSHE  EER
insurance, paid annual leaves and child education B -BINEERE BHFFBRETL
allowance, with reference to the prevailing practices in A= -

relevant jurisdictions.

The Remuneration Committee meets regularly to review the YFNZEe T HMEREREMNARRNAS
Company’s human resources matters and remuneration BREELTMEE -FHEZESFAEH
policies. During the year, two Remuneration Committee MAEH 2REEGKEHELHESR -

meetings was held in the presence of all committee members.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and made
recommendation to the Board on the approval of the annual
salary adjustments for the year 2018 and the payment of
discretional performance bonus and director fees to the
executive and non-executive directors for year ended 31
December 2017 after taking into consideration the results
of the Group, the performance of the directors, the senior
management and the employees and the prevailing market
practices.

Details of the directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid
employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix
16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee on 15
February 2012 (“Nomination Committee”) and adopted written
terms of reference for the Nomination Committee. The written
terms of reference is set out in detail on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The current Nomination
Committee comprises the chairman of the Board who also
act as the chairman of the committee and two independent
non-executive directors namely, Mr. Zhang Lu and Mr. Hung
Muk Ming.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for all matters
relating to the appointment of directors either to fill casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board. Pursuant
to the Articles of Association of the Company, any director
appointed to fill casual vacancy shall hold office only until
to the next general meeting or as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until to the next annual general
meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election at such
meeting. Every director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least every three years and shall be eligible for re-
election in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying
suitably qualified candidates and making recommendations
to the Board for its consideration. The process for selecting
and recommending candidates for directorship includes the
consideration of referrals and the engagement of external
recruitment professionals. The selection criteria are based
mainly on the assessment of their characters and their
professional qualifications and experience relevant to the
Company’s business.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board periodically,
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors and making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment and re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors. The nomination committee has
reviewed the Board structure and the diversity of Board
members.

On 20 January 2017, Mr. Wu Songyun and Mr. Ma Yilin were
nominated and appointed as non-executive director and
executive director of the Company respectively. On 28 August
2017, Mr. Luo Zhenhong was nominated and appointed as
non-executive director of the Company.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
During the year, one Nomination Committee meeting was

held and the attendance of each member is set out below:

Name of Directors

Number of meeting attended/held

ExgE)
REZEE(E)
RER - REZEEAR—REH - &XKE

ZHEEREFHMT

Attendance rate

EEHE HESBAE 2BERRH =
Luo Zhenhong"**® N/A N/A
BIRE"E T iEA T E A
Wu Songyun 0/1 0%
RNE

Chen Xiaozhou"**® N/A N/A
eI TEA TEA
Zhang Lu 1/1 100%
SR Tk

Hung Muk Ming 11 100%
AR

Note: Bt -

No nomination committee meeting was held during the directors’
tenure of office.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and
Indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to

indemnify its directors and officers in respect of legal actions
against the directors.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Induction and Training

Each newly appointed director, executive or non-executive, is
provided with a director’s induction package to ensure that he
has a proper understanding to his duties and responsibilities.
The director’s induction package include an overview of
the Group’s business operation and governance policies,
the director’s responsibilities and duties, relevant regulatory
requirements and briefing with the senior management of the
Group.

Pursuant to the CG Code, all directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. During the
year, all directors had participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by way of attending
training and/or reading materials relevant to the Company’s
business or to the directors’ duties and responsibilities. All
directors have confirmed that, following specific enquiry
by the Company, they have complied with the continuous
professional development requirement of the CG Code for the
year ended 31 December 2017.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Induction and Training (Continued)

The training attended by each director of the current Board
during the year is summarized below.

ERARE

ExgE)
BB R IE ()

REEEe ARG EZEZROT AL M
T e

Type of trainings (Note 1)

Training matters (Note 2)

Name of Directors EENS BINFRAHET) BINEE A HZ2)
Executive Directors BITESH
Gao Jian Min SER a, b i i, iv
Liu Tianni PN a, b i i, v
Ma Yilin J=SEEYN a, b i, i, iv
Non-executive directors HHITEE
Luo Zhenhong BIRE a, b i, i, i, iv
Hui Xiao Bing ¥ y=d a b i, i, iv
Chen Qiming &R 25 B a, b i i, dii, iv
Independent non-executive BV HHITEE

directors
Liang Qing 25 a, b i, i, il iv
Zhang Lu SR 3% a,b i, i, iv
Hung Muk Ming SR a b i, i, i
Note 1: Biit 1 -
a:  attending seminar or training session a: HEHFERIEIRE
b:  reading newspaper, journals and updates relating to economy, b: BMEHELE. —REBIESBREREAS

general business or directors’ duties and responsibilities, etc.
Note 2:

corporate governance
ii: regulatory

finance and accounting
iv: managerial
The Company also received confirmation from the Company

Secretary that he has taken no less than 15 hours relevant
professional training during the year.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company has
effective risk management and control systems. The Board
evaluates the effectiveness of the systems at least annually.
During the year, a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems was conducted.

Risk Management and Internal Control System

The Company’s risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage and mitigate risks, rather
than eliminate risks, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. The Company has employed a bottom-up approach for
identification, assessment and mitigation of risk at business
unit level and across functional areas.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The key elements of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems include the establishment of
a risk register to track and document identified risks, the
assessment and evaluation of risks, the development and
continuous updating of responsive procedures, and the
ongoing testing of internal control procedures to ensure their
effectiveness.

An ongoing risk assessment approach is adopted by the
Company for identifying and assessing new risks. The
identified risks will be recorded in the risk register which will
be reviewed regularly. After considering the control measures
against risks, a risk matrix is adopted to determine risk rating
(L=low risk, M=medium risk, H=high risk) after evaluation of
the risk by the likelihood and the impact of the risk event.

Annual Report 2017

R B T & R ER ER 4R

E=ShmRAR AT A R Rk B I b
ERABERGETHEREE EFEE
FRD R LZFRROBRE - RAEF
B - B Rt E IR K R RE &S 12 R AR AL
fEhET o

BEREERABEZRR

RN E YRR E IR N RS 1 R AR FEE R
WERER  ME2ERLERRR - LA
AR T e EARNAERIMFIERIELA
BB MRE - AAFHEAT —Eh L
N DIEEBR - FHE MORERR

BREERAPEZEAROHETENE

RARNEABRERERARBEZEHNEETETE
B ¥R R LR\ B B AT 1 DA 2B Bt K AT 85 P 8 Bl Y
Rk~ RS RAPR R - EREEEE G
FEAZ T » DA Hs 48 B 5 A BB 42 ) 2 468 DA R AR
TZBEBEE -

ARRERA T —EFRE M A R R T 5 770K A
TERBIFT R R o B HEH E R 2 RSk
EESmANERELTS  EEEEHE
B R B 4R 6 4 B AR - AN R RIRE SR R
HAMAEERERR  RERREEETE
R (ERRAIL - RRRRIM] - SE
BAIHD B EBERBETE -

TR FER

57



58

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ EAHE

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

Process Used to ldentify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks

During the process of risk assessment, each of the risk owner
of departments and major subsidiaries are required to capture
and identify the key inherent risks that affect the achievement
of its objectives. Each inherent risk is evaluated according
to the risk matrix. After taking into consideration the risk
response, such as control measures in place to mitigate the
risk, the residual risk of each inherent risk is evaluated again.
The risk register with the risk responses and residual risks
is reported to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee,
acting on behalf of the Board, evaluates the effectiveness of
the systems. The highest category of residual risks is subject
to the Board’s oversight.

Process used to review the effectiveness of the Risk
Management & Internal Control Systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

In view of the Company’s business and scale of operations,
and in order to adopt the most cost-effective method of
conducting periodic reviews of the Company’s internal
controls, the Board has outsourced the internal audit function
to an independent consulting firm (the “Internal Auditor”). The
Internal Auditor has conducted a review of the effectiveness
of the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems according to the scope of review agreed and
approved by the Audit Committee.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Inside Information

The Board is responsible for the handling and dissemination
of inside information. In order to ensure that the market
and shareholders are fully and promptly informed about
the material developments in the Company’s business, the
Board has adopted the Inside Information Disclosure Policy
regarding the procedures of proper information disclosure.
Release of inside information is subject to the approval of
the Board. Unless duly authorised, all staff member of the
Company shall not communicate inside information to any
external parties and shall not response to market speculation
and rumours. In addition, all external presentation materials
or publications must be pre-vetted before release.

Report to Audit Committee

The Internal Auditor reported directly to the Audit Committee
and the Audit Committee is satisfied that there has been no
major deficiency noted in the areas of the Company’s risk
management and internal controls systems being reviewed
after implementation of recommendations of the internal
control defects reported by the Internal Auditor. Accordingly,
the Audit Committee and the Board considered the risk
management and internal control systems to be effective.
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General Meetings BREXE
During the year, the Company has convened two general FA - ARABAMARRASHS BER
meetings including the Annual General Meeting. The RAFAE - SEZLFEBREAINNOT -

attendance of each director is set out below.

General meetings attended/held Attendance rate

Name of Directors EEHS HERERE, 2HRERE HER

Executive Directors HITESE

Gao Jian Min =ER 2/2 100%

Liu Tianni 2IRM% 0/2 0%

Gu Jianguo (Note a) BEE(MiFa) N/A N/A
TEA A3 A

Ma Yilin TR 0/2 0%

Non-executive directors HHITEE

Luo Zhenhong (Note b) BIRE (Mita) N/A N/A
E A A3 A

Wu Songyun (Note b) RINE(HFFD) 11 100%

Chen Xiaozhou (Note b) FBRERE (it a) N/A N/A
E A i A

Hui Xiao Bing BH/NE 0/2 0%

Chen Qiming PR X B 0/2 0%

Independent non-executive BYUHHITEE

directors

Liang Qing 2E 0/2 0%

Zhang Lu o 3% 1/2 50%

Hung Muk Ming AEASAR 2/2 100%

Notes: HtaE

(@)  No general meeting was held during the directors’ tenure of @ RNAFEFETHRABRITERAE -

office.
(o)  There was only one general meeting held during the director’s (b) §§Z%§$E&%@Fﬂﬁ/ﬂ\ BRIT—RBRERX
tenure of office. " e
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017, were audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) at a total fees of HK$2.8 million. The
said audit fee was approved by the Audit Committee and
endorsed by the Board. In addition, the Group also paid fees
of not more than HK$0.1 million in aggregate to Deloitte for
the provision of taxation services during the 2017.

The Audit Committee considers that the taxation services did
not (in terms of the nature of the services and the amount of
fees paid in relation to the audit fees) affect the independence
of Deloitte.

Remuneration of Senior Management

The emolument paid to senior management was amongst
the five highest paid individuals of the Group and is set out in
note 10.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company for
each financial year, which give a true and fair view of the
state of the affairs, results and cash flow of the Group for
that year in compliance with the relevant laws and disclosure
provision of the Listing Rules.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017, the directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently; adopted
appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and Hong Kong Accounting Standards; made adjustments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; and have
prepared the consolidated financial statements on the going
concern basis. Up to the date of this report, the directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties that will seriously
affect the going concern basis of the Group.
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement (Continued)

The directors are also responsible for keeping proper
accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the Group. The directors
also have general responsibilities for setting up an appropriate
internal control system, which is mainly to safeguard the
assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and
other irregularities. The directors have reviewed the internal
control system of the Group and are satisfied that the internal
control system of the Group is functioning properly.

Shareholders’ Rights
Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
shareholders of the Company as required to be disclosed

pursuant to the mandatory disclosure requirements under the
CG Code.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)
Convening General Meeting on Request

Shareholder(s) may request the Directors to convene an
extraordinary general meeting pursuant to Section 566 to 568
of the Companies Ordinance.

In accordance with Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance,
the Directors are required to call a general meeting if the
Company has received requests to do so from members of
the Company representing at least 5% of the total voting
rights of all the members having a right to vote at general
meeting. Such requests must state the general nature of the
business to be dealt with at the meeting, and may include
the text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at the meeting. Such requests may
be sent to the Company in hard copy form (by depositing
at the registered office of the Company at Suite 4901, 49th
Floor, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board) or in
electronic form (by email: cs@silvergrant.com.hk); and must
be authenticated by the person or persons making it. In
accordance with Section 567 of the Companies Ordinance,
the Directors must call a meeting within 21 days after the
date on which they become subject to the requirement under
Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance and such meeting
must be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date
of the notice convening the meeting.

If the directors of the Company do not within 21 days from
the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to
convene an extraordinary general meeting for a day not more
than 28 days after the date on which the notice convening
the extraordinary general meeting is given, the shareholder(s)
concerned, or any of them representing more than one-
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene an extraordinary general meeting, provided that the
extraordinary general meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of 3 months from the said date.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)
Convening General Meeting on Request (Continued)

The extraordinary general meeting convened by shareholders
shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which general meetings are to be convened by the
directors of the Company.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquires to the
Board

Shareholders can raise enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
shall be in writing and sent by post to the registered office of
the Company at Suite 4901, 49/F, Office Tower, Convention
Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention
of the Company Secretary.

Putting Forward Proposals at Annual General Meetings
To put forward a resolution at an annual general meeting,
shareholders are requested to follow the requirements and

procedures set out in Sections 615 and 616 of the Company
Ordinance.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

Putting Forward Proposals at Annual General Meetings
(Continued)

Section 615 of the Company Ordinance provides that the
Company must give notice of a resolution if it has received
requests that it do so from (a) the members of the Company
representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
members who have a right to vote on the resolution at the
annual general meeting to which the requests relate; or (b) at
least 50 members who have a right to vote on the resolution at
the annual general meeting to which the requests relate. Such
requests (@) may be sent to the Company in hard copy form
(by depositing at the registered office of the Company at Suite
4901, 49th Floor, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board) or
in electronic form (by email: cs@silvergrant.com.hk); (b) must
identify the resolution of which notice is to be given; (c) must
be authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (d)
must be received by the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks
before the annual general meeting to which the requests
relate; or (ii) if later, the time at which notice is given of that
meeting. Section 616 of the Company Ordinance provides
that the Company that is required under Section 615 of the
Company Ordinance to give notice of a resolution must send
a copy of it at the Company’s own expense to each member
of the Company entitled to receive notice of the annual general
meeting (a) in the same manner as the notice of the meeting;
and (b) at the same time as, or as soon as reasonably
practicable after, it gives notice of the meeting.

Proposing Director for Election at General Meetings

In respect of proposing a person for election as a director
of the Company at general meetings, please refer to the
procedures available on the website of the Company at
www.silvergrant.com.hk.

Constitutional Documents

During the year, there is no significant change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of
transparency in communicating with shareholders and
investors at large. In order to enhance the transparency of
shareholders’ voting in general meeting, separate resolutions
are proposed at general meeting on each substantially
separate issue, including the election of individual director
and all resolutions are voted on by poll. The Company will
engage external scrutineer to count the vote. The poll voting
results will be published on the wedsites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange at a later time on the same business
day. In addition, the requirement for resolutions to be
voted by poll is stated in the circular or annual report to be
despatched to shareholders. Moreover, at general meeting
but before voting, the chairman of the meeting will explain to
shareholders the described procedures for conducting a poll.

The Company has maintained a website at
http://www.silvergrant.com.hk which enables shareholders,
investors and the general public to have an open access
to the information of the Company. Financial information
and all corporate communications of the Company are
made available on the Company’s website and are updated
regularly.

Shareholders who wish to raise any queries with the Board
may write to the Company Secretary at Suite 4901 49/F,
Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT EEE# 4

The Board present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company and
engaged in property investment and securities trading. The
Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
property leasing, other investments, production and trading of
petrochemical products and the provision of sub-contracting
service. Details of the principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries and the Group’s associates are set out in note
42 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 89.

As the Board intends to retain more working capital for the

Group, the Board has resolved not to recommend payment
of final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Business Review EKER
The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 ANEFEE2017F12 A1 BILFENER
December 2017 is set out below: BERDRIELOT
Section in the Page No. of the
Annual Report Annual Report
HIRNEHR 2 B0 FHEH
a. Fair view of the Company’s business Managing Director’s Statements 51028
HARREBNH SRR ERAKERE 5%28
b. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing Directors’ Report 69 to 70
the Company EEeRs 9% 70
HARRRIEE N EZER &K ARz
C. Particulars of important events affecting the Company that ~ Directors’ Report 79
have occurred since the year ended 31 December 2017  EFE@#H{E 79

EHZE2017F12 A31 BILFEREBBAN - HAQNRE
FEMNEREMHNFE

d. Indication of likely future development in the Company’s Managing Director’s Statements 22 to 24
business EEFLHGENE 22E 24
ARAEBAE IR ANRREENER
e. Analysis using financial key performance indicators Financial Summary 231
ERIBARRRERETNDT B ER 231
f. Discussion on the Company’s environmental policies and Environmental, Social and 36 to 38
performance Governance 36 %38
HARRNRBEBRRREKR R RE ngkEn
g. An account of the Company’s key relationships with its Environmental, Social and 36 to 38
employees, customers and suppliers and others that have Governance 36 %38
a significant impact on the Company and on which the RE -dHekEh

Company’s success depend

ARRIEEES  BEERMERNEZMEOFANRER
AEFEUTHANEMATOEZEENHA - ZAT
HEARBRABEAYE  MAARNERERZAL

h. Discussion on the Company’s compliance with the relevant ~ Managing Director’s Statements, 5 to 28,
laws and regulations that have significant impact on the Corporate Governance Report, 39 to 66,
Company Directors’ Report 67 to 79

HARRETHARRBEAZENEREEZLRIINER BEFALERSE - 5%28
B R A PEERERS 39%66
BEeWE 67Z79
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Key Risk Factors

The following paragraphs list out the key risks and
uncertainties facing the Group. It is a non-exhaustive list and
there may be other risks and uncertainties further to the key
risk areas outlined below. Besides, this annual report does
not constitute a recommendation or an advice for anyone
to invest in the securities of the Company and investors are
advised to make their own judgment or consult their own
investment advisors before making any investment in the
securities of the Company.

Risk Pertaining to the Property Market on the Mainland

The Group has material interests in residential and
commercial property investment on the mainland and
is therefore subject to the risks associated with China’s
property market. The Group’s operations on the mainland
may also be exposed to the risks of policy change, interest
rate change, demand-supply imbalance, and the overall
economic conditions, which may pose an adverse impact
on the Group’s business, financial condition or results of
operations.

Operational Risks

The Group’s operation is subject to a number of risk
factors distinctive to direct investment, property investment
and property related businesses. Default on the part of
our buyers, tenants and strategic business partners, and
inadequacies or failures of internal processes, people and
systems or other external factors may have various levels of
negative impact on the results of operations. Additionally,
accidents may happen despite systems and policies set up
for their prevention, which may lead to financial loss, litigation
or damage in reputation.

Annual Report 2017

FTERBRZE

ATHI AN S B 8 6 E 2R R A REAE
EoWBAREFEMEREZ KT EZER
BBoN MAl e FEE MR RN RAEE -
bESh » RERAEERARREARNRFEH
EHEMZZEXLER - REEAEREARTA
EHFZH ERETTHE EHREREERD
2R

P 1 5 46 E 1 45 Y 46 B I B

AEBEERNREENERDENREER
TRAEAED  AMXITEEHMETS
MARRERMEE  BREE - FXEH .
HRRG R BREESRRMAIEHEERER
MR EBERER - HEBENED - BERK
MBEEFREEREETE -

AEENSEZINEERRE  HERE LM
ENMBEXRGZEEANEAREEZMTE -
KEER MHPEEBMUEEBBRHNKLE
TR RABRE ABRESESRIK
AR S E M SNEI R R AR E R BE A T A A2
EHNEETE . R ESECHET
SrE BN R MBER - BAMD AT BE B
£ AmMSIBRMBERX - FABEXAE -

TR FER

69



70

DIRECTORS’ REPORT EEE€ 4%

Policy Risks

The Group’s principal operating activities are in the mainland
China. The mainland market operates a system of planned
economy. New laws and regulations are launched from time
to time to regulate and/or promote economic activities. The
enactment of any new regulatory policies may have various
levels of negative impact on the results of operations.

International Crude Oil Prices Risks

A principal operation of the Group is the manufacturing
and sale of petrochemical products. Crude oil is the
critical raw material for production process. Significant
fluctuations in international crude oil prices and persistent
drop in international crude oil prices will have a material
adverse impact on the operating result in respect of sales of
petrochemical products.

Past Performance and Forward Looking Statements

The performance and the results of operation of the Group
as set out in this annual report are historical in nature and
past performance is not a guarantee of future performance.
This annual report may contain forward-looking statements
and opinions that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual result
may also differ materially from expectations discussed in such
forward-looking statements and opinions. Neither the Group
nor the Directors, employees or agents of the Group assume
any obligations or liabilities in the event that any of the
forward-looking statements or opinions does not materialize
or turns out to be incorrect.
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Fixed Assets

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were revalued at 31
December 2017. Surplus on revaluation of the leasehold land
and buildings amounted to approximately HK$41,097,000
has been credited to the asset revaluation reserve.

During the year, the Group revalued all of its investment
properties at 31 December 2017. The net increase in fair
value of investment properties, which has been charged
directly to the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
amounted to approximately HK$55,285,000.

Details of the valuation and movements of the investment
properties and property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

Details of the major investment properties of the Group at 31
December 2017 are set out in the section under “Summary of
Investment Properties” of this Annual Report.

Charitable Donations

Donations to charitable organisations by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2017 amounted to HK$10,000.

Share Capital

Details of movements during the year in the share capital
of the Company are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2017 comprised the
retained profits of approximately HK$531,331,000.

Equity Linked Agreements

No equity linked agreements were entered into during the
year or subsisted at the end of the year.
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Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Gao Jian Min (Managing Director)

Liu Tianni (Deputy Managing Director)

Ma Yilin (appointed on 20 January 2017)
Gu Jianguo (resigned on 20 January 2017)

Non-executive Directors

Luo Zhenhong (Chairman) (appointed on 28 August 2017)

Wu Songyun (Chairman) (appointed on 20 January 2017 and
resigned on 28 August 2017)

Chen Xiaozhou (Chairman) (resigned on 20 January 2017)

Hui Xiao Bing (Vice Chairman)

Chen Qiming (Vice Chairman)

Independent non-executive Directors

Liang Qing
Zhang Lu
Hung Muk Ming

The term of office of each Director, including the non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors,
is the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Luo Zhenhong who was appointed as
a Director on 28 August 2017 will hold office only until the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Messrs. Gao Jian Min,
Chen Qiming and Zhang Lu shall retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, and they, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election. The remaining Directors shall
remain in office.

Directors of Subsidiaries

Other than the Directors named in the section headed
“Directors”, the persons who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report included Mr. Gao Jian Min, Mr. Liu
Tianni, Mr. Sung Yeung Leon, Mr. Chow Kwok Wai, Mr. Kwok
Chung Lun, Mr. %7, Mr. Chen Yongcun, Ms. Fu Bo, Ms.
SROMEE, Mr. &8, Mr. sREM, Mr. 5K, Mr. #EE2R, Mr.
BRIZ, Mr. Ma Hon Yeung, Mr. Bif5mEE, Mr. 558, Mr. £
T, Mr. B2, Ms. ZF15, Mr. =&, Ms. EBEE, Ms. {&Zf
and Ms. Zhu Feng.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTION” below, no Director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract, which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Change in Profile of Directors

During the period from 28 August 2017 (as the date of
approval of 2017 Interim Report of the Company) to 23
March 2018 (as the date of approval of the 2017 Annual
Report of the Company), change in Director’s biographical
details which is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rules
13.51(2) and 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, is set out below:

Hung Muk Ming
Mr. Hung Muk Ming was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of IBO Technology Company Limited

(Stock code: 2708), a company listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, with effect from 6 December 2017.
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Directors’ Interest in Shares

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company nor any of its associates had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) as recorded in the register
as required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers. None of the
directors or their spouses or children under the age of 18,
had been granted any right to subscribe for the equity or
debt securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporation, or had exercised any such right during the year.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company, its parent
company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debenture of, the Company or any other body corporate, and
neither the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company
nor any of their spouse or children under the age of 18, had
any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or
had exercised any such right.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts of Significance

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTION” below, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to which the Company, its parent
company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or his connected entities had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

EEcROEDS

R2017F 128318 » ARAIMNES RITH
BEREAT MR A THERRARSKES
A EE (TR REHFRBAERI([ER R
HAE &G 1) EXVED) Bk - MR K&
EER  BMEREES RPEGHIZE 35214
BHREERAARINELMRRE ETETA
EFRTELRRHMIZESTRIZANE AL K
MERNFRBZAOERIAR - BEE
EREEMRGBE T N\FEUA TR F L BET
o] # 1) LA 3R B8 AR A B) o L A ) KR B A B A9 R
R ESH - KRN FRBITEEA Ll ER) o

BEROIBEEINZ

ZAN/NECT I S SN e S O NGB AL ES
B AR ERFANEMNRERTO—7
FARILEMLBEA R ERTAEBALR
AR EMEMAEAB RN RN KNEEZAS
@ MTEERRARFITRAE AR
FRMB\H+N\ER T FL - R EAENR
REBEANRAESF L BITE T AIZFEN -

EEREARS @ ZYHEHNRE

BRTXIBERS B mmEESN - A2
A HERRSREEMHBLRNERNE
NER AN FRERERE - BEAR]
M= EDFINENEFREBETRRNE
hHA(TwmeEEREEN)EAMNENE
ARRP » BHREHK -



DIRECTORS’ REPORT EEE# 4

Management Contracts

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any part
of the Company’s business was entered into during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, subject to
the statutes, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation
thereon. The Company has arranged appropriate liability
insurance to indemnify its directors and officers in respect of
legal actions against the directors.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2017, persons other than a director or
chief executive of the Company having interest in 5% or more
of the issued share capital of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of SFO were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2017 are set out below:
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REBEBIEPEAERHORITXNETFA
BEENITHAR -
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T BEARAREEETEE - ARFS
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Percentage of

the issued
Name of substantial Number of Total share capital
shareholder Capacity ordinary shares interests 2B BT
TERRER 514 EERROEE AR BREBDH
Silver Grant Group Limited Beneficial owner 277,114,022 277,114,022 12.02%
REEERRAR] EnEAA (Note i)
(Hiati)
China Cinda Asset Management Interest of controlled 438,056,000 438,056,000 19.01%
Co., Ltd corporation (Note i)
HEEEEEEERDARAF X EEER (Hiztii)
China Guangdong Nuclear Power  Interest of controlled 364,140,000 364,140,000 15.80%
Holding Co., Ltd. (now known corporation (Notes iii and iv)
as: China General Nuclear Power 4% #Ii% B #Exs (Biaii & iv)
Corporation)
HREERZEEEERAR(RE
R HBEEZEEARRAE)
Annual Report 2017 T FFR
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Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

Notes:

Messrs. Gao Jian Min and Liu Tianni, both of whom are
directors of the Company, each has a 30% interest in Silver
Grant Group Limited as at 31 December 2017.

i. The following is a breakdown of the interests in shares of the
Company held by China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd:

FERR(E)

Hiet -
BERAERBRGELREY  BEHEEART]
EE R2017F12 A1 BEEHERESE
BARAE 30%ES -

i. MNUTRTEEFEZEEAEEERONDERARME
BARRBZ B Angs :

Total interest in shares

BR 1 R 2 A Y
Name of controlled Name of controlling Percentage Direct Indirect
corporation shareholder of control interest interest
SEEEER ERERRER ZEHES = HEER s
Well Kent International China Cinda Asset Management 100% — 438,056,000
Investment Company Limited Co., Ltd
FERBBRRERRAT PREEEETEROARAT

Regent Star International Limited Well Kent International
ERBRBRAR Investment Company Limited
ERBEBERREBRAT

iii. The following is a breakdown of the interests in shares of the
Company held by China Guangdong Nuclear Power Holding

Co., Ltd.:

Name of controlled Name of controlling
corporation shareholder

ZEEEER ERERRARE

100% 438,056,000 —

i. UTRTBEERZEEEGRARMSALR
RBEZ DR ANED

Total interest in shares

ROEREH
Percentage Direct Indirect
of control interest interest
EHEaE HiEER BiEER

CGNPC International Limited China Guangdong Nuclear

P EZERER AR Power Holding Co., Ltd.
(now known as: China
General Nuclear Power
Corporation)

PEERZEEEFRAA

(RBER: PEEREEER
NCID!

iv. As notified by China General Nuclear Power Corporation, its
percentage of control in CGNPC International Limited has been
changed from 99.99% to 100%.

Other than as disclosed above, the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO showed that the
Company had not been notified of any other interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2017.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

100% 364,140,000 —

v. BTPBEEZEEERARBRA  ERPEZ
B BRARATE 2 ZEHE D %EH99.99%
B A100% °

B EXCFTEREIN - BIEFS REERNE
BBHMEEATHFENECMATAET AR
AW EZERBNL 2017 F12 A1 HEAR
AR 10 B2 A8 I8 A 10 HR #E B T 1] L i 4 2 sl
BHIRR -
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Annual Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

Connected Transaction

A service agreement dated 28 December 2004 was entered
into between Mr. Gao Jian Min (“Mr. Gao”) and the Company.
Pursuant to the terms and conditions set out therein, the
Company agreed to employ and Mr. Gao agreed to serve the
Company as a Managing Director by providing the Company
with the services as described in the service agreement for a
term of three years from 28 December 2004 to 27 December
2007, which term shall continue thereafter until determined
by either party giving to the other not less than 3-months
prior written notice.

Buy-Back, Sales or Redemption of Listed
Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries bought back, sold or redeemed any of its listed
securities.

Annual Report 2017

BYMNFERR

ARBEMFEBUFATEFTRIE LR
A1 313 1R I T s BB S M P A0 F S 1
R NRARRBBABBLIFNTESTHR
JBILHY) °

20045128288 82 REA(E %
4 DEARBIER —HRGE E - BB
FETEZ BHREE - ARFRIRABESS
£ MmrtERESIELEEARRESRL
BHE  AARARRHEREHEANMEYZ
fR% - EHEI=4 + 20045125280 &
2007 F 12 427 ALk - ZEHBHERERE
EEMN—FAHRTHATIOR=ZEAZERS
AIBAAIE AL -

EfE - HESEE LHES

FA ARAHEEFMB ARG ERDE
HESBERIARBEA EHES

—E—+FFR
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Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee and is based on their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices.

Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held at
Boardroom 8, Mezzanine Floor, Renaissance Harbour View
Hotel Hong Kong, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on
Monday, 28 May 2018 at 10:30 a.m. (the “Annual General
Meeting”).

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its Directors, during
the year and up to the date of this report, there is sufficient
public float, as not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The Group’s revenue comprises rental income from leasing
of properties, dividend income from listed and unlisted
securities, income from property management and income
from production and trading of petrochemical products and
provision of sub-contracting service.

The accumulated amount of purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers was less than 30% of the
Group’s total purchases and revenue for the year.

The accumulated amount of revenue attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers and our largest customer were
approximately 86% the Group’s total revenue for the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, none of our
Directors or any of their close associates or any of our
Shareholders who, to the knowledge of the Board, owned
more than 5% of our shares had interest in any of our five
largest customers.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

& BUR

AEEREENMEBRDHETME ESXLE
BHIhiE - EEREENBIE -

EENME I hFHEZE@KERARAN
REEE  MARREAHEBNTSED

BT -

BRRBFEXE

KRa#ER2018F5 A28 H(E 8 —) 9
TR=ZFTHBEEEETEEE—RESE
ESShEEEeRBEN \RTREEFAY
(REAFRE]) -

ABRFERENZHM

REARBDRENARENRREZHA
B REARBEARARER > ARAANDH
TRONERALEB EHRAIBTHRELZ

25% RRFBFIE -

EFREFRHER

AEENPRABRZHEYEZESKA - L
mEIFEMERZBBWA - MEEREA
KAl TE £ E K HE MR HIN TR
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Closure of Register of Members

To ascertain shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at
the Annual General Meeting, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, 23 May 2018 to
Monday, 28 May 2018, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, all
duly completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Share Registrar
of the Company, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 21 May 2018.

Event after the Reporting Period

No significant event occurring after the end of the reporting
period.

Auditor
A resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting

to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of
the Company.

By order of the Board
Luo Zhenhong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2018

Annual Report 2017
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF
SILVER GRANT INTERNATIONAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Silver Grant International Industries Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”)
set out on pages 89 to 230, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

)

>
RERBEXEARQAIIMIRR
(REEZMA LA EIRE ELA])

=R

AAZERAD (LA T R AP ) B BN R E
80BEF 230 EMIREBBFEXEAR A A([
ERr ) REMBAR(HE BES£E)H
REMBHRE  WEEMBERERBIEN 2017
F12A31 HNRE M BRARRNREEZ
HIEFENGRAERRK HRABERKEM
PEHNER  REEREHRREERER
EX URKEVMBHRERNTE  BEEXES
ETEURBEE -

BMRE  ZEREVBERECREBERES
A ([BASHMAE ) BHACESH
BHREEAN[EBMBEREERN DEEmMSP
BibkK SEBER2017F12 A31 B 24
AUBRARBEZALFE B£BZEF
AUBRERESAESRE  YEERSA
R RMGRGIZ R -
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

RRHNER

HPEREEZ LSS A RMN(E BB
HANTF BB ERL D ETE - RIAOE
ZEEA T AENREESERREZ A5
B BERRAENEE HORIEE—FE
o REBEBB G AR EMAO(EEXGEED
BRSTADUATEBE TR - HABLR
BEEE YOETTATHNEMEREREE
o RIMAMBEE - RFIFESHNESRER
RMEEMAERFIES B RIBER -

HEEITER

AREATHISRERMANEXAE - AR
HBARGAMBREANEARA/EENS
H o BUERIERMBABEESMER
KRB ABRRETREN - LA TEHE
LEFREEBNER -
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Key audit matter

BEEITER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RAZENIEBERENSRETEE

Valuation of investment properties and leasehold land and building under property, plant and

equipment

WE BERRER N REYRURBEEL MR EFZ1GE

We identified the valuation of investment properties
and leasehold land and buildings under property,
plant and equipment (the “Properties”) as a key audit
matter due to the balances of the Properties are
significant to the Group and the Properties are stated
at fair value, by reference to the valuations performed
by independent valuers, which are subjective by

its nature with significant judgements applied to

the valuations. Key judgements, such as those
unobservable data, are disclosed in notes 15 and 16

to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

As at 31 December 2017, the value of the Group’s
Properties are HK$2,876 million.

BMEmE - BEREBETREMEARBE L&
EBF(ZE(MEDHEZRDABRENEE  BREAA
ZEMEEHRER AP B RREBZEEN. - NEAB
VAHERFHEmMEE AR BN M AEEEMEEZ
ERAE - BRABNTARERZEEEHINESE
B RA T RRMFE15 %16 - R2017412 A 31 H
5B 2 W R2,876,000,000 8 7T °

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of the
investment properties included:

BRI ERREMEGELRFERE

o Assessing the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent valuers;

FHEE AHERD 2 BAERRE - e REEIM

° Discussing with the management and
independent valuers on the valuation process
to understand the performance of property
markets, significant assumptions adopted
and data used in the valuation and the
management’s critical judgmental areas;
BEIR BB AR S TR E ISR
B Rz EARR  HEMAZBERERE
B RS2 1l 8 -

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the
methodologies adopted in the valuation models;
and
B EERP AT E2 BN R

° Assessing the reasonableness of key inputs
used in the valuation by, on a sample basis,
checking to the publicly available information
and comparing the inputs to entity-specific
historical information.
NBERAEBREAR ARG ERTREETER Y
FEELER 2 MABELBTEEEMAZ EER
ANEZ&ERE -

=
1=
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Key audit matter

BEEITER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RAZENIEBERENSRETEE

Recoverability of amount due from an associate

FEW B 2 Al 56 2 AT B 1t

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of the
Group’s amount due from an associate was HK$671

million. As the amount due from an associate is

significant to the Group’s and its impairment requires

significant management’s estimates, the recoverability

of the amounts due from an associate is included as

key audit matter.

R2017F12 A31 B - EEEEREE A a KEME

#3671,000,000 BT ° EUEFE AT Z A EKIEBHE
REREFR  AREBERAFHEAEE ER

K ERER Eﬁﬁ{’ﬁﬂjijﬂﬁﬁ

The identification of impairment events and the
determination of impairment losses require the
management assessment of the recoverability of

the amount due from an associate by estimating of
future cash inflow of the associate. The preparation
of the cash flow projection involved the application

of judgement and subjective assumptions by the
management.

1

BMEEHIANRAERERATR2EEENGERER

/TQ\H#;KZEE%//\Lj\i ST FE U B 48 X |) R 2 1] 3] Uk

- BEREFAZREBEEREERE < HH M T8

R -

Our procedures in relation to the recoverability of the
amount due from an associate included:

BPTH AR A] R B U & R R 2 IR 7 B 4

—  Evaluating the management’ s assessment
as to whether there had been any indicator of
impairment of amount due from an associate
with reference to the financial information of the
associate.

—  LAgEAR TzﬁﬁkéﬂihﬂaﬁZpﬂé}*uﬁz
Bt N el B R B RERSE

—  Obtaining the cash flow projection from the
management and assessing its reasonableness
by checking to the relevant underlying
documents, such as agreements and valuation
reports.

— HEEERGHEIRERATABREANENFEH
XHpIma RMETHRE T EESIRME -
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

HttEH
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Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

EENRAEERAEBNGESMBERREA
AENEEE)

ERBGEAVBHRRE EFRETNE B
SEFELENEN  YEERBRTHE
HBEKERRNER  URERFKERLSE
SEFER RIEEAENK EREFR
HFIEE - HRHEEMBEROBRIER

BEEARABAREEE BERENEGEAH
BHREBIE

REMRET M BRRERZEE

BANBER SHHSAMBHRREBEST
FEANKFFRERMER ZEXBRR
MBS A IERE - RIBEEFE QBRI F 405
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

RBEARBETREMBRRABZEE

(%&)

o HESAYBHRNEBIZIN &
BNAR > BREE  AREETBR
REEHERBZHMER -

e Bt EREARERAXRKEHNHMG
ERERAR - BENEEE  NE
HRAMBRR]ERER - HMAEEE
EE  EERATEENEZITE - &
MAENERAERIEL -

FREMERIN RAEBBERARBAT
rEIMERTEE - BRRH  BEAETER
% - BREREMERE BRI LA EBE G e E
[EEPN Y=

HMEMABEERABRRER - FHARM
ENGEHBIEMNEBERERER I
HMfBEREA A RMERRETERN
BIMENMERENEMEIR  UREES
MBRT - A EIERE

HRABERARBBNEET - RIEE
L EEHNARGEMBERRNBIRSE
2 AmMBKERESSFE - RAEZBE
BEFRBELER  BIFARERTAR
AHABBEELEH AEBRFROBN
T MREEEHERMARETEEXER
ERNAEEERBBEEN IR - HAM
RETEERETBBLFHE -

87



*> \

/N

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT B & iR

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the HARBUYZEMBRENEAEBEERAR
independent auditor’s report is Wan Chi Lap. FE o

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu = e FEMR A EEAILT

Certified Public Accountants HEEG AN

Hong Kong B

23 March 2018 20184 3 A 23 H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS &4E% &

For the year ended 31 December 2017

B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ
2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
HtaE FET FEIT
(Restated)
(&=51)
Continuing operations BERSEEL
Rental income e WA 5 100,439 120,280
Sales of petrochemical products ARt TEMEE 5 90,143 48,814
Sub-contracting income IMIERA 5 715,158 -
905,740 169,094
Cost of sales and services $HE R ARTSAK AN (558,982) (53,622)
346,758 115,472
Dividend income from listed and EmRIEEMBESRERA
unlisted securities 5 23,494 5,216
Other income, gains and losses B - Was R EE 7 95,446 72,477
Change in fair value of held-for-trading #HEEBRE AR EEE)
investments 7,425 (12,189)
Administrative expenses T E A (295,430) (290,111)
Other expenses HihE A 12 - (22,318)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale & A it &R E U 75
investments - 28,190
Change in fair value of investment WEMEZ AR BEES
properties is] 55,285 69,995
Change in fair value of loan receivable Mt ARLTAT A Z EWE
with embedded derivative b A/N TN =) - 75,778
Finance costs 81758 8 (178,446) (173,161)
Change in fair value of structured HEEESRBSFZAAEED
finance securities 168 103
Share of results of associates b Ao N 311,112 12,917
Profit (loss) before taxation bR AT A (&E18) 365,812 (117,631)
Taxation BIE 11 (45,250) (39,436)
Profit (loss) for the year from continuing 4 1 2R B FRAE A8 & 5 765 )4 7
operations (E518) 12 320,553 (157,067)
Discontinued operation ERIEREER
Profit for the year from discontinued FARE BRI ST 5
operation 6 648 5,958

Profit (loss) for the year FRm A (EE) 321,201 (151,109)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS #RE#EH= R

For the year ended 31 December 2017

B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ
2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
HtaE FET FET
(Restated)
(gE5)
Profit (loss) attributable to owners of RN BES A B E R
the Company: (EB#8) :
— from continuing operations — REFELEE 259,834 (40,442)
— from discontinued operation — RESRIEREFETS 367 5,320
260,201 (35,122)
Profit (loss) attributable to non- FEVE ) e 2 B 415 F A8 A
controlling interests: (E8) :
— from continuing operations — REFEKEES 60,719 (116,625)
— from discontinued operation — RE BRI 281 638
61,000 (115,987)
321,201 (151,109)
Earnings (loss) per share (in HK BREF (EHE) (LEWLFIR)
cents)
From continuing and discontinued REFERE KK
operations
— Basic — HAR 13 11.29 (1.52)
From continuing operations RE B E TS
— Basic — HK 13 11.27 (1.75)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 4 E#ZR M2 EKE R

For the year ended 31 December 2017

B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAETL
(Restated)
(&&E75)
Profit (loss) for the year FRm A (EE) 321,201 (151,109)
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hih2mkz=(HZH)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or ~ T A[EAEZFZZEE -
loss:
Gain arising on revaluation of leasehold SHEEMEESE 2 Km
properties 41,097 14,608
Exchange differences arising on translation MmEEAVER =% 443,910 (424,732)
Income tax related to items that will not be NAIE5IE B 2 B FTEH
reclassified (5,216) (1,432)
Reclassification adjustments relating to FRHEBFINEBIER 2 E
foreign operation disposed of during the Fro A
year (1,776) —
478,015 (411,556)
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently — AIREIEEEA 1Ezs 2 2 B H -
to profit or loss:
Fair value gain arising on revaluation of AHEERESHELEZA
available-for-sale investments REWRZE - 28,173
Reclassified to profit or loss upon disposal REEHEERERFST
of available-for-sale investments EiEmK - (28,190)
Share of other comprehensive income (LB N R H b R E I
(expense) of associates (ZH) 25,710 (5,573)
25,710 (5,590)
Other comprehensive income (expense) for FREMEEMEE(EH)
the year (net of tax) (BR#H1&) 503,725 (417,146)
Total comprehensive income (expense) for the FR2EUW (2 H )&%
year 824,926 (568,255)
Total comprehensive income (expense) EEWE () BEREE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE7 Y =N 746,306 (433,084)
Non-controlling interests e 78,620 (135,171)
824,926 (568,255)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION &4 B &4t R &

At 31 December 2017
R2017F 12431 H

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 FET FAET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets REBEE
Investment properties wEME 15 2,583,770 2,355,619
Property, plant and equipment Y -~ WE & 16 3,918,338 3,744,918
Land use rights o+ 3 5B FR A 17 191,955 182,465
Goodwill EES 18 39,462 46,463
Interests in associates kN e 19 1,334,651 865,037
Structured finance securities EEEDRE S 21 6,999 6,831
Available-for-sale investments AR HERE 22 300,655 288,903
Loan receivables eI E TR 23 223,044 —
8,598,874 7,490,236
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 24 102,425 98,928
Available-for-sale investment AHEERE 22 606,242 —
Held-for-trading investments RHIEEERE 25 100,526 146,668
Trade receivables e Uk BR X 26 70,350 18,886
Deposits, prepayments and e BNRE
other receivables o th UK 27 311,364 697,014
Amounts due from associates Qi TNCI E=N 20 671,372 1,140,253
Loan receivables FEE K 23 - 407,682
Pledged bank deposits HEIRIRITIF R 28 844 1,730
Structured bank deposits B EIRITIEK 28 1,182,473 —
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 28 301,850 734,988
3,347,446 3,246,149
TOTAL ASSETS BEMAE 11,946,320 10,736,385




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION &4 B i& 4t R &

At 31 December 2017
R2017F 12431 H

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 FE FET
EQUITY [N
Capital and reserves EARR#EE
Share capital N 30 3,626,781 3,626,781
Reserves G 31 3,476,619 2,730,313
Equity attributable to owners of the KRS AEILRA
Company 7,103,400 6,357,094
Non-controlling interests JEFE = 385,093 233,711
TOTAL EQUITY R EE 7,488,493 6,590,805
LIABILITIES =Ei
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Borrowings BE 32 989,915 1,487,075
Deferred tax liabilities BELEFIRE R 33 232,383 214,412
1,222,298 1,701,487
Current liabilities nEBEE
Trade and bills payables BRI N EE 34 7,886 76,571
Accrued charges, rental deposits EEtER - AR &
and other payables H M AT X 35 948,746 717,056
Borrowings BE 32 2,241,205 1,621,026
Taxation payable IR 37,692 29,440
3,235,529 2,444,093
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEH8E 4,457,827 4,145,580
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BRAREEHAE 11,946,320 10,736,385
Net current assets BRBEE 111,917 802,056
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEAERREBE S 8,710,791 8,292,292

The consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to 230
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 23 March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Gao Jian Min

SERKE
Director &%

FEOBEEF20HZGAYBRRECEES
SR 2018443 A 23 H R A] M IR AE 1T I 48
THRERRRBER

Mr. Liu Tianni

BIR G EE
Director %
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HEREREBERR

EZ2017F12A31 HILFE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
KA TEE AELERE
Asset Investment Non-
Share revaluation revaluation  Translation Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
BE  EEEMERE REEHHE ERfE REER Rt FEGER RAAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FAT FAT FET FAT FAT FET
(Note)
(Hizt)
At 1 January 2016 R2016E1 A 1R 3,626,781 216,983 17 490,314 2,456,083 6,790,178 370,889 7,161,067
Loss for the year FRER = = = = (85,122) (35,122) (115,987) (151,109)
Other comprehensive income ENEM2ERE(ZHE)
(expense) for the year = 13176 {17 411,121) = (397,962) (19,184) (417,148
Total comprehensive income FREM2EYE ()
(expense) for the year ek - 13,176 (17) (411,121) (35,122) (433,084) (185,171) (568,259)
Dividend paid to non-controling H-ZHBRRZ I
interests of a subsidiary EmZERRE
(Note 42(c) (W 426)) = = = = = = (70,607) (70,607)
Capital injected from non-controling ~ —RMBA A2 FEiEsliE
interests of a subsidiary HELXRA = = = = = = 68,600 68,600
At 31 December 2016 12016512 A31 R 3,626,781 230,159 — 79,193 2,420,961 6,357,094 233,711 6,590,805
Proft for the year EREA — - — - 260201 260,201 61000 821,201
Other comprehensive income FREM2ERE
for the year — 35,881 — 450,224 — 486,105 17,620 503,725
Total comprehensive income FR2ENEERE
for the year — 35,881 — 450,224 260,201 746,306 78,620 824,926
Disposal of leasehold properties REGEA THERENE
under revaluation model — (12,899) — — 12,899 — — —
Dividend paid to non-controlling Eape A= VNG 3 ]
interests of a subsidiary ERzERRE
(Note 42(c) (W 420) = = = = = = @,101) 8,101)
Capital contribution from non- | NP
controlling interests of a subsidiary ~ HIAREB(HZ420))
(Note 42(c)) — — — — — — 83,763 83,763
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 36) HERBARHZ36) = = = = = = 2,900) (2,900)
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12 318 3,626,781 253,141 — 529,417 2,694,061 7,103,400 385,093 7,488,493

Note: Fair value change of available-for-sale investment measured
at fair value is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve, until the
available-for-sale investment is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

BARBEAEZAHEEREZAAEESR
PREME2EKERRAL RBENRES G
i EEZAHHERERBEHBE
ARER - ZRITNRESHFERERNR
AHRESERRE B ERER

oH 78 [5f] [(BR = 52



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #Z8HERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017

B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ
2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
k3 FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXK
Profit (loss) before taxation from REFELEEL ZBRBA
continuing operation i ) (E548) 365,812 (117,631)
Profit before taxation from B BRI T 2 BRELAY
discontinued operation s 3,480 8,806
Adjustments for: EE
Share of results of associates b oL N (311,112) (12,917)
Depreciation of property, plant VI - BB RERETE
and equipment 231,668 69,424
Release of land use rights = 3 {55 R AR 2 5 4,140 4,194
Finance costs 7% % A 178,446 173,161
Dividend income from listed L RIEETREMA
and unlisted securities (23,494) (5,216)
Interest income A EWA (90,995) (77,821)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale  H &Rt H &R &Yz
investments - (28,190)
Net loss (gain) on disposal of property, HE&EME « BERRKREZ
plant and equipment BB () F5E 3,145 (149)
Change in fair value of investment REMEZ AR EE
properties (55,285) (69,995)
Change in fair value of loan receivable KB # AR T4 T A Z B
with embedded derivative Bz AR BEZE - (75,778)
Change in fair value of structured HEEHEESRMBS CANE
finance securities ) (168) (103)
Change in fair value of held-for-trading #H{EEEREZ AR EEZSH)
investments (7,425) 12,189
Reversal of impairment loss on FERER #
inventories (27,678) —

Operating cash flows before movements &8 & & & )5 Y

in working capital KEEBR SN 270,534 (120,026)
Decrease in inventories FERL 30,895 1,226
Decrease (increase) in held-for-trading #{EE ZE&RE R (#h0)

investments 53,567 (45,859)
Increase in trade receivables i UK BR FRIE A (69,491) (6,789)
Decrease (increase) in deposits, e ENRREM

prepayments and other receivables FEMROR A (3 0) 159,639 (130,133)
Decrease in trade and bills payables FERTBR R R RiR (30,630) (179,192)
Increase in accrued charges, rental EEtER HBEE R

deposits and other payables A0 FE AT FRIE AN 66,809 87,092
Cash generated from (used in) REEBRE (A 2RE

operations 481,323 (393,681)
Dividend received B AR & 21,239 5,216
Interest paid ETHE (152,243) (158,787)
Tax paid BTN (17,441) (3,387)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REXBMB(FA)Z2ERE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 332,878 (650,639)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS L8R ERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F 12 H31 HIFF/ZE
2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
it FET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFXH
Addition of available-for-sale A ERE
investments (604,948) (22,500)
Purchase of property, plant and BAYE - BER&E
equipment (122,067) (50,128)
Settlement of construction costs AR A
payables (162,543) (228,446)
Interest received 2 W F 2 18,789 10,968
Net cash used in disposal of HENBARIMAZ FRE 36
subsidiaries (79,850) —
Repayment from an associate RE—KE =D AER 591,090 —
Advance to an associate B —REE R RIFIE - (18,878)
Advance to a third party BYE=F - (100,000)
Repayment from a third party KRE—RBEB=FZERK 224,555 22,321
Advance of loan receivables B EKE R (220,682) (155,450)
Receipt of loan receivables I Fog= 5 416,082 —
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEME -« BE RERERT
plant and equipment E QL] 81,714 668
Proceeds on disposal of available-for- & f]{ H &% &
sale investments FriS 7008 21,912 62,350
Proceeds on redemption of loan PERTIE I M A ] A DT
receivable with embedded derivative ZEWE TR Z PSR - 812,644
Capital injection to an associate M—XEENEZ2ER (77,606) (158,926)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits  JEEUE R IR1T1F K 976 26,283
Purchase of structured bank deposits BB 45 #& 1E R 177K (1,182,473) —
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REXK(FA)MBERS
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1,095,051) 200,906
FINANCING ACTIVITIES S E
Other loans raised Hin ERmE 680,413 1,053,346
Repayment of other loans BEEEMER (259,480) (371,275)
Bank loans raised BITEHREE 824,206 1,395,344
Repayment of bank loans BRIRTTER (1,338,852) (1,404,443)
Proceeds received on behalf of an R—FEBARAR— (L EEE
entity controlled by a director of the 2N AHCEN 2 FRIR
Company 375,688 —
Dividend paid to non-controlling H—RII2EHEEG M BRA A
interests of non-wholly owned Z ISR 2 B ANRE
subsidiaries (8,101) (70,607)
Capital injection from non-controling 3 —=X3E2 B A KK B QR
interest of a non-wholly owned Z IR HIRE R R B AT A
subsidiary — 68,600
NET CASH FROM FINANCING RMEXBREBRERE
ACTIVITIES 273,874 670,965
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE CASH HRE&RREZEE ML)
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HE (488,299) 321,232
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BE&RREESEENHE
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 734,988 459,665
Effect of foreign currency rate changes 4MNEE R &ig) 7 274 55,161 (45,909)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BHE&RRESEEREEA
THE END OF THE YEAR 301,850 734,988
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF H&RESZSHELHBIIT
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 301,850 734,988




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ

1.

General

Silver Grant International Industries Limited (the
“Company”) is a public limited company incorporated
in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
section headed “Corporate Information” in the annual
report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the subsidiaries of the Company
operate. For the convenience of the financial statements
users, the consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), as the
Company’s shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

The Company is an investment holding company and is
engaged in property investment and securities trading.
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
as the “Group”) are principally engaged in investment
holding, property leasing and production and trading
of petrochemical products and provision of sub-
contracting service. Details of the principal activities of
the Company’s subsidiaries and the Group’s associates
are set out in note 42.

—RER

REFEREXBERAR(ARA D/
FREBEMAINARARLDA - K
BRIOREBEBMERXZAAR AR
T Em - ARAREMPERRTEE
M E AU A F RO BEER B

PR -

HRARBERET AR ZIMBRARRE
ZEBRERBE 2GR  NRB 2B
BB R/ARE - ARNAR B ZBERE
RET - RENSBHREERE - K
FEMBRRIABITES -

RRABR/—REREERAR - LHEEY
ERERBHEE - ARAIREMBL
ARBAIAEE D FTERSERERE
I~ MEME RAm TEREENHE
EMREMIRY - XRARZHER R
RAEEREE R BB FHIE S R
42 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt &R R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F12A31 HILFE
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for
the first time in current year:

Amendments to Disclosure initiative

HKAS 7
Amendments to Recognition of deferred tax assets
HKAS 12 for unrealised losses
Amendments to As part of the annual improvements
HKFRS 12 to HKFRSs 2014-2016 cycle

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the
first time in the current year. The amendments require
an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments also
require disclosures on financial assets if cash flows from
those financial assets were, or future cash flows will be,
included in cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to
be disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flow;
(i) changes arising from obtaining or losing control of
subsidiaries or other business, (i) the effect of changes
in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values;
and (v) other changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ

2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure initiative
(Continued)

A reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of these items is provided in note 46.
consistent with the transition provisions of the
amendments, the Group has not disclosed comparative
information for the prior year. Apart from the additional
disclosure in note 46, the application of these
amendments has had no impact on consolidated
financial statements.

New and revised to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments'

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
and the related amendments'

HKFRS 16 Leases®

HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts”

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration'

Uncertainty over income tax
treatments®

Classification and measurement of

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23

Amendments to

HKFRS 2 share-based payment transactions'
Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial
HKFRS 4 instruments” with HKFRS 4

“Insurance contracts”’

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and

Prepayment features with negative
compensation?

Sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint

MBHR M
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HKAS 28 venture®

Amendments to Long-term interests in associates and
HKAS 28 joint ventures®

Amendments to Annual improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2015 - 2017 cycle?

Amendments to

Transfers of investment property’

HKAS 40
Amendments to As part of the annual improvements to
HKAS 28 HKFRSs 2014 - 2016 cycle'
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt &R R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F12A31 HILFE
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and revised to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets,
financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and
impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the
Group are:

all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets,
and that have contractual terms that give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”). All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

° in relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires
an entity to account for expected credit losses
and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition. In other words,
no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2017, the
Directors anticipate the following potential impact on

initial application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement

° Equity securities classified as available-for-sale
investments carried at cost less impairment as
disclosed in note 22: these securities qualified for
designation as measured at FVTOCI under HKFRS
9 and the Group will measure these securities
at fair value at the end of subsequent reporting
periods with fair value gains or losses to be
recognised as other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve.
Upon initial application of HKFRS 9, the fair value
gains relating to these securities, representing the
differences between cost less impairment and fair
value would be adjusted to investment revaluation

reserve as at 1 January 2018; and

° All other financial assets and financial liabilities will
continue to be measured on the same bases as

are currently measured under HKAS 39.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt &R R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F12A31 HILFE
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of the expected credit loss model of
HKFRS 9 will result in earlier provision of credit losses
which are not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s
financial assets measured at amortised costs and other
items that subject to the impairment provision upon
application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the
Company: if the expected credit loss model were to
be applied by the Group, the accumulated amount
of impairment loss to be recognised by Group as at
1 January 2018 would be increased as compared to
the accumulated amount recognised under HKAS 39
mainly attributable to expected credit losses provision
on loan receivables, trade and other receivables and
amount due from an associate. Such further impairment
recognised under expected credit loss model would
reduce the opening retained profits at 1 January 2018.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”,
HKAS 11 “Construction contracts” and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F 12431 HILFE
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS
15 in relation to the identification of performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as
well as licensing application guidance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt &R R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F12A31 HILFE
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more
disclosures, however, the directors of the Company do
not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will have
a material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognised in the respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts
on the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled
by a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and
finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and
is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all
leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and
leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured
at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the
impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the
classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents
upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows
in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those
classified as investment properties while other operating
lease payments are presented as operating cash flows.
Under the HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to
lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an
interest portion which will be presented as financing and
operating cash flows respectively by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F 12431 HILFE
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an
asset and a related finance lease liability for finance
lease arrangement and prepaid lease payments for
leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The
application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes
in classification of these assets depending on whether
the Group presents right-of-use assets separately or
within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were
owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a
lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or
a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has no non-
cancellable operating lease commitments as disclosed
in note 37. In addition, the Group currently considers
refundable rental deposits received as obligations
under leases to which HKAS17 applies. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such
deposits are not payments relating to the right to use
the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts
of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost
and such adjustments are considered as additional
lease payments. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits paid would be included in the carrying amount
of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits received would be considered as advance
lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt &R R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F12A31 HILFE
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may
result in changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised HKFRSs will
have no material impact on consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(“CO”).

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain
properties and financial instruments that are measured
at revalued amounts or fair values, as appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

FERAFTREET 2ERBMBRE
ZR(THRMBREER D) (&)

ERMBREENE 16 REE(E)

AN - SRAFTRE AT REEE FillAHE -
2V REEEE -

ARRIEFEY - BRAEMHE REE
ATV B R TS R & 2RI AT I B AS SR A
SHAKENERAPHERREKERY
@,

TEEFHE

RAMBHRRDBRETEEAMARR
2 BBYHRELEMNAREERBG
RS o N - BMEMBERREEER
BMEXZAMAERARESF EMAAT L
MR A D RFERBMEEI(T A BMEE])
MEZERBEEER -

BRETHERERIARNRERESR
NEMERKAAEBGER)FESN - K
RAVBRRREELRARELER
Bl o AR EBGRTERRMT ©

JE 2 AN — MR TS AR B an N AR A P
HREZRAAEETE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F 12431 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 “Lease”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value
in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transferred at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4&

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
The principal accounting policies are set out below:
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved where the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date of
the Group gains until the control date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F 12431 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interest. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including
re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group
and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt &R R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F12A31 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquire (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event
of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in another HKFRS.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and not larger than an operating segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt &R R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F12A31 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. When the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit, and then to the other
assets of the unit on a pro rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F 12431 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in
that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt &R R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F12A31 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment
loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an
associate. When necessary, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of
assets” as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate that are not related to the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F 12431 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in
the period in which the property to derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) and buildings held
for use in production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than construction
in progress) are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost or revalued amount less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4&

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress
is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Factory for the use in the production or supply of goods
or services are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less any recognised impairment
loss. For those leasehold land and buildings used for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at their revalued amount,
being the fair value at the date of revaluation less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses and
subsequent accumulated depreciation. Revaluations
are performed with sufficient regularity such that the
carrying amount does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at the end
of the reporting period.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
or fair value of property, plant and equipment other
than construction in progress less residual value over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F 12431 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of
leasehold land and buildings is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in asset
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses
a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase
is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount
arising on revaluation of an asset is recognised in
profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance,
if any, on the asset revaluation reserve relating to a
previous revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable
revaluation surplus is transferred to retained profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated
using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sales.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt &R R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F12A31 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Group will be required
to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related tax.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Other interest income from a financial
asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount
on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Commission income are recognised when services are
provided.

Revenue from the sale of petrochemical products is
recognised when the goods are delivered and titles
have passed.

Property management fee income is recognised when
management service is rendered.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on
a straight line basis over the term of the leases.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Sub-contracting income is recognised when services
are provided.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of
revenue from operating leases is described in the
accounting policy for leasing below.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt &R R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F12A31 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of
three categories: financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees, points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 3. FESHHEE(E)

Financial instruments (Continued) SRMIAE)

Financial assets (Continued) THEEE)

Financial assets at FVTPL RIBas RIZAN EEIER) £ B EE

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when EeREESRIEEENBENERR

the financial asset is either held for trading or it is BARERE  BemEEFSEAR

designated as at FVTPL. BaRIEANBERE °

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if: EREENUTER TAEABEES

=

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of e BEAZEWMETZAREHAH
selling in the near term; or Bk

e on initial recognition it is a part of an identified e REBIERAEBRBAANEELS—
portfolio of financial instruments that the Group EEM—IEAHNEMTAEAS
manages together and has a recent actual pattern H—Ho W ERNEAAEBERT
of short-term profit-taking; or ERHAERNALSE 5k

. it is a derivative that is not designated and e BRABEEEAMMTETIEN
effective as a hedging instrument. BERE—IHHHIA -

121



122

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4&

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial

recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement”
permits the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with any gain or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in note 45.
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EZ2017F 12431 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, loan
receivables, amounts due from associates, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments.

Equity securities traded in an active market and debt
securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale debt securities relating to
interest income calculated using the effective interest
method and dividends on available-for-sale equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other
changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of
investment revaluation reserve. When the investment
is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F12A31 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F 12431 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables which are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables, other receivables,
amounts due from associates, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When other receivables, trade receivables, amounts
due from associates are considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt &R R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F12A31 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered
to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments,
impairment losses on available-for-sale investments
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
investment revaluation reserve. For available-for-sale
debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed through profit or loss if an increase in the fair
value of the investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the impairment
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F 12431 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including borrowings, trade and
bills payables and other payables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt &R R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F12A31 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F 12431 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position
and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt &R R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F12A31 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of assets other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to
its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another standard, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease
under that standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F 12431 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of assets other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
standard, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that
standard.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before
taxation’” as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4&

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end
of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt &R R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F12A31 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period, except for
exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income,
in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HKD) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or
an associate that includes a foreign operation of which
the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F 12431 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of
acquiring land held under operating leases, are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt &R R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F12A31 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property
includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
as a finance or an operating lease separately based on
the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases, in which case
the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the entire consideration (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion
to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as “land use rights” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease
term on a straight-line basis except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold land
and building elements, the entire is generally classified
as if the leasehold land is under financial lease.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit
schemes for staff in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”), excluding Hong Kong and Macau, and
to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for staff in
Hong Kong are defined contribution retirement benefit
payments and are recognised as expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave) after deducting any amount already
paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the
liabilities” carrying amounts resulting from service cost,
interest and remeasurements are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that another HKFRS requires
or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revision to accounting estimate
is recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
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EZ2017F12A31 HILFE
4. Critical Accounting Judgments and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)
Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments that the
directors of the Company have made in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purpose of measuring deferred taxation arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties
of HK$2,5883,770,000 (2016: HK$2,355,619,000),
representing properties for commercial use are held
under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time, rather than through
sale. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred
taxation on investment properties, the directors of the
Company have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of these investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is rebutted. Accordingly, deferred
taxation in relation to these investment properties has
been measured based on the tax consequences of
recovering the carrying amounts entirely through use.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.
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4.

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Recoverability of amounts due from associates

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
HK$671,372,000 (2016: HK$1,140,253,000) amounts
due from associates. The Group assesses the
recoverability of the amounts due from associates on
individual basis, when there is objective evidence of
impairment loss on the amounts due from associates,
the Group estimates the future cash flow of amounts
due from associates for impairment testing purpose by
reference to the relevant underlying documents, such
as agreements and valuation reports. The preparation
of the cash flow projection involved the application of
judgement and subjective assumptions by management.
The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the amounts due from associates’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flow where the actual future cash flows is
less than expected a material impairment loss may arise
in future financial periods.

Fair value of investment properties and leasehold
land and buildings

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
investment properties and leasehold land and buildings
are stated at fair value of HK$2,583,770,000 (2016:
HK$2,355,619,000) and HK$292,251,000 (2016:
HK$277,407,000) respectively based on the valuation
performed by independent qualified professional valuers.
In determining the fair value, the valuers have based
on market value basis which involves, inter-alia, certain
estimates, including comparable market transactions.
In relying on the valuation, management has exercised
their judgment and is satisfied that the method of
valuation is reflective of the current market conditions.
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EZ2017F12A31 HILFE
4. Critical Accounting Judgments and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimated impairment of goodwill

In impairment testing, the Group determines the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which
the assets belongs. Determining whether impairment
needs to be provided requires an estimation of future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash generating
units. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. Details of the recoverable
amount calculation for cash generating units are set out
in note 18.

Revenue and Segment Information

Revenue from major products, investments and services
is analysed as follows:

BEAREHABRMEFTIREZEE
HR (&)

fhEt TRENEERR(E)
B Z AR w1

RREARAT - AEBEREZEEBR
ZREELBMZAIEKEE - RIRE
EEHERBHEELGAZRSESL
BB ZHRRERE - EREER
BERAKEBFARSELEE M 2R
KR RERAE RN EAGFER
B BERKRRERELS NG &
EEBEXRERBRE REELEBEMZA
WEE R EFEHFINME18

WA R D ERE R

ETE2EM  RERRBEEKRAD L

- B

2017 2016

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

(Restated)

(g=E751)

Rental income e A 100,439 120,280
Dividend income from listed and unlisted £ & IE EHEHFKRSUA

securities 23,494 5,216

Sales of petrochemical products AHtIERBEE 90,143 48,814

Sub-contracting income MIBUA 715,158 —

929,234 174,310
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EZE2017F 12531 HIFFZ
5. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

The Group is currently organised into three operating
divisions: (1) investments (including the results from
held-for-trading investments, available-for-sale
investments, structured finance securities and loan
receivables); (2) property leasing; and (3) production
and trading of petrochemical products and provision
of sub-contracting service. These operating divisions
are the basis of the internal reports about components
of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the
executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, in order to allocate resources
to segments and to assess their performance. No
operating segments identified by the chief operating
decision maker have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
disposed of its entire interest in Straight View and its
subsidiary, which engaged in the Group’s property
management operation (the “Property Management
Operation”). Property Management Operation was
classified as discontinued operation as described in
note 6.

Besides, the Group’s distressed assets operation and
sales of properties operation were not presented in
segment information, as the directors considered the
financial information related to these operations are
insignificant.

No segment assets or liabilities is presented as the
chief operating decision maker does not regularly review
segment assets and liabilities.

5.
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5. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued) 5. WARDIBER(Z)
Segment revenues and results DERARELE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and AT AR EREFECEER WA
results from continuing operations by operating and REBZEERRE -

reportable segment:

Production
and trading of
petrochemical

products and
provision of
sub-

contracting

service

Property AHMIEIER
Investments leasing £ER#HER Consolidated
k& NEHE RENIRE &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET 77T FET

Year ended 31 December 2017 HE-E-tEfZR

=+-ALEE

Continuing operations FEEEEK
Revenue WA 23,494 100,439 805,301 929,234
Segment profit ok Yl 53,055 97,888 88,519 239,462
Other unallocated income, gains and ~ EADEWA « Y RER

losses 69,420
Corporate expenses AREH (75,736)
Finance costs BHBER (178,446)
Share of results of associates b 2 NS 311,112
Profit before taxation B AT 365,812

Year ended 31 December 2016 BZE-2-AF1+=H

(Restated) S+-HLEFE(KES])
Continuing operations FEREER
Revenue WA 5,216 120,280 48,814 174,310
Segment profit (loss) Db ER(EE) 113,804 143,372 (213,951) 43,225
Other unallocated income, gains and ~ EfARDEMA « Iz R BB

losses 55,722
Corporate expenses ARER (56,334)
Finance costs HEER (173,161)
Share of results of associates RIS ARZER 12,917
Loss before taxation BHiAIEE (117,631)
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5.

Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3.

Segment profit (loss) represents the results of each
segment without allocation of items which are not
actively reviewed by the chief operating decision maker,
including other unallocated income, gains and losses,
comprising interest income other than those from loan
receivables, net foreign exchange loss, net (loss) gain
on disposal of corporate property, plant and equipment
and certain miscellaneous unallocated income. The
unallocated corporate expenses, finance costs and
share of results of associates are not allocated
into individual segment as they are under central
management. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

5.
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5. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

5. WARZHERE)

Other segment information Hib o HER
Production
and trading
of petro-
chemical
products
and provision
of sub-
contracting
service
BT
Property EmEE
Investments leasing K$#HER  Unallocated  Consolidated
RE NERE  REMIRE S ) &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Continuing operations
BELSEEK
Year ended 31 December 2017
BZ2017E12 31 ALLEE
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets:
BEREEN RN AERANTEE S5 |
Depreciation e - (2,835) (217,895) (9,243) (229,973)
Release of land use rights TifE SR = - (4,140) = (4,140)
Reversal of imparment loss on & FiEEE
inventories - - 27,678 - 27,678
Change in fair value of ERUSRESZ
structured finance securiies AR EE 168 - - - 168
Interest income from loan RSS2 RIS
receivables 22,157 - - - 22,157
Change in fair value of held-for-  #HEEERE AL ES
trading investments 7,425 - - - 1,425
Change in fair value of RENFE A BE
investment properties - 55,285 - - 55,285
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BERRBE
plant and equipment EVERFE - (76) (16) (3,030) (3,122)
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker:
EHRMATEEERREANEE
Capital additions EARE
— property, plant and — 0% BEREHE
equipment - 894 195,566 942 197,402
Interests in associates /Nl 3 - - 1,228,078 106,573 1,334,651
Share of results of associates ~ E{EEEATIEE - - 251,467 59,645 311,112
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5.

Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

5. WARSHERE)

Other segment information (Continued) Hitn BER (&)
Production
and trading
of petro-
chemical
products
and provision
of sub-
contracting
service
BAtT
Property EmiE
Investments leasing RHEER Unallocated ~ Consolidated
# MERE  RENIRSE ATHR e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT T AT TAT AT
Continuing operations
BELEER
Year ended 31 December 2016 (Restated)
BZ2016 512 A31 ALEE(KEF))
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets:
BEREEN DN AERINHEELEH
Depreciation ik - (2,581) (55,325) (8,757) (66,663)
Release of land use rights TR EEE - = (4,194) = (4,194)
Change in fair value of ERUSRESZ
structured finance securities ~ AAEZE 103 - - - 103
Change in fair value of loan MBERANTEIAL
recelvable with embedded RRERZ AnER
derivative 75,778 - - — 75,778
Interest income from loan EREFRZHE
receivables KA 16,755 = = = 16,755
Change in fair value of held-for-  BEEEREAALE
trading investments 2% (12,189) - - - (12,189)
Gain on disposal of available-  HEFLHERE
for-sale investments g 28,190 - - - 28,190
Change in fair value of REME AR EE
investment properties = 69,995 = = 69,995
Net gain (loss) on disposal LENE - BE R
of property, plant and REEECER
equipment ek - 220 - (1) 219
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker:
TAREATEEERRENSE
Capital additions EXRE
— property, plant and — 0% BEREHE
equipment - 7,603 77,557 1,721 86,881
Interests in associates YNl ) - - 823,680 41,357 865,037
Share of results of associates BB AN FIEE = = 28,955 (16,038) 12,917
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5. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued) 5. WARDHER(E)
Information about major customers FEEFEHR
During the year, revenue from an associate Zhong Hai RERN - AL AR EHR(EER
You Qi (as defined in the note 19) contributed over 10% MsE19) R A B BB i 2N &= B g A 48
of total revenue of the Group. Total sub-contracting BZ10% > AP EHREMNINTE
income and sales of petrochemical products generated WAKBEEARIETIERGTRERT
from Zhoug Hai You Qi was HK$715,158,000 (2016: nil) 2R & 715,158,000 70 (2016 F © )
and HK$80,957,000 (2016: nil) respectively. %.80,957,000 B C(2016 4 : ) o
Geographical information i35 & B
The Group’s operations are located in the PRC and AEEzEEMFERBREES - X%
Hong Kong. The Group’s revenue from external ERIMEEER I BMARERAEE Y
customers is based on the location of the Group’s 2B B DA EUS WA M aZ FE R BN & = A
operations to derive the revenue and information about IS ENER AT
its non-current assets by geographical location of the
assets are detailed below:
Continuing operations BEREER
Revenue Non-current assets
L ON FIRBEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
(Restated)
(&&7)
Hong Kong B 5,753 5,847 324,067 294,004
PRC s 923,481 168,463 7,744,109 6,900,498
929,234 174,310 @ 8,068,176 7,194,502

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments.

Wit FERBDEETEEEBMTH -
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6.

Discontinued Operation

On 28 April 2017, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement to dispose of a subsidiary,
Straight View, and its non-wholly owned subsidiary,
Beijing Yinda Property Management Limited (“Yinda”),
which carried out the Group’s Property Management
Operation. The sale and purchase agreement was
entered between the Group and the two directors of
Yinda (the “Purchasers”) and the total consideration for
this disposal was HK$31.7 million. The disposal was
completed on 30 June 2017, on which date control of
Straight View passed to the Purchasers and Straight
View and its subsidiary were ceased to be subsidiaries
of the Company.

The profit for the year from the Property Management
Operation is set out below. The comparative figures
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss have
been restated to re-present the Property Management
Operation as discontinued operation.

The result of the discontinued operation which has been
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
was as follows:

X

MBHR M

ERIEREER

R2017F 4288 » "&EBFIY—17
EEMBLENBARNRASEREHES
BEHEHBA T:HZE'\@ELW%EEEHBE
EFEQE([IRE])  ZRAREARE
BEra2NYEERER  ZEEHaH
AEEHERECMEBEZ(WES D
F5 0 BB ZRKE /31,700,000
Lo % HEE D R2017E6 8308 %
B WREREBES REMBARZ
T URBE S W= LI E R A R R 2 Y
BAR] -

FARBYEERER < m N EH
T -HFEBEaRkMAzHLBFE TE
EIM ERMEXEEEHIER—RERLE
Z«(**Zﬁﬁk

BREGABERAREBERLEREZ
WMEREERB 2 KERIIMT

2017 2016
HK$°000

HK$'000
FTET TET

Revenue WA 103,245 252,450
Cost of sales SHE AR (69,538) (170,101)
Other income, gains or losses Hal A -~ Wz K EsiE 2,048 6,674
Administrative expenses T E A (32,275) (80,217)
Profit before taxation R 15t A A A 3,480 8,806
Taxation ARG B (1,719) (2,848)
Profit for the year F 4 A 1,761 5,958
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 36) &M E Q72 &8 (M2 36) (1,113) —
Profit for the year from discontinued FRREBRIEREERS R

operation 648 5,958
Profit from discontinued operation RE BRI E B RT

attributable to:

— Owners of the Company — ARaEEER A 367 5,320

— Non-controlling interests — FEEH R 281 638

648 5,958

V&
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6. Discontinued Operation (Continued)

Profit for the year from discontinued operation includes

the following:

CRIERERE(E)

FRARBERIELEXBENBHE T

IHH :

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FEIT
Auditor’s remuneration % B RN BN <& - =
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BERSEZTE
equipment (1,695) (2,761)
Operating lease rentals in respect of land Tt REF 2 L FHLHHEE
and building (1,007) (1,454)
Staff cost ETEH (47,197) (107,566)
Interest income — bank deposits FEWA — RITIEH 217 612
Interest income — others FEWA — Ef 826 2,075
Commission income e WA 299 3,095
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEMERE K REEE
equipment (23) (70)
Government grants XA w8 b - 826
Other income NN 29 20
Cash flows from discontinued RECKRIEREEEZHER :
operation:
Net cash outflow used in operating KB TR TR F IR R
activities (46,951) (50,824
Net cash (outflow) inflow from investing KEZEG(FTR)MSER SN
activities (1,505) 15,484
Net cash outflow used in financing BVEEBFTAFE SR
activities (3,121) =
The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of =H - 2SHEWNBARICEER

Straight View and its subsidiary at the date of disposal

are disclosed in note 36.

&=
ZPREE S EE 36
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7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HtlA - EREE

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Restated)
(I E%)
Continuing operations BELSEER
Interest income FEUA
— bank deposits — R{TER 2,864 5,422
— amounts due from an associate — B —KEEE AR
(note 20) (HtzE20) 65,138 52,258
— loan receivables — BWER 22,157 16,755
— others — Hh 836 699
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) E R e (B18) F58 1,786 (3,439)
Net (loss) gain on disposal of property, HEWE  BWERXEZ(BE)
plant and equipment Wiz 558 (3,122) 219
Government grant B 423 B 3,869 =
Others H A, 1,918 563
95,446 72,477
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8. Finance Costs

8. HMHBEH

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Restated)
(=E51)
Continuing operations BESEER
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable HARAFRNBHEED
within five years RITE TN R 112,123 128,740
Interest on other loans wholly repayable AR RAFANRBHEEN
within five years EMEERE 66,323 49,421
178,446 173,161
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9.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

Remuneration

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the

directors and the chief executive were as follows:

ESRITRARME

B SAN TR EERITRERNHS
M

2017
Salaries
and other MPF
benefits  contribution Performance
Fees HER wEe bonus Total
e Hit @R e REA R
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FAET FET
(Note b)
(HizZh)
Executive directors YTES
Gao Jian Min (Note a) BER(Hita) 500 4,797 18 1,800 7,115
Liu Tianni EPNi 400 - - - 400
Ma Yilin (Note d SEKHHd) 400 - - - 400
Gu Jianguo (Note c) BB (fHc) - - - - -
1,300 4,797 18 1,800 7,915

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

FIMTEEMES DEARARRALE
BAEREHEERERRTGOME -

Non-executive directors F#HTES

Luo Zhenhong (Note e) BIRE(Hite) 500 - - - 500

Hui Xiao Bing BNE 500 - - = 500

Chen Qiming R 500 - - — 500

Chen Xiaozhou (Note c) RER(Hitc) = - = = =

Wu Songyun (Note f) RIDE(Hrz£1) = = - - -
1,500 - - - 1,500

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above

were for their services as directors of the Company.

FIERTEEME DEKNA/ALRFE

EZREME o

N
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9. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 9. EERTHARME (&)
Remuneration (Continued)

2017
CEE
and other MPF
benefits  contribution Performance
) HER wEe bonus Total
e Hit @R e REA R
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FAET FET
(Note b)
(HizZh)
Independent non- BYFHTES
executive directors
Liang Qing 25 400 - - - 400
Zhang Lu SRIH 400 - - - 400
Hung Muk Ming YN 300 - - - 300
1,100 - - - 1,100
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments EIEERITESTMES IEKAERR
shown above were for their services as directors of the AIREMBARZES 2 RBEME -
Company or its subsidiaries.
Total ok 3,900 4,797 18 1,800 10,515
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9. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 9. EERTHAIME (&)
Remuneration (Continued)
2016
Salaries
and other MPF
benefits contribution  Performance
Fees Hek @IS bonus Total
ikn H 2 X RREA k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Note b)
(Witb)
Executive directors YTES
Gao Jian Min (Note a) BER(Hita) 500 4,817 18 630 5,965
Liu Tianni IR 400 - - - 400
Gu Jianguo (Note c) BEE (fic) 400 = = = 400
1,300 4,817 18 630 6,765

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

Non-executive directors FHTES

EIHRTEEME DE /A RR AL
BB REBREMRGOME

Chen Xiaozhou (Note c) BRZRE(fitc) 500 - - - 500
Hui Xiao Bing BE 500 - - - 500
Chen Qiming R 500 - - - 500

1,500 - - - 1,500

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services as directors of the Company.

EIFERTEEME DEK AR REIK
HfERREEZREGHE -
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9. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 9. EERTHARME (&)
Remuneration (Continued)
2016
Salaries
and other MPF
benefits contribution Performance
Fees &k BEE bonus Total
we HAiiEH ik KA B
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Note b)
(Hatb)
Independent non- BUFHTES
executive directors
Liang Qing 25 400 = = = 400
Zhang Lu R 400 - - - 400
Hung Muk Ming YN 300 - - - 300
1,100 — — — 1,100
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments LB IERITEETMES IEKAERR
shown above were for their services as directors of the AINENBRARZEE ZREME -
Company or its subsidiaries.
Total fzk:) 3,900 4,817 18 630 9,365

No directors of the Company waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments in both years.

o

ZN
Cia

DA EFNMIEFRELE REETME
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9.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Remuneration (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Mr. Gao Jian Min is also the Chief Executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the chief
executive.

The performance related incentive payments are
determined having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

Mr. Chen Xiaozhou and Mr. Gu Jianguo resigned as the
director of the Company on 20 January 2017.

Mr. Ma Yilin appointed as director of the Company on 20
January 2017.

Mr. Luo Zhenhong appointed as director of the Company
on 28 August 2017.

Mr. Wu Songyun appointed as director of the Company
on 20 January 2017 and resigned his office from 28
August 2017.

Annual Report 2017

EERTBRERME (&)

HiaE

BERELERETAARRZITHAE
BREXBEERSE BERERT
BARB TR RGBS -

BRBER A2 ZE[ARR
RSB BREE

PR = B o 4 R B B S R 2017 1
A20 BB EARAIES -

BEMELN2017FE1 208 EE
EERRRES -

BIR AL EN2017FE8 A28 E L
TEARRRES -

RIMERAEN2017FE1 A0 EE

EAARFEERMA2017F8 A28
BB T HB -

—E— L FFR
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10. Employees’ Remuneration

X

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included
one (2016: one) director and the chief executive, details
of whose emolument are set out in note 9 above.
The emoluments of the remaining four (2016: four)
individuals are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt &R R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ

10. ETIZE&

AEBREHRSHATBE—(2016
F:)REFRTHEH  BE®
B F BN EXHEo e Hepm
(2016 4F : W)ZALTHBEIT -

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

(Restated)

(&&&E5)

Salaries and other benefits Fe hEMmEF 7,870 7,823
Performance related incentive payments WRIBER 2 S 23,760 2,292
Retirement benefit costs RORRE A 133 54
31,763 10,169

Their emoluments are within the following bands:

HENME N F THIRRE

Number of employees
EE A

2017 2016

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 BT E 2,500,000 7 7T - 2

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 & 7L & 3,000,000 77T - 2

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 & 7L ZE 3,500,000 77T 1 —

HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 7,500,001 AT 2 8,000,000 7 7T 2 —
HK$13,000,001 to HK$13,500,000 13,000,001 # 7= 13,500,000

HIT 1 —

4 4
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11.

Taxation

Continuing operations

11.

BiIE

FESEXR

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&=71)
Tax charge comprises: HEXHEE:
PRC Enterprise Income Tax — current tax Bt E TSR — BIE] 18,353 22,573
PRC Enterprise Income Tax — underprovision B FEFTER — B EIRE
in prior years T~ E 14,151 11
32,504 22,584
Deferred taxation: (note 33) FIERIE © (H17£33)
— current year — REE 12,755 16,852
45,259 39,436

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on
the estimated assessable profits for both years. No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong incurred
tax losses.

The taxation charge of the PRC Enterprise Income
Tax for the year has been made based on the Group’s
estimated assessable profits calculated in accordance
with the relevant income tax laws applicable to the
subsidiaries in the PRC.

The withholding tax arising from dividend income
received from PRC subsidiaries is calculated at
approximately 5%.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1
January 2008 onwards.

ME S 2 BB RIS T0 A TR RT BRI
EANIR16.5% 71 1E - HRARRRER
B MBARSSHBER - MUK
BRBEBNEN -

FRAZHBREEMSEHIIAEER S
ZHIB AR ARG ET O RBURFIHZE A
RS BOABIG EMS < BHIAS H -

REWER—KPEMERRRBKRAZ
BRI HIRIR A 5% B RFTEE

BIER B ERERBE(FERZED
RETBBAM B4R - 12008 £ 1
A1B# RAEBEZWBARERZH
K E25% °

V&
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11.

Taxation (Continued)

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit

or loss as follows:

1. BIE(E)

BRI

FATIBAR EERE

MBHR M

Bamix T HRARATERE

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
(Restated)
(@ E7)
Profit (loss) before taxation BRT AR (E518) 365,812  (117,631)
Taxation at the PRC Enterprise Income Tax TR B EMSHRE25% 2
rate of 25% T8 91,453 (29,408)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax  BE 576 R & 1S HIR B s B9 5 7%
purpose & 27,672 16,604
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax ?Mﬂi‘%ﬁﬁ AR A BT TS
purpose 52 (29,650) (45,447)
Tax effect of share of results of associates B(hHE DR EENTETE (77,778) (3,229)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERTIEEE E’Jfﬁﬁ“?ﬁé 5,173 75,901
Withholding tax arising from dividend income  UWELF BB A R IREWA 2 T8
received from PRC subsidiaries Eilp - 8,152
Withholding tax arising from dividend income U ER A B A i H E 4% &R B U A
received from PRC available-for-sale L TEARL
investment 1,786 —
Utilisation of tax losses previously not AT SR MERE B 2 M5 BT 18
recognised (303) —
Tax effect of change in fair value of WEMEBEEBNT L
investment properties 12,755 16,852
Underprovision in prior year ARTF E IR B 14,151 11
Income tax expenses for the year FAMEH X 45,259 39,436
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11. Taxation (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the tax effect relating to

other comprehensive income:

11.

UATERREME
#r

BIE (&)

2017 2016
Before-tax Tax  Net-of-tax [Elo]c:REN¢ Tax Net-of-tax
amount  expense amount amount expense amount
REAEE REXE BE#SE WlEE RExH  KiikeE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE7r FE7r FE7r FAT FAT FAT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(& E51) (& E51) (& E51)
Exchange difference arisingon ~ #EELZERER
translation 43910 - w3910 (42473 - 43
Reclassification of translation REEHBARKESZE
reserve upon disposal of ERRE
subsidiaries (1,776) - (1,776) - - -
Fair value gain on available-for- ~ AEHEREZ AR E
sale investments Uiz - - - 28,178 - 28,173
Reclassification of revaluation R EA i ER AR
reserve upon disposal of B R EHGHE
available-for-sale investments - - - (28,190) - (28,190)
Gain arising on revaluation of BiRENEEEL
leasehold properties W& 41,007 (5,216) 35,881 14,608 (1,432) 13,176
Share of other comprehensive ~ HHEHE AR 2
income (expense) of E2EUA(TE)
associates 25,710 - 25,710 (5,573) - (5,573)
508,941 (5,216) 503,725 (415,714) (1,432) (417,146)
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12. Profit (loss) for the Year 12.

Profit (loss) for the year from continuing operations has
been arrived at after charging (crediting):

Continuing operations

FRaEF (B8)

FARERBERLRB a8 (R
2R (GHA) -

2017 2016
LLEY Ol HK$'000
FTET TET

(Restated)
(#&=51)
Auditor’s remuneration ZE A B & 2,800 2,800
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 717 &k A5t A £ 92,332 47,947
Depreciation for property, plant and Y - BEREEZITE
equipment 229,973 66,663
Release of land use rights o $h {50 R A A 5 4,140 4,194
Operating lease rentals in respect of land and i MiEF 2 &@EHANHE S
buildings 1,133 1,545
Staff costs including directors’ and chief SETBHRBREEEN
executive’s remuneration 1T AR EL BN 159,541 115,292
Rental income under operating leases for KEMFE T LERN 2 HE K
investment properties, less outgoings of A+ HIBR 6,793,000 % 7T
HK$6,793,000 (2016: HK$5,675,000) (2016 % : 5,675,000/ 7T) (93,646) (114,605)
Reversal of impairment loss on inventories HFERER (27,678) —

Other expenses

Starting from the second half of the year ended 31
December 2013, the Group’s subsidiary Tai Zhou
United East Petrochemical Company Limited (“TZ
United East”) voluntarily suspended production due to
shortage of raw materials. Direct costs, such as wages,
depreciation expenses, consumables and other direct
attributable costs incurred by TZ United East during this
suspension period were recognised to profit or loss as
other expenses for the year ended 31 December 2016.

HtERA

R20183F 12 A1 B IEFEMN TFF
Fts - NEE 2B A RRMNERET
BRARN([RMNEEET B REMER
R BEREEEE - NEE20164512
A31 B ItHEARMNEEETIREEE
ESFEBENEENANG S T1EX
o B R REMEEEBERK AR ER
RERREMER -
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13.

Earnings (loss) Per Share

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic earnings (loss) per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on

the following data:

13. ERER(ER)
ARBHEABEREFEREELTH

SRR A BT (F18) THIR 16 T 7 B s
CERCE

Earnings (loss):
Earnings (loss) for the purpose of basic

earnings (loss) per share (profit (loss) for the
year attributable to owners of the Company)

Less: Profit for the year from discontinued
operation attributable to owners of
the Company

Earnings (loss) for the purpose of basic
earnings (loss) per share from continuing
operations

Number of shares:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of basic earnings (loss) per
share

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FEIT
(Restated)
(g=E51)
ER(EBE) :
RUAGTETRERRT (EE) 2
BN (EER) RRAE%HAR
AFEMRFEREF (E518)) 260,201 (35,122)
B RE BRI EBARRA A
BB AEEFERRT
(367) (5,320)
RAUGTEREFEBLEEB 2
BRERRR (EE) 2B
(E18) 259,834 (40,442)
2017 2016
In In
thousand thousand
TR FHE
BRGOHE :
RAUGESRERZH (EE) 2
TIN5 B AR AR (02X B
2,304,850 2,304,850
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13. Earnings (loss) Per Share (Continued)
From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic earnings (loss) per share
from continuing and discontinued operations attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

13. ERER(EE) &)
REFERCRIEEEXK
ARREBEABIEREFEREL L

BRBGNEREREN(EE)IIRET
SIBIEE EPATS -

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FEIT
Earnings (loss): ER(EE) :
Earnings (loss) for the purpose of basic R ESRERER(EE) 2
earnings (loss) per share (profit (loss) for the — &A| (&) (RATES
year attributable to owners of the Company)  AJE(EE R (EE)) 260,201 (35,122)
From discontinued operation RECARILREEL

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the
discontinued operation is HK$0.02 cents per share
(2016: HK$0.23 cents per share), based on the profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company
from the discontinued operation of HK$367,000 (2016:
HK$5,320,000).

No diluted earnings (loss) per share were presented as
the Company has no potential ordinary shares for the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

AR IH A 575 2 B ARE AR TN % & A
A9 %0.027% (L(2016 F : & %0.23
B ERREBERIELEEB 2K
N AR AJE R F A T 367,000 8 7T
(2016 4 : 5,320,000/ 7T) °

#H E2017F K20165F 12 A31H 1k
FE o BARAR A EEE T BRI
fn o B 2B R~ERESAEF (E
) -
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14.

15.

Dividend

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2017, nor has any dividend proposed since
the end of the reporting period (2016: nil).

14. BRE

R E E2017F12H318 R I £ &
S EZIRARE TAR G EERRK
R RARERFERRENEEZRZSRT
I B (2016 4F © £)

Investment Properties 15. REWE
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FET
Fair Value ARE
At the beginning of the year REH 2,355,619 2,443,340
Exchange adjustments T 172,866 (157,716)
Change in fair value recognised RIBRRER AR BEEE)
in profit or loss R 55,285 69,995
At the end of the year RER 2,583,770 2,355,619
Unrealised gain on property revaluation BEREERMEEMRZ
included in profit or loss REIH W 55,285 69,995
At 31 December 2017, the legal title of the Group’s M2017F12H31H & &

investment properties with carrying value of
approximately HK$24,762,000 (2016: HK$22,790,000)
situated in the PRC has not been passed to the Group.

ESET

NRAPBENEEDEZEREY
B 24,762,000 5
22,790,000 70 ) M EENRBFE EAR

T (2016 4 :

V&
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15. Investment Properties (Continued)

15. REWE(HE)

The carrying value of the investment properties KEYEZREERTE :

comprises:

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

Held under long-term

ARERA, T AR

lease/land use right: ARFE
— situated in the PRC — AR 32,869 30,335
— situated in Hong Kong — UREB 78,000 73,700
110,869 104,035
Held under medium-term VAR ERFR 4D, s {3 A R
lease/land use right: ARER
— situated in the PRC — IR 2,472,901 2,251,584
2,583,770 2,355,619
All the Group’s property interests held under operating FTEALEEERN A A ERE
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation NERNEERENMERSEIANRARE
purposes are measured using the fair value model EBAEtE  WHEKIERARENE -

and are classified and accounted for as investment

properties.
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15. Investment Properties (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process

The fair value of the investment properties of the Group
at 31 December 2017 and 2016 have been arrived at
on the basis of valuations carried out on the respective
dates by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited (“Vigers”)
and A-Plus Surveyors Limited (“A-Plus”), both are
independent qualified professional valuer not connected
to the Group. Vigers and A-Plus are members of the

Institute of Valuers of Hong Kong.

The fair value was determined by reference to
comparable sales transactions available in the relevant
market or by investment approach, where the market
rentals of all lettable units of the properties are
assessed and discounted at the market yield expected
by investors for these types of properties. The market
rentals are assessed by reference to the rentals
achieved in the lettable units of the properties as well as
other lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood.
The capitalisation rate adopted is made by reference to
the yields derived from analysing the sales transactions
of similar commercial properties and adjusted to take
into account the market expectation from property
investors to reflect factors specific to the Group’s
investment properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use.

The investment properties measured at fair value
subsequently to initial recognition, are grouped to Level
3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value are observable and the significance of these
inputs.

There was no transfer into or out of Level 3 for both
years.

15.

REWME#E)

MREFERMEERF

REBERIREYER 2017 F R 2016 F
12A31 B2 AR BEHEREE T EE
HEERARA A (AR ] KB
EMTERAR(MERE])  MEEASE
B EAENE A BB ER
ZAKMEBEETIHAE - BRI RE
ERMEMSBERKE -

RNRERSERBEM S Z A BN
HEXZHBREND AN ERAAN LA
MEBN 2 HSHEES RERREERL
BYERMEMNMSEREARET -
mSEEFEE2ECTREEMEE
iz & R EAA TR 2 BAYE -
BN RELEDNNEE < BEE
EMEZHER S RAENEREEY
MZHNHERMRBRAREIRENEL
GSRIIESE S

EEMEZARENS  WEZRE
RgRRERRERE -

BERERRZREMEAR A EF
B UYREBEABREAABZIERZE
BERZERZEBUZIEENDBARSES

o

RMEFEALIREE 3 FHEREA o
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15.

Investment Properties (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process
(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the management of
the Group works closely with the independent qualified
professional valuer to establish and determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs of the
valuation. Where there is a material change in the fair
value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will
be reported to the management of the Group.

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable input (Level 3)

The following table shows the valuation techniques
used in the determination of fair value for investment
properties and the key unobservable inputs used in the
valuation models.

MBHR M

15. REWE(HE)

DRMER

ERMERRF(E)

RBEHR - AEEZEEEREBLA
BREXGEMBEESENELIMETE
BEFHERMEFEESR - FEEZR
REAEXREY  HEH AEAKER
ZK%%IZE@E#& s

BRAEATIRKBRZELETELR
EZEH(FEI3HE)

TRETANKRENERAEFEZF
B R AR EEA P EE A HE
m2ER -

Relationship
of unobservable
Valuation Range of inputs to fair value
Description Fair value at 31 December  techniques Unobservable inputs unobservable inputs FORBEZEER
ER R12A31AZARE BaEE FAHBEZES FIHBREEEEE MMEZBE
2017 2016 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEn AT
Office 25,570 23,549 Investment approach (i)  Capitalisation rate 6% Slightly higher the
HAZ RERE pN @ik capltalisation rate,
slightly lower the fair
value
BAMCHENS  DrE
e
(i) Market rent RMB121 — RMB120 — Slightly higher the market
[k RMB131 per  RMB130 per rent, slightly higher the
square meter  square meter fair value

per month permonth  THEEEHE  DrE
SASYRXAR BABTHIAAR &

B2 — #1207 —

AR#131 7 ARE1307
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15. Investment Properties (Continued) 15. REWME(E)
Fair value measurements and valuation process AREFERGERRF(Z)
(Continued)
Information about fair value measurements using BRAEAFIHEBRZEETEAR
significant unobservable input (Level 3) (Continued) BEZER(FE3H)(E)
Relationship
of unobservable
Valuation Range of inputs to fair value
Description Fair value at 31 December  techniques Unobservable inputs unobservable inputs FURBEZEEH
B M12A31 AZARE F FAHBRZES TURBR 2 ERHE MAfEZBE
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx T
Carpark 164,466 162,902  Comparison approach Adjusted transaction ~ RMB4,787 —  RMB3,723 — Slightly higher the
e BRI price RMB7,446 per  RMB7,446 per  adjusted price slightly
TRAERSHE square meter  square meter higher the fair value
BYARARE BTARARY HEENS 2ifE
47817 — 37237 — &
ARMT 46T  ARET 4467
Commercial A 1,030,012 948,661 Investment approach (i)  Capitalisation rate 6% 6% Slightly higher the
L RERA BRI capitalisation rate,
slightly lower the fair
value
UN @S RN
i
(i) Market rent RMB71 — RMBT70 — Slightly higher the market
mishE RMB138 per  RMB135 per rent, slightly higher the
square meter  square meter fair value
per month permonth  WHEEHS  AnE

SASTAX  BAREAA e
ARETIT— ARE0L—
AR®138T  ARE1S T

167



D 4 X

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt &R R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BZE2017F 12431 HIFF/E

15.

Investment Properties (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process

(Continued)

Information about fair value measurements using

15. REWE(HE)

DREFEBRMEERF(E)

BREEAT I RBRZERTEBAA

significant unobservable input (Level 3) (Continued) BEZEHR(F3H)(E)
Relationship
of unobservable
Valuation Range of inputs to fair value
Description Fair value at 31 December  techniques Unobservable inputs unobservable inputs FUHBEZEER
&R R12B31 AZARE i TARBEZER FIHBEEEEE MMEZBF
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEn AT
Residential A 1,260,960 1,134,017 Comparison approach Adjusted transaction ~ RMB42,978 —  RMB42,169 —  Slightly higher the
et HE R % price RMB49,908 per  RMB46,739 per  adjusted price rate,
BRERS(E square meter  square meter  slightly higher the fair
BYAKARE BIARARE value
08T — 21001 — SHEEHR AiE
AR®49908 7 ARB4679T fiF
Residential B 78,000 73,700 Comparison approach Adjusted transaction ~ HK$24,600 —  HK$21,039 —  Slightly higher the
i L8 A% price HK$28,384 per  HK$29,889 per  adjusted price rate,
BRERSE square feet square feet slightly higher the fair
8YAR BEAR value
246908 — 21,0941 — GHEEHR ARE
28,384 7870 29,8897 C6)
Commercial B 24,762 22,790  Comparison approach Adjusted transaction ~ RMB49,609 —  RMB44,444 —  Slightly higher the
BEL 190 price RMB50,000 per  RMB47,987 per  adjusted price rate,
BRERGE square meter  square meter  slightly higher the fair
BYRKARE BEFRARE value
49609 — 44— EHRENE ARE
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. ¥ - BERRE
Leasehold
land and Furniture Factory,
buildings Leasehold and Office Motor plantand  Construction
HELH  improvements fixtures equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total
k¥  HENREE BARRE BAERE A& IE BERAR ERIR At
HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT & AT AT & AT
COST OR VALUATION HAESGE
At 1 January 2016 R20165181A 278,030 7,882 14,651 15,722 38,238 195,196 3,569,417 4,119,136
Exchange adjustments Eige (1,067) (318) (1,247) (1,050) (2,266 (167,627) 87,182) (260,757)
Transferred upon completion 52421 - - - 1,481 - 3,465,335 (3,466,766) =
Addttions NE - 7,122 3,909 1,916 5,020 1,583 72,738 92,288
Disposals e = = (328) (734) (3,250) - - (4,312)
Revaluation B 6,235 - - - - - - 6,235
At 31 December 2016 R2016%F12 8318 283,198 14,686 16,985 17,285 37,742 3,494,487 88,207 3,962,590
Exchange adjustments EXSE 402 514 350 293 1,786 261,804 18,529 283,728
Addttions "E = = 9 508 3,536 8,399 186,740 199,192
Disposals e (16,830) - (20) (627) (1,800) (67,807) = (87,084)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAA = - (11,162) (12,185) ©911) - - (33,258)
Revaluation Bfy 32419 = = = = = = 32419
At 31 December 2017 R2017512 /318 299,189 15,200 6,162 5274 31,353 3,696,933 293,476 4,347 581
Comprising: B :
At cost RAAE = 15,200 6,162 5,274 31,353 3,696,933 293,476 4,048,398
At professional valuation — #2017 £ 2 Z£(5E
2017 299,189 - - - - - - 299,189
299,189 15,200 6,162 5,274 31,353 3,696,933 293,476 4,347,587
DEPRECIATION il |
At 1 January 2016 R201651518 5,465 7,882 7,092 10,987 23,734 107,609 - 162,769
Exchange adjustments Eigz (741) (100) (440) (716) (1,363) (8.995) = (12,355)
Provided for the year FEEE 9,440 2,47 1171 1,593 3,651 51,322 - 69,424
Eliminated on disposals HEREE - - (298) (663) (2835 = = (3799)
Eliminated on revaluation R (8.373) - - - - - - (8.379)
At 31 December 2016 R2016%12A318 5791 10,029 7,528 11,201 23,187 149,936 - 207,672
Exchange adjustments ERa% 100 257 (5) 159 1,165 20,115 - 21,791
Provided for the year FREE 9,725 2,344 919 1,014 3,532 214,134 - 231,668
Eliminated on disposals i EREE = - (16) (589) (1,620) - - (2,205)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - (7.427) (8,374) (5,178) - - (20979)
Eliminated on revaluation SR (8,678) - - - - - - (8,678)
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12A318 6,938 12,630 999 3411 21,086 384,185 - 429,249
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2017 R2017612 8318 292,251 2,570 5,163 1,863 10,267 3,312,748 293,476 3,918,338
At 31 December 2016 R2016F12 5318 217407 4,657 9,457 6,084 14,555 3,344,551 88,207 3,744,918
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B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ
16. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continueqd) 16. ¥ - BERREE)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, BREZETIEIINAEYE  BEMEEZ
except for construction in progress, are depreciated on HE AT ZFEHUESEENE
a straight-line over the following years:
Leasehold land and buildings 50 years or over FHE i MEF 50 F sk LA
the lease term, FAAFELAE A%
whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements 3 years HEWEEE 3
Furniture and fixtures 10 years R A 106
Office equipment 5 years N 5%
Motor vehicles 6 — 10 years YRE 6 — 104
Factory, plant and machinery 10 — 20 years TR~ B M z3 10 — 204F
At 31 December 2017, the legal titles of the Group’s M2017FE12HA31H » REF A&
properties and a container terminal with carrying BzYERERXBBTEZERAEN A
value of approximately HK$35,022,000 (2016: 35,022,000 £ (2016 4F : 32,233,000
HK$32,233,000) and HK$150,857,000 (2016: 7 7T ) & 150,857,000/ JT(20164F :
HK$108,610,000) situated in the PRC have not been 108,610,000 % 7T) < KRB EAR
passed to the Group. £E o
The carrying value of the leasehold properties HEWEZREERTE :
comprises:
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Long-term leasehold properties situated in RSN RAHEEM S
Hong Kong 247,880 218,250
Properties under medium-term land use right 7 A B8 LA 7 HA - 3t {5 FH
situated in the PRC - 2S¥ER0kES 44,371 59,157
292251 277,407
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE2017412 531 HIFFE
16. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 16. ¥ - BERREE)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group disposed certain of leasehold properties. The
accumulated fair value change of HK$12,899,000 was
reclassified from asset revaluation reserve to retained
profits.

The fair values of the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings at 31 December 2017 and 2016 have been
arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out on the
respective dates by Vigers and A-Plus. The valuations
were arrived at using direct comparison method
by reference to sales evidence as available on the
market. The revaluation surplus on revaluation of the
leasehold land and buildings amounted to approximately
HK$41,097,000 (2016: HK$14,608,000) was credited to
asset revaluation reserve.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use.

The leasehold land and buildings measured at fair
value subsequent to initial recognition are grouped to
Level 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value are observable and the significance of these
inputs.

There was no transfer into or out of Level 3 for both
years.

MR2017F12A31HER  AEEEH
EETHEYXE - 2 AR EBEEH A
12,899,000 B T HEEEHREE

FIERBEF o

ANEBHEE L RIEFR2017F
%2016 12A31H 2 A £ B Ty &
REE T REERZBREL 2 EE
IS o AT E DR EELEEE
K2R EEMTT IS A IS R85 & BiK
mMETE HETHWREFELANE
¥ 4) /41,097,000 sT(20164F :
14,608,000 7T) B L EFF ABESE G
Tt o

WEEMERZAREBEMNE  WEZEA
RzR&mRRERR -

BARRRZEELHREFYEUR
REFE  IRBABERAABZEES
ZRERZEEZERE 2 EENER
EARE I

RAEFEAREFE 3 FHEREA -
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BZE2017F 12431 HIFF/E

16. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable input (Level 3)

The following table shows the valuation techniques used

in the determination of fair values for the Group’s major
leasehold land and buildings and the key unobservable

16. Y% - BERRE(E)

BRAEATTHERZESAELR
EZER(E3H)

TRBTFARARARASEE 2 T EH
EL BT AR EFEZFERM
EARHEEAR TR A RBR 2

inputs used in the valuation models. B o
Relationship
Range of of unobservable
Valuation unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
Description Fair value techniques Unobservable inputs FIHBEL FURBE2EER
&R M B FARBEZER EEEE AAEZBE
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$'000 HKS000
A7 &
Office A 35,022 32,233 Comparison approach Adjusted transaction ~ RMB37,114 —  RMB32,000 —  Slightly higher the
N LB price RMB37,234 per  RMB37,500 per  adjusted price rate,
BRER5E square meter  squaremeter  slightly higher the fair
BYAKARE  BIARARE value
3,147 — 20007 — SHAEEME ArE
AR®3.284 ARM375007T &
Office B 228,300 200,500  Comparison approach  Adjusted transaction ~ HK$42,567 —  HK$41,922 —  Slightly higher the
N 8RE price HK$51,195 per  HK$52,231 per  adjusted price rate,
ERERSE square feet square feet slightly higher the fair
BYRR42567 BYAR492  vale
BT —51,15 B —52231 EARENR ARE
BT BT i
Residential 23,085 37,415 Comparison approach Adjusted transaction ~ HK$4,793 — HK$3,390 — Slightly higher the
€ B2V price HK$13,483 per  HKS$11,303 per  adjusted price rate,
BRERGE square feet square feet slightly higher the fair
§YAR4798  HFAR3390 value
BT —13483 BT 11003 EERENT LnE
B BT e
Car park - 424 Comparison approach Adjusted transaction ~ N/A RMB160,000 —  Slightly higher the
S L8R price TER RMB170,000  adjusted price rate,
ERERGE per car park slightly higher the fair
space value
BEFESEN LARENS Anf
AR%160000 H®
T— ARE
170,0007C
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B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ

16. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 16. ¥ - BERREE)
Information about fair value measurements using BRAEXRTUHBRZEEFEAR
significant unobservable input (Level 3) (Continued) BEzER(E3E)(E)
Certain leasehold interest in land cannot be allocated ETHELH EREAA SRS
reliably between the land and buildings elements, the T REFE D - Bl HERERS
leasehold interest in land continues to be accounted for BB RBME « WE REE -

as property, plant and equipment.

If leasehold properties had not been revalued, they WHEEMERTEMN  AZSEWES N
would have been included at a historical cost basis at [ESE K ARELEDBR AT ¢

the following amounts:

HK$’000
FET

COST R
At 1 January 2017 R2017%1 A1H 157,074
Disposal HE (8,142)
At 31 December 2017 B2017F 12 A 31 H 148,932
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION R2ItInE
At 1 January 2017 R2017%1 A1H 113,841
Provided SE 9.775
Eliminated on disposal o & B RN (6,948)
At 31 December 2017 M2017%12 A31H 116,668
CARRYING VALUE ARMEE
At 31 December 2017 R2017F 12 A 31 H 32,264
At 31 December 2016 MR2016 412 A 31 H 43,233
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B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ
17. Land Use Rights 17. LTERARE
HK$’000
FEIT
cosT R
At 1 January 2016 R201641 HA1H 199,615
Exchange adjustments TN (12,956)
Released for the year FE (4,194)
At 31 December 2016 R 2016412 A31 H 182,465
Exchange adjustments TN 13,630
Released for the year FEEHE (4,140)
At 31 December 2017 201712 H31 H 191,955

The land use rights of the Group were held under
medium-term lease in the PRC and released over the

term of the lease of 50 years.

AEE 2 L fE RAERA A B AT H
HERBWABE RS0 FH#H -

18. Goodwill 18. &H&
HK$’000
FET
COST R
At 1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 MR20164F1A1HK12 A31H 72,987
Disposal of Straight View HE#ES (33,525)
At 31 December 2017 R 2017 %F12 A 31 H 39,462
IMPAIRMENT B
At 1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 MR2016%F1A1HK12 A31H (26,524)
Eliminated on disposal of Straight View S E S 26,524
At 31 December 2017 MR2017%12 A31 H —
CARRYING VALUE AR
At 31 December 2017 R2017412 A31 H 39,462
At 31 December 2016 R2016 412 A 31 H 46,463




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ

MBHR M

18. Goodwill (Continued) 18. BHE(#)

Included in the carrying value of goodwill as at 31
December 2017 and 2016, HK$39,462,000 has been
allocated to cash-generating unit for production and
trading of petrochemical products (“Unit B”).

As at 31 December 2017, the recoverable amount
of Unit B has been determined based on a value in
use calculation by Pan-China Appraisal Co., Ltd. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period based on the estimated production capacity of
Unit B with a discount rate of 10.26% (2016: 14.70%).
Cash flows after the five years period are extrapolated at
zero (2016: zero) growth rate. Another key assumption
for the value in use calculation is the budgeted
revenue and gross margin, which is determined based
on the unit’s past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, there is
no impairment required as at the end of the reporting
period.

Included in the carrying value of goodwill as at 31
December 2016, HK$7,001,000 has been allocated to
the CGU for property management (“Unit A”), which was
eliminated in the disposal of Straight View during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

B2 R2017 F & 2016F 12 831 H 2
2 IR E {E 39,462,000 B T RO B E A
EXEERREIERZRESESEN
ZBREE(EAB]) ©

72017F 12 A31H » E (B2 A [
WeEAAREXEENHERARE
REREBEFEEBT - sTEAEER
mERE B ERGRTEMBZEE
B8 71 LA10.26% (2016 £ : 14.70%) °
MRERFENSFHRBEEMSNE S
mIER - HESF 2 H S RHETETAST
(20164 : T)FHBRE - FHAEE
%m%fEI%P*EEEWA&%ﬂ
C DIRBEM BARRERERELH M
%%@Zﬁ%%mo

ARRBZEFERRBR/RAREHRIL
RARMEBEZER -

BENR2016F12A31BZ2EE &
HE{E7,001,0008 TS REYEER
ZHeBUEREE(EMLA]D  AEK
HR2017F 12 A1 AL ERRA -
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EZ2017F 12 H31 HIFF/ZE
19. Interests in Associates 19. BEQTER
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FEIT
Cost of investments in associates — unlisted Efa A TR EKANE— JFE LT 826,376 693,584
Share of post acquisition profits and other BEWEERANREMAEE
comprehensive income, net of dividends Wz« MBREWARE
received 508,275 171,453
1,334,651 865,037
Details of each of the Group’s associates at the end of NEEZEEANTNFBERT R T
the reporting period are set out in note 42(b). 42(b) °
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EZ2017F 12 H31 HIFF/ZE

19. Interests in Associates (Continued) 19. BEE QTR (E)
Summarised financial information of material BENRMEERNEE
associates
Summarised financial information in respect of each of AEBFGREE AR ZMBERFEES
the Group’s associate is set out below. The summarised IR o MR 2 &R ERRE TR
financial information below represents amounts shown REtERB 2 BHRER 2 SEEREER
in the associate’s financial statements prepared in ISR A ER AMARE -

accordance with HKFRSs.

All of these associates are accounted for using FiEZEHE A r XA R EFTA
the equity method in these consolidated financial RE TSR A ©
statements.

Zhong Hai You Qi
(Taizhou) Petrochemical Cinda Jianrun Property

Company Limited Company Limited
(“Zhong Hai You Qi”) (“Cinda Jianrun”)
PR (EM) AL EEEBHERRALT
BRAF(FEER]) (K533
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000
FEx FET FE F&T
Current assets MENEE 4,279,565 3,598,260 1,198,212 1,288,222
Non-current assets FREEE 7,945,472 7,830,014 33 32
Current liabilities mEAE (4,388,777)  (4,775,148) (843,002) (1,150,397)
Non-current liabilities FRBAE (4,114,810) (4,157,125) - —
Revenue WA 19,003,632 2,978,084 = =
Profit (loss) for the year FRm A (E1E) 762,022 87,742 198,816 (63,459

Other comprehensive (expense) FREAM2E (T H)
income for the year Wz 76,375 (21,254) 1,688 4,803

Total comprehensive income  ERZ2EKEGZH)

(expense) for the year 1Bxs 838,397 66,488 200,504 (48,656)
Dividend received from FNUERE & R E) 2
associates during the year s - = - =
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B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ
19. Interests in Associates (Continued) 19. BEE QTR (E)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial i AR E R B N R A B TS ik
information to the carrying amount of the interest in R B E R AR REERN A
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:
Zhong Hai You Qi Cinda Jianrun Total
hEHR REER
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T3 FEn TAT FEn TET
Net assets FEE 3,721,450 2,496,001 355,243 137,857 4,076,693 2,633,858
Proportion of the Group’s ownership A& Z BB ER A5 33.00% 33.00% 30.00% 30.00% N/A N/A
interest (Note) (Note) THEA TER
(Hit) (Hiz)
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEEERERE
interest 1,228,078 823,680 106,573 41,357 1,334,651 865,037
Note: Zhong Hai You Qi is an associate of Tai Zhou Dong Mz - RBmREAKEER A A M
Thai Petrochemical Company Limited (“TZ Dong Thai”), BRFE - BMREA(EBRAA
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. During (IRMERS]) @B AR - 12017
the year ended 31 December 2017, TZ Dong Thai and F12A 31\H\Zfﬁ A 'j,% M 3R %’%
other shareholders of Zhong Hai You Qi made additional &ﬁ it 7 i ﬂﬂ&ﬁ&ﬁ E o
capital injection to Zhong Hai You Qi on proportion of H %ZH& 1 LE B ¥ R U ﬂfﬁﬁg\
their shareholding in Zhong Hai You Qi. The additional %7‘\%75&7\ > ZM ifﬁﬁj\ # %7|\
capital injected by TZ Dong Thai was RMB66,493,000 ﬁ xAR 7—“%566,\49(3,00071(*9 =
equivalent to approximately HK$77,606,000 (2016: 5/\‘\?“)97”7'6060007% 733(20\16%:
RMB136,879,000 equivalent to approximately A R %136,879,0007C 48 & 1% 49
HK$158,926,000). There is no change in proportion of 15?:926'Q907%£) c REARAR
shareholding after this capital injection. WL A RRAELL BB -
20. Amounts Due from Associates 20. EWBEQRK
The amounts as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are Br 12016512 H31H * % ®H 363,750,000
unsecured, interest-free and are expected to realise PETTRE LA S M % 13.5% 5T IR B A + R
in the next 12 months from the end of the reporting 2017 % 2016 F 12 A31 A 2 £ 815
period, except that as at 31 December 2016, an RERH - %8 RBHRAREHRE
amount of HK$363,750,000 borne interest at 13.5% per 12 AARERE -
annum.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BFE2017F 12 A 31 HIFFE/E
21. Structured Finance Securities

The structured finance securities represent a debt
security with interest payments based on the return
from United States Treasury Bond and distribution from
preference shares in a private company which invests
in a portfolio of asset-backed securities. Expected
maturity date of the debt security is Year 2021. The
structured finance securities contain an embedded early
redemption option and the return which is determined
by reference to the distribution from the private
company which is dependent on the annual default
rate of its underlying asset-backed securities and the
return from United States Treasury Bond. The Group
designated the entire structured finance securities as
financial assets at FVTPL at initial recognition.

The fair value of the structured finance securities is
determined by the directors of the Company with
reference to the valuation provided by the counterparty
financial institution at the end of the reporting period.
This fair value is determined by reference to the value of
a comparable new issue of the similar structured finance
securities under the market situation as at 31 December
2017 and 2016.

21.

FEMERES

RBUESRESEEBES - HAER
BIREXBEBEBERSFMEE —FKLA
RABEBRND Z DK E - ZALARTE]
KREN-MEERRFRES - RBEFEF
ZTEHE| B 52021 F - HRAEREIE
T RE S RALR T B QN B HRIARA
RAZDIORFELBURN AR B EYE
REHFZ FROXNEBEBREGRZE
H AKERENDEBESRESNE
RERAREASNBERE A ERE
MEBRBEE -

RARERR - ERESREBEFNAR
(EDVERAYNGIE =23 E o S E el
BIRHMNGHEMERE - %o AER R
B@IRE R 2017 F k2016512 A31 H
B TS AR N R 1T BB AL 1 A9 R L
HEEHESRES CEBMGAFED -
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B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ

22. Available-for-sale Investments

Available-for-sale investments comprise:

22, TMHHBERE

AHEEREEE

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Unlisted investments: FEHRE :
Unlisted equity securities, JELTRRARFES
at cost (Note a) B AGH(Hiita) 274,552 285,360
Club debentures, at cost BATES - RAARE 5,613 5,613
Unlisted fund, at fair value ELETEESERALER
(Note b) (Hiztb) 628,802 —
908,967 290,973
Less: Impairment loss recognised Ji - BERERIBEBE (2,070) (2,070)
Total &5t 906,897 288,903
Presented as non-current assets SHRIERBEE 300,655 288,903
Presented as current assets 2N REEE 606,242 =
Total &5t 906,897 288,903
Notes: B -
(@)  Unlisted equity investments represent investments in (@) FETMBRAEBELFTDERERBLAE

unlisted equity securities issued by private entities. The
business of these companies include, but not limited
to power and financial services. They are measured at
cost less impairment at the end of the reporting period
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
so significant that the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured
reliably. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group entered into a sales and purchase agreement
with an independent third party to dispose the unlisted
equity securities of RMB19,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$21,912,000) at the consideration of RMB19,000,000
(equivalent to HK$21,912,000). No gain or loss on
disposal was recognised in the profit or loss.

BETZIIELMBRAES - 25 A0
ZEBOEBETBERRE N RS RRG
1T% - AREETISNEE AR EE
BAK AARBZERREERAR
BEEEASEE  AZERET
RIRERRURAIBRREFTE - R
B E2017F12A31BE R K&
BE—(IBYE=FUAKFELEAR
# 19,000,000 7T (18 & 7 21,912,000
BI)EEELELTRAEFZARE
19,000,000 7t (48 & 721,912,000 %
T0) o EHE 2 WSk B IR RN B
&A e
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B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ

22. Available-for-sale Investments (Continued)

Available-for-sale investments comprise:
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(0)

On 24 November 2017, a subsidiary of the Group
entered into a trust agreement with the National Trust
Ltd. (“National Trust”). National Trust is a non-banking
financial institution regulated by the China Banking
Regulatory Commission and is an independent third party
to the Group. Pursuant to the trust agreement, the Group
invested RMB500 million in a portfolio of investment
managed and maintained by the National Trust (“Trust
Scheme”). The purpose of the Trust Scheme is to invest
in mergers, acquisitions and reorganisations funds
through certain limited liability partnerships formed under
the Trust Scheme specifically for investing in mergers,
acquisitions and reorganisations funds.

Pursuant to the term of the trust agreement, the Trust
Scheme shall last for an initial term of one year and
shall be renewable for another year or terminated at the
option of the Group.

The fund is measured at fair value subsequent to initial
recognition and grouped to level 3 based on the degree
to which the inputs to the fair value are unobservable
and the significance of these inputs.

22. AHHERE®)

AHHERERE (&)

Hret - (&)

(o)

R2017F11 A24 8 KEBZ— K
MEBARHEBERETAERAR(TER
fEE DIzt BR{ELAE—
MEHEBRTEEEEEZESRE
ZIHRTEREBRAEE 2 BILE
=5 REZETHE  AEERE
AR # 500,000,000 TR EE 2 &
HBEREXEEELES - 5itstdlz
ENAZRABRRETHEKSE THERE
BERZERES - WBREAES -

RIEZEFEHH  EETEHEER
BRSNS R —FRAURIEEE
—F R ILERERTE -

ZESNERERRBRAAEHER
YREABEAABZEEZERR
ZERZERUEZRENERESE -
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B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ

23. Loan Receivables

23. EWERN

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FEIT

Non-current : 1577 /8
Fixed-rate loan interest receivables (Note a) EBERKER(Aita) 223,044 =

Current: wE :

Fixed-rate loan receivables (Note b) EBRWER(MZDb) - 155,450
Variable-rate loan receivables (Note c) FREWER(M ) - 252,232
223,044 407,682

Notes:

(@)

As at 31 December 2017, an amount of US$20,900,000
(equivalent to HK$163,020,000) is unsecured,
guaranteed by Taizhou Xin Bin Jiang Development
Limited(“TZ Xin Bin Jiang”) =MFTELFAZEEFE LA R([F
JNFr7ET 1), a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
of the Group, carries fixed interest rate at 4.75% per
annum and repayable in Year 2019.

As at 31 December 2017, an amount of RMB50,000,000
(equivalent to HK$60,024,000) to an independent third
party is unsecured, carries fixed interest rate at 4.75%
per annum and repayable in Year 2020.

As at 31 December 2016, an amount of US$20,000,000
(equivalent to HK$155,450,000) was unsecured,
guaranteed by TZ Xin Bin JiangZ= /N #7178 I, a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group,
carried fixed interest rate at 4.5% per annum. The loan
was repaid in full during the year ended 31 December
2017.

As at 31 December 2016, an amount of HK$252,232,000
was secured by the equity interest of the borrower,
carried floating interest rate at 25% above the People’s
Bank of China (“PBOC”) interest rate. The loan was
repaid in full during the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Group assessed the financial strength and

repayment ability for the borrowers, in the opinion of the

directors of the Company, the risk of non-recoverability

of the amount is minimum, and no impairment is

considered necessary as at 31 December 2017.

Hiet

R20174E 12 A31 B » —2820,900,000
% o(H & ® 163,020,000 7T ) & £
iR AAEEZ KB RAIMIE
THIRE - FMFELIHAEERT AR
(TZRMFETDRE - Wi 4.75% &
TEFF R B A 2019 FEIE -

R2017E12A81B —F AR¥
50,000,000 7t (#8 & 1 60,024,000 7%
)T UBLE=) - ZEBERRE
B WiR4.75% BT FF Rt B R
#5R 2020 FEE -

R20164E12 531 B, Efh—2820,000000
Et(H & % 155,450,000 7T ) =
B AAEEZ —RWHBARKMIE
IR R - FNFBEIREET QA
ReE WIRA5%EEFEF KB
ZEREE2HR2017F12 A31 HE
= ©

R20164F12 431 A+ £%8262,232,000
BT A R ARSI - A
FERERBARRIT(TARRIT]
BEERK FF 5% 8 ° ZfERER
FR2017 512 A31 BEE -

AEBE D FHEERAZ M BN MIE K

BE )
A 31

A RRANBREEFEER  R2017F 12
BRREWREZERE 2 ERERE

RARBHEERRE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BZE2017F 12431 HIFF/E

24. Inventories

24, 78

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET F&T
Consumables JHFEm 10,287 45,105
Raw materials E MR 92,138 53,823
102,425 98,928
25. Held-for-trading Investments 25. HEEERE

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET F&T

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, REB EMHRARS
at fair value BRARER 100,526 146,668
Fair value of listed held-for-trading investments were FIEEEREZ AN ERHERMISZ

based on quoted market bid price in the active market.

BEAREERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt &R R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

B Z 2017412 H31 AIFEE
26. Trade Receivables 26. FEWEER

The Group allows a credit period of 30 to 60 days to its AEEGTEESIRFI0E60HEFEMA

trade customers.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice dates at the end of the

/HH o

THRZERB RBEREZ RIRKER
2 WARER B HIRG 2 BRIV AR

reporting period, which approximated the respective IR 2 BREQ AT ¢

revenue recognition dates:

2017 2016

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

0 to 30 days 0% 30H 70,350 12,074
31 to 90 days 31HZ90H - 2,432
91 to 180 days 91 HZE 180 H - 1,412
181 to 360 days 181 H= 360 H - 1,403
Over 360 days H#1# 360 H - 1,565
70,350 18,886

REE 2 RUKRFE BN RE B EA

The Group’s trade receivables that are neither past due

nor impaired are those debtors with satisfactory credit
quality under the management’s assessment and with
good past repayment records.

As at 31 December 2016, included in the Group’s trade
receivable balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$5,530,000 which were past due at the
end of the reporting period for which the Group had not
provided for impairment loss. The Group did not hold
any collateral over these balances. The average age of
these receivable was 269 days.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group’s trade
receivables, HK$62,600,000 was due from the Group’s
associate.

ELRER - BEREEEF GRRABR
ERABRENEREERNERTENE
BA e

R2016F 12 A31H » ANEE Z fEW
BR 7% BR T {8 2 #% 5,530,000 7 JT 1A A 3R}
HHRE B HMEAREEIRBIERAES
1B o REENR B HZ AR A IR
o ZEWERF Z FHIERER A 269 A °

MN2017E12 8318 BHERAER
Z [ Y BR FX AR 62,600,000 78 7T /& AN £
B 2 fE U B & N R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ

26. Trade Receivables (Continued)

26. EWRM(E)

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not

FEY R TR E I BB I R ORE 2 BR e )

yet impaired: T

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FETL
31 to 90 days 31HZ=90H = 1,150
91 to 180 days 91H=180H - 1,412
181 to 360 days 181 HZ360 H = 1,403
Over 360 days H#1# 360 H - 1,565
- 5,530

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts: HIRERCEE) -
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FETL
Balance at beginning of the year REX &R 3,551 3,801
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 36) T EKB R R (A 36) (3,669) -
Exchange adjustments JEH R 118 (250)
Balance at end of the year R AEER - 3,551

As at 31 December 2017, no allowance for bad and
doubtful debt was made to the trade receivables. As at
31 December 2016, included in the allowance for bad
and doubtful debts were impaired trade receivables with
an aggregate balance of HK$3,551,000 which were
aged over one year.

R2017F12 A381 8 ' R A EWER K
ZEBREME - R2016F12 8318 ¢
BEREREG ZRERKRRZ B4
#: 3,551,000/ 8 LARIRE BB —F -

V&
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ

27.

28.

Deposits, Prepayments and Other

Receivables

27.

BE - AR HEAMERK

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Value-added tax receivable (Note a) Al B 2 SEERR (Mt a) 223,479 266,144
Loan interest receivables B E K F & 15,023 60,873
Amount receivable from a third party (Note b) FEW—{UE=ERESE (K1 b) - 220,540
Others HAth 72,862 149,457
311,364 697,014

Notes:

(@) Amount being the value-added tax recoverable from
the purchase of property, plant and equipment and raw
materials by a subsidiary, TZ United East. The amount
will be subsequently utilised to offset the value added tax
generated from sales of goods in the future.

(b)  Amount being the receivable from an independent third
party. The amount was unsecured, interest-free and was
expected to realise in the next 12 months from the end
of the reporting period. The amount was settled in full
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Pledged Bank Deposits, Structured Bank
Deposit and Bank Balances and Cash

The Group’s pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest
rate with effective interest at an average of 0.35% (2016:
0.30%) per annum and an original maturity of one year
or less. Pledged bank deposits represent deposits
pledged to banks to secure settlements for certain of
Group’s purchase of raw materials.

The structured bank deposits are interest rate-linked
principal protected deposits entered with banks in the
PRC which are repayable on demand. The counterparty
banks guaranteed 100% of the invested capital and the
returns of which were determined by reference to the
fluctuation of Interbank Offered Rate of PRC and the
effective interest rate of these deposits range from 1.0%
to 1.8% per annum.

28.

Kzt

@ U —RMBLAE - FMREMCTE
BEME - BiE MR EREME 2 AR
B2 AT - 5% 78 0 F MR EE L
THRAABENEEEmES 2EE
Bt o

b) WH—UBYE=—FZEWRZEE-
ZEeHEEERWT 2B REHARE
HRZAKRI12EAER - £BE2HR
HE2017F12 A31 HRE -

BEHEBTER  £B8MHETERR
RITERRES

RNERE 7 EIPRITIFHAFIH0.35% &
B E 5 F F R 5 B(2016 6 : 0.30%)
KAEEEHE A —FAR o FIRIRTT
FRARNRERAEESZNBEETR
MELZ ERMER FIRITZFRK °

EREERITFAREN R ER SR ERA
REM R IBITEI RN E ERE
3K o B IRITIRFE 100% 2 & RA K&
[B] 3 A2 /5 FR B 4R 17 [R) ZE 37 AR 3R R AR %
GREBREFER1.0%E1.8% °
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28. Pledged Bank Deposits, Structured Bank

29.

Deposit and Bank Balances and Cash
(Continued)

The Group’s bank balances and cash comprise cash
and short-term bank deposits carrying prevailing market
deposit rates with effective interest at an average
of 0.07% (2016: 0.25%) per annum and an original
maturity of three months or less. Included in the Group’s
bank balances and cash at 31 December 2017 was an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$1,453,354,000
(2016: HK$649,742,000) respectively which was
denominated in RMB and is not freely convertible into
other currencies.

Pledge of Assets

At 31 December 2017, the Group pledged certain
investment properties, leasehold land and buildings,
land use rights and factory, plant and machinery
with an aggregate carrying value at the end of the
reporting period of approximately HK$2,424,730,000
(2016: HK$2,205,246,000), HK$228,300,000
(2016: HK$200,500,000), HK$131,791,000 (2016:
HK$182,465,000) and HK$737,486,000 (2016:
HK$719,823,000) respectively to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 32), other
loan (note 32) and other payable to an independent
third party (note 35).

At 31 December 2017, the Group pledged HK$844,000
(2016: HK$1,730,000) bank deposits to secure
settlements for certain of Group’s purchase of raw
materials.

28.

29.

ERBRITEN SBUERTEIR
RITEBRRRE(E)

AEBZRITEHRESBRERE RHA
BEHAAZEASUR - ARITER
T HISFREFE0.07% (2016 F :
0.25%)sr BM R HARITE R - AN E
R2017FE12 A1 B 2R IT &% KR
% B 1E B #)1,453,354,00075 76(2016
F 1 649,742,000 L) e A AR &
FHEREN - WARTHERLIAAHM

BEEEH

R2017F12A31H A& B B #§ H
RAFBRERREFERALEI AR
2,424,730,0007% JC(20164F : 2,205,246,000
7 7T ) ~ 228,300,000 (2016 £ :
200,500,000 7T) +131,791,000/87C(2016
F 1 182,465,000 7% 7T ) & 737,486,000/
JL(2016 4F : 719,823,000/8 L) 2% T 1% &
Y HETHRETF THFERAER
T - BRE R EIREARNEEER
T MRITEE ARG (HTEE32) -
HER(WEI2) R—BBILE=F
B E fib FE S SR (BIRE35) o

R2017F 128318 A & @ #§ H
844,000787C(2016 4F : 1,730,000 7T)
ZHRITERERAEREAEBBAE T
R Z B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt &R R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F 12 H31 HIFF/ZE

30. Share Capital 30. B4
Number Nominal
of shares value
RHEE fHEE
In thousand HK$’000
FAR FET

Issued and fully paid EZTREMERE
At 1 January 2016 and R20164%F 1 81 HK2016F &

31 December 2016 and 2017 2017412 A31 H 2,304,850 3,626,781




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ
31. Reserves 31. f#fE
Attributable
to owners
of the Non-
Company controlling
PN interests Total
BB AER FERER ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
Asset revaluation reserve EEEMhGRE
At 1 January 2016 R2016F1 818 216,983 — 216,983
Gain on revaluation of leasehold properties BHEEME KA 14,608 - 14,608
Deferred tax liability arising on revaluation of EEMEENEELEY
leasehold properties EEHEEE (1,432) = (1,432)
At 31 December 2016 R20164 12 A31 H 230,159 — 230,159
Gain on revaluation of leasehold properties ERTEENENE 41,097 = 41,097
Deferred tax liability arising on revaluation of BEEENEEEL
leasehold properties EETREEE (5,216) = (5,216)
Disposal of leasehold properties HEMEME (12,899) - (12,899)
At 31 December 2017 R2017% 12 A31H 253,141 — 253,141
Investment revaluation reserve REEMhGERE
At 1 January 2016 20161 A1 R 17 - 17
Change in fair value arising on revaluation of BRI HEEREES
available-for-sale investments NREES 28,173 - 28,173
Reclassified to profit or loss upon disposal of REETHEEREESE
available-for-sale investment Bak (28,190) - (28,190)
At 31 December 2016 and 2017 R2016 %2017 %12 A31 H — — —
Translation reserve ERwE
At 1 January 2016 ®2016F1 818 490,314 10,976 501,290
Exchange difference arising on translation HEEAZERES (405,548) (19,184) (424,732)
Share of reserves of associates BinmENRRE (6,573) = (6,573)
At 31 December 2016 R20164F 12 A31 H 79,193 (8,208) 70,985
Exchange difference arising on translation BEEEZERES 426,290 17,620 443,910
Share of reserves of associates B{OHE DR 25,710 = 25,710
Reclassification adjustments relating to foreign ~ BARAEE HESNELE
operation disposed of during the year |k (1,776) - (1,776)
At 31 December 2017 2017512 /31 529,417 9,412 538,820
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32. Borrowings

32. &

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FE&T
Bank loans — secured and unguaranteed RITER — BEAREER 1,594,238 2,034,867
Bank loans — secured and guaranteed |ITER — BERARBER 420,168 =
Other loan — secured HEMER — HiKH 447,081 664,329
Other loans — unsecured HaEHR — EEH 769,633 408,905
3,231,120 3,108,101
Carrying amounts repayable: JEEZEZ RS :
Within one year —F2ZNA 2,039,524 1,416,515
More than one year, but not exceeding —F A EE
two years NiBiE —F 359,663 566,763
More than two years, but not more than —FHAEE
five years TNEBERAF 126,050 406,919
Over five years HBimAF 504,201 513,393
3,029,438 2,903,590
Add: Carrying amounts of bank loans I BERENRER
containing a repayment on demand IEX IR E R ek PrE 2 78
clause (shown under current liabilities) TEERZBITERZ
with scheduled repayment set out in the BRE$ 5
loan agreements due: FIRTEBERE) :
— within one year — —%FZR 201,682 202,830
— more than one year, but not — —FA LA
exceeding two years BB = 1,681
201,682 204,511
Less: Amounts due within one year shown Ji - R—F 2 AEIEN S &
under current liabilities nBABZEHE (2,241,205) (1,621,026)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilites  JAIERSTBEZ S5 989,915 1,487,075
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32. Borrowings (Continued) 32. BE(#Z)

Bank borrowings are secured by certain investment
properties, leasehold land and buildings, land use rights
and factory, plant and machinery for both years. Details
are disclosed in note 29.

As at 31 December 2017, bank loans of the Group
of HK$200,000,000 (2016: HK$200,000,000) are
denominated in HKD, which are not denominated in
the functional currency of the Group. The bank loans
carry floating rates at Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR”) plus 2.5% (2016: HIBOR plus 2.5%),
i.e. effective interest rate of 3.38% (2016: 2.89%)
per annum. Bank loans of HK$1,682,000 (2016:
HK$4,510,000) are denominated in HKD, functional
currency of the relevant group entities, and carry a
floating rate of prime rate minus 2.7% (2016: prime
rate minus 2.7%) per annum or effective interest
rate of 2.3% (2016: 2.3%) per annum. Bank loans
of HK$240,096,000 (2016: HK$390,625,000) are
denominated in RMB, functional currency of the relevant
group entities and carry floating interest rate at 30%
(2016: ranging from 110% to 118%) of PBOC one-year
interest rate or effective interest rate of 5.655% (2016:
4.785% to 5.137%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2017, bank loans of
HK$240,096,000 (2016: nil) are denominated in RMB,
functional currency of the relevant group entities and
carries floating interest rate ranging from 50 basis point
to 81.3 basis point (2016: nil) plus Shanghai Pudong
Development Bank (“SHPB”) one-year loan rate or
effective interest rate ranging from 4.85% to 5.163%
(2016: nil) per annum. These loans are guaranteed by
TZ Xin Bin Jiang Z=M# &L .

As at 31 December 2017, bank loan of HK$180,072,000
(2016: nil) are denominated in RMB, functional currency
of the relevant group entities and carries floating interest
rate at 48.5 basis point plus loan prime rate or effective
interest rate at 4.785% (2016: nil) per annum. This
loan is guaranteed by a subsidiary of a state-owned
enterprise.

RTEERETREYNE HETHRE
FooAMERERIR - BEREERW
FEEA o FHEHIINME29 -

R2017F 128318 & £ B & &
17 B 200,000,000/ JT(20164F :
200,000,000 7T ) JhAB T B - M
BT IEAREE 2 E I - RITE XK
U2 BN RIZBBRITREREIES
IRITEZEFRE 1I12.5% (2016 F : $R7T
RZEFEMN2.5%) @ BEFFEDH A
3.38% (2016 4 : 2.89%) ° & &N 1 A
AN EBIR R 2 RITE K 1,682,000 %8
JC(2016 4 : 4,510,000 ) AHE &
ERRIMINEEEE BT REN - 5B
FEAEIEKREBEFNEF2.7% (2016
F:REBMNERF2.7%) K E R FF
K2.3% (20164 : 2.3%) 5t B o A&
iR 717 B 7X240,096,0008 7T(2016 :
390,625,000 7T ) RIAA REE BB
HEBERARIMINEEEE RIEAREIT—
F 2R BT E30% (2016 1 £iF10% =
18% ) [ i 2k DA B B £ 1 % 5.655% (2016
& 4785% E5.137%) °

MR2017F12 381 H - R 17 B X
240,096,000 % 7T(2016 4F « & ) Jy LA
ARBEABEMNIYRHAEE 2NEE
M RIRREBNE 2 ZEHE LF50
Z=81.3A2 (20164 « &) L E)8H
RERRIT(LERRBERBRIT]) —
FERFHNESEEFENERL485%E
5.163% (2016 4F : &) - ZBEREHFE
MEFTETIER -

R2017F 1283818 & 17 B X
180,072,000/ JC(2016 4 : £ ) J A
ARBGBEMTREEEE 2R
Rz BBMNE 2 ZEFE L)F485
ERNERFREA4785% (2016 4F :
) ZERTHh —REBREEZHE
NAELR o
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32. Borrowings (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, other loan of
HK$447,081,000 (2016: HK$664,327,000) payable
to a subsidiary of a substantial shareholder was
denominated in RMB, functional currency of the relevant
group entities, which is secured by certain factory, plant
and machineries and carries floating interest rate at
110% (2016: 110%) of PBOC three-year interest rate
or effective interest rate of 5.225% (2016: 5.225%) per
annum.

As at 31 December 2017, other loans of
HK$769,663,000 (2016: HK$358,124,000) payable
to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries were
denominated in RMB, functional currency of the relevant
group entities, which are unsecured, bear fixed interest
ranged from 5.35% to 7.5% (2016: 5.35% to 7%) per
annum and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2016, other loan of HK$50,781,000
was denominated in HKD, which is not denominated
in the functional currency of the Company, and was
borrowed from a shareholder of the Company which is
unsecured, bears fixed interest at 4% per annum. The
amount was repaid in full during the year ended 31
December 2017.

The remaining bank loans of the Group are denominated
in RMB, functional currency of the relevant group
entities and carry floating interest rate ranging from
110% to 135% (2016: 115% to 135%) of PBOC over
five-year interest rate or effective interest rate of 5.390%
t0 6.615% (2016: 5.635% to 6.615%) per annum. As at
31 December 2016, bank loans of HK$468,750,000 are
denominated in RMB, functional currency of the relevant
group entities and carry floating interest rate ranging
from 105% to 110% of PBOC five-year interest rate or
effective interest rate of 4.988% to 5.225% per annum.

32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt &R R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ

BE#E)

R2017F12A31H H i B X
2 447,081,000% (20164 :
664,327,000) X T — B A a2 —
MERBRREREAARB BEAN - ZHE
EBNRZMEEES REN - WHET
THR - s R e R ARRIT=
F2ZBH R FIF10% (2016 F © £)F
10%) 3k JA B BR & F % 5.225% (2016 5F
5.225%)aT & °

MR2017F 128318 H 8 B X
2 769,663,000 JL(2016%F :
358,124,000 7t ) % - T FE 4% il AR 3
ZHBRRIAANRE BEM - LAME
BEBARZINGEEE BN AER
A DRREEFHMNES35%£E7.5%
(20164 : 5.35% 2 7%)EEMREE
Rk o

R2016F 128318 E i B X 2
50,781,000 T = A B T At B B
7 - MIALIERRARZNEEEE RBARR
A —BREMEL - WEKR - RETE
FRHERA%FERNEERER - %e
HE 2HEN2017F12A31 BFE N

o

(Al

AEBMWEKIBITERARBEE QR
WINgEEEARKABEMN  WERAR
RITAF 2 ZBHE EF10% E35%
& (2016 F : £)F15% ZF35%) 3k A
PR H K& B A 5.890% = 6.615%
=t B(20164F : 5.635% £ 6.615%) °
R2016F 128318 R 7 B X
468,750,000 ST LAMEE R Al M e &
MARBRBEN  WEARBITAFEZ
SEBF R IF 5% 2 10% & E 5k A B B
FRREM R 4.988% £ 5.225% 1 8. ©
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33. Deferred Taxation 33.

The followings are the major deferred tax assets and
liabilities recognised and movements thereon during the
current and prior years:

IR TH

UFARAEE RN EENESD R’
RBTBEEERA ERENABRR
PRE{or

Accelerated  Revaluation
tax of Tax
depreciation properties losses Total
MERBITE MESR BBEE wE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FBTT FAT FAET
At 1 January 2016 R2016%1 418 (55) (197,881) 1,808 (196,128)
Charge to profit or loss for the year RAREEBHKIHR
(Note 11) (Hizt11) - (16,852) — (16,852)
Charge to other comprehensive RAEEE 2 EKENR
income for the year — (1,432) — (1,432)
At 31 December 2016 R2016%12 318 (65) (216,165) 1,808 (214,412)
Charge to profit or loss for the year RAEEEHKIGL
(Note 11) (Hizt11) - (12,755) - (12,755)
Charge to other comprehensive RAEE B2 BRI
income for the year — (5,216) — (5,216)
At 31 December 2017 R20174612 A318 (55) (234,136) 1,808 (232,383)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
unused tax losses of approximately HK$1,021,645,000
(2016: HK$1,002,165,000) available for offset against
future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of approximately HK$10,957,000 (2016:
HK$10,957,000) of such losses. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$1,010,688,000 (2016: HK$1,065,180,000) due to
unpredictability of future profit streams and such tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

RAREBIR - ANEB A AT HURCR K
B AR BB BB 49 1,021,645,000
(2016 4 : 1,002,165,000 7 7T ) °
% % 18 % 4£910,957,000 % 75(2016
% : 10,957,000 7t ) B MR IE EF
HAEE o B0 AR /7~ A 788 1
EREBERERPA FEETE
ot E £1,010,688,00078 7T (2016 4F :
1,065,180,000 7 7t ) 7 52 /& i & £ 18
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33. Deferred Taxation (Continued) 33. ELEHIEE)
Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on A& BA T B2008F1H1H
dividends declared to overseas investors in respect of F 26 0 BB R B FT S m Al i 2 Uk
profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 FRINEEEZREBEEBWRBNFR -
onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for HARAEBEEANEHEOEREZER
in the consolidated financial statements in respect of B AR B A5 ok R = B 1) B R
temporary differences attributable to retained profits of A gEBE - Bt RPEKHEBR
the PRC subsidiaries, amounting to HK$2,136,810,000 7] #92,136,810,0007% JT(20164F :
(2016: HK$2,367,801,000) as the Group is able to 2,367,801,000% 7T ) R &t )i 7 2 & B
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary =EMEERNEERIEY R ALE
differences and it is probable that the temporary TEHRERA ©
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
34. Trade and Bills Payables 34. BRERRREE
The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills TR EZARELEZ ENERRRE
payables presented based on the invoice date at the BERARMRE R 2 BRER D 4T ¢
end of the reporting period:
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
0 to 30 days 0£=30H 7,886 23,998
31 to 90 days 31 HZ 90 H — 13,424
91 to 180 days 91 HZ180H - 2,772
181 to 360 days 181 HE360H - 2,816
Over 360 days B35 360 H - 33,561
7,886 76,571
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35.

Accrued Charges, Rental Deposits and Other
Payables

At 31 December 2017, the balance includes an amount
of HK$45,259,000 (2016: HK$42,076,000) payable to
an independent third party in relation to purchase of
land use right in the PRC. The amount is secured by
certain investment properties of HK$69,388,000 (2016:
HK$60,156,000), bears fixed interest at 4.68% per
annum for both years and is repayable on demand. As
at 31 December 2017, the relevant interest payable is
HK$46,702,000 (2016: HK$43,419,000).

At 31 December 2017, the balance includes an
aggregated amount of HK$42,890,000 (2016:
HK$13,426,000) interest payables to five (2016:
five) non-controlling shareholders of two (2016: two)
subsidiaries. These non-controlling shareholders are
able to exercise significant influence over respective
subsidiaries.

At 31 December 2017, the balance includes an
aggregated amount of HK$37,500,000 (2016:
HK$37,500,000) payable to a non-controlling
shareholder of the Company. The amount is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

At 31 December 2017, the balance includes an
aggregated amount of HK$226,543,000 (2016:
HK$289,042,000) payable to independent third parties
in relation to construction costs payable for property,
plant and equipment in the PRC. The amounts are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable
within one year from the end of the reporting period.

At 31 December 2017, the balance includes an
aggregated amount of HK$9,257,000 (2016:
HK$101,989,000) being receipt in advance from
customers. The amounts are unsecured and non-
interest bearing.

35. BEtER AXRERAMEMNK

R2017F12 A31 B 2 &8 B2 ER P
FRE R RS b R T RS T B L
= HFIE - & 58 A 45,259,000 7% 7T
(2016 4F : 42,076,000 7T )° &% &
EHHT&REYHE 469,388,000%
J6(2016 £ : 60,156,000/ 7T ) 1E &
- MEFEREEFHEL68%F S
REZRERTTHE - K2017412
A318 - &N A S & 46,702,000
77T (2016 4F : 43,419,000/87T) °

R2017F 12 A1 B 2 %R E— 1B
48 5 58 442,890,000 JT(2016 4F -
13,426,000 7T ) < A K (2016 £F :
KIMBAR 2 AfE(20164F : fE)3E
THIIRR K o IEIERIRR B L TI1E
BAXETHBNERAR -

MN2017512 A31 B @ spXEREEST
37,500,000 7t (2016 4 : 37,500,000
BIL) BIENSEIT FIEEHRE -
ZEHAERT 2B REZRERT
FERIE ©

R2017E12 31 H - % % 8 & &
© % 5226,543,00078 JT(20164F :
289,042,000 7T ) T T 5 =
BRAMAPRZYZE  BERREZE
RNIRRAN - ZeBAEER 28K
FERMEE —FARE -

R2017F 12 A31H » EBFEESE
9,257,000 JT(2016 4 : 101,989,000
BT AR FPREZ BRGK - Ze AR
ERREE °
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35.

36.

Accrued Charges, Rental Deposits and Other
Payables (Continued)

At 31 December 2017, the balance includes an amount
of HK$391,076,000 (2016: nil) payable to an entity
controlled by a director of the Company. The amount
is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.

At 31 December 2016, the balance includes an amount
of HK$55,804,000 refundable deposit received from an
independent third party for the disposal of an investment
held by the Group. During the year ended 31 December
2017, the deposit was refunded in full as the proposed
transaction was terminated.

Disposal of Subsidiaries

As referred to note 6, the Group discontinued the
Property Management Operation at the time of disposal
of Straight View and its subsidiary. The consolidated net
assets of Straight View and its subsidiary at the date of
disposal were as follows:

35.

36.

BstER  ABRERAMENK
(&)

MR2017F12A31H HRERESLHE
391,076,000 7 JL (2016 4F : £ ) fE
—FHAARR—ESEHZAA - %
CHEABRLKE  2EREERERT
TERE ©

R2016F 12 A31H ' #BEEEEHE
55,804,000/ 7T A 1 & A& B #F H
WA MM B E = WER Z Al R B
%o R2017F12A31B ZER -
BEZRSGRIEMEZIRSBEEHRE -

HEHNE QR

RIEMEE  AEBEREERS REM
BRRMRABRIEEMEEERS - &
EREMBARNLERMZGEFE
ERIIT

HK$’000
FET

Consideration received: 2 WEK(E :
Cash received B2 UWIR & 31,700
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EZ2017F 12 H31 HIFF/ZE
36. Disposal of Subsidiaries (Continued) 36. HEMBARE)
HK$’000
FEIT
Analysis of assets and liabilities over KREEHEZENREEBED T !
which control was lost:
Property, plant and equipment Yz - RE KRt 12,279
Goodwill BES 7,001
Inventories FE 768
Trade and other receivables JFEE 52 B 3 % L i B SR 74,047
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KBS 111,550
Trade and other payables JFEE 1T B SR R L A JE S 3K (158,893)
Tax payable TS (9,263)
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE 37,489
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries: HEHB A REE :
Consideration received BUERRE 31,700
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE (37,489)
Non-controlling interests R 2,900
Cumulative exchange differences in respect ~ HARAENZEEBZ 2B RAGFEERKEZ
of the net assets of the subsidiaries B A RIEGIER R RETELER
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
loss of control of the subsidiaries 1,776
Loss on disposal HE 2 EiE (1,113)
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEENWFERER
Cash consideration HEeRE 31,700
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of i RITRBR KRR S (111,550)
(79,850)

The impact of Straight View and its subsidiary on the
Group’s results and cash flows in the current and prior

periods is disclosed in note 6.

B o

RAFERAFRER REKERRHAR

SEZXENRSRZTZEHIINKE

197



D 4

198

X
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37. Operating Lease Arrangements

37. EEMHNZTH

As lessor DHBEAE D

Property rental income earned by the Group during REBRFRANRBAOMERS WA
the year was approximately HK$100,439,000 (2016: 4 /100,439,000 JL(2016% :
HK$120,280,000). The properties held have committed 120,280,000 7L ) - HAEZWHEELD
tenants for lease terms ranged from 1 year to 20 years BRIHMAE HPHEHRI1IFEFE20F

(2016: 1 year to 8 years).

(2016 F : 1 FE8F )T E o

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RAREHR  AEEEEKTZER
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum W TNl R R AR S

lease payments:

2017 2016
LLEY Ol HK$'000
TET TAET

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

After five years

—FRE® 76,924 76,177
E_EFERF

(BREREMELAN) 72,334 66,632
REE 22,255 6,332

171,513 149,141

As lessee D& A &4

At the end of reporting period, the Group had RARERR - IRENARSEAN & ER
commitments for future minimum lease payments under WIETR » NEBFZEAE ARZERE
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as NFT -

follows:

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET

Within one year

—FNEm - 1,001
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B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ
38. Capital Commitments 38. EAREE
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Capital commitments in respect of property, BARBEAME - ME &
plant and equipment: Rl 2 BEAEIE -
— contracted for but not provided in the — BREEIARGE TS
consolidated financial statements 2% AR s g 69,624 20,409
Capital commitments in respect of unlisted FARNIELTRAFE S 2 EAR
equity securities: AAE
— contracted for but not provided in the — BEEREEWRAGRE T
consolidated financial statements W R
(Notes a, b & c) (Btita bkc) 249,700 254,464

Notes: Htat -

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group @@ §2015¢12H31 = - i3
entered into a shareholders’ agreement with several A ANEEEETARXKRZFTSE
parties to incorporate a jointly-controlled entity, namely Hﬁ%%iﬁﬁ%flé%@T Ef]f*gﬁiti(
Zhongxin Zhangbei Solar Energy Thermal Power G B EERR A AI([ KGR E
Generation Co., Ltd. (“Solar Energy Thermal Power”) to BREEEKGREEEEILIE
invest in a solar energy project. Total capital of Solar B> KIGREEBET RN AIREARGEA
Energy Thermal Power would be RMB1,000,000,000 R #1,000,000,000 7T * 7 £ B # ¥
and the Group has committed to inject RMB150,000,000 £ & A R #150,000,000 7T (10 & 7
(equivalent to HK$180,072,000) (2016: RMB150,000,000 180,072,000 70 ) (2016 4 : AR
(equivalent to HK$167,410,000)) represents 15% equity 150,000, OOOTE(*H & 1 167,410,000
interest of Solar Energy Thermal Power. As at 31 BIL))  BABGREAZET A A 15% %
December 2017 and 2016, the Group has not yet paid AN RE 2 o 75/\\2017¢ 201644 12 A
its committed amount. 318 AEERARANEHASRE -

(o)  During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group (b) M B E2015F12H31H It &

entered into a capital injection agreement with Beijing
TeraSolar Photothermal Technologies Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing TeraSolar”), which is principally engaged in
construction, management and technical consultancy of
concentrated solar power projects, pursuant to which,
the Group agreed to subscribe 8% of the enlarged share
capital of Beijing TeraSolar for a total consideration of
RMB116,000,000 (equivalent to HK$139,256,000) (2016:
RMB116,000,000 (equivalent to HK$129,464,000)).
As at 31 December 2016 and 2017, the Group has
paid HK$69,628,000 and subscribed 4% of the
enlarged capital of Beijing TeraSolar. The remaining
HK$69,628,000 (2016: HK$64,732,000) will be paid
upon the request of Beijing TeraSolar.

R REBERHREEEILTIKE K
AFMARAR ([IKBKRE])  HE
THREREL EI%&%%&@T&EEF‘:%@
AIGRERZEBEFINIER - AEERE
RIBIKE L RIE B2 8% RiE - BE
%8 5 A R #116,000,000 7T (48 & 7
139,256,000 70 ) (2016 FF : AR
116,000,000 7T (48 & # 129,464,000
BIL)) > RE 220164 K20174F
122AMBLEEEA AR&EBE
69,628,000 7% 7T I 15 B JK [5 & H 18
B 1% 4% I HE o H #:69,628,000 7% T
(2016 4F : 64,732,000 7T ) 5 1% JK
BHABREL A -

199



200

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt &R R M sE
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B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ

38. Capital Commitments (Continued)

(c) During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
incorporated a company, with other two independent
third parties. This investee principally engaged in
provision of service for trading of financial instruments
and consultancy service. Total capital of the investee is
RMB100,000,000 of which the Group has committed to
inject RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to HK$22,321,000)
representing 20% equity interest in this investee.
Pursuant to the relevant investment agreements, the
Group has no representative in the board of directors of
the investee.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
has injected the committed amount of RMB20,000,000
(equivalent to HK$22,560,000) and recognised as
available-for-sale investment.

39. Retirement Benefits Plans

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group and are held in funds under the control of
trustees.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefits
schemes operated by the PRC government. The
relevant PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit plan is to
make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$2,996,000
(2016: HK$3,189,000) represents contributions to
these schemes by the Group in respect of the current
accounting period. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016,
no contributions due in respect of the reporting period
had not been paid over to the scheme.

38.

39.

BEREREE)

(€ MREZE2016F12A31HBZFR " K
EEEREXBLE=ZFTRKRIL—FKD
Bl RWRERARETERESHTE
R 5 R REARE - WIRE AR
& N 3E A R #100,000,0007C AN &
BT E AR 20,000,000 7T (&
122,321,000 7T ) * (EZHWERE A
8] 2 20% AR o IRIEEREIRE
FASETRBEZAWKELRRZ
BEEEo

REBZE2017F12A31HZ2FER » &
SEBEFETE AR 20,000,000 JT
(F8E 1 22,560,000 7T ) M R AT
HHERE -

RAKBEREE

AEBESAAERBEERANGERET
TR 8 - ZAHEIRE T 2 BEERAR
SEEECHE - Y B RHEFEAES
MESRE -

27 B 2 B /B8 X B O 48 B TS il o B BK
FTEFERRARBRIGEIZKE - AR
BB~ AR ERLRIRGT B A T
RZIEEBMHAEH R - LNEBZF
BH o AEEBERRAKER B2 —

BERELZEEHRR -

RAEHHBEFABER ZKAE
44 %8 #) 732,996,00078 JT(20164F :
3,189,000 L) REAKEMZF
STEITE T AR - 72017 F K% 2016 F
123318 - stAAEREEM - WEZ
FErEIE TR A 2 SRR T AT o
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40. Related Party Transactions 40. FEBAERS
During the year, the Group entered into the following FR - ANEEEER T ET NS

transactions with related parties:

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

(Restated)
(g=E5)
Sub-contracting income from an associate RE—KEE QAR I TERA 715,158 —
Sales of petrochemical products to an AREIERBEE T e
associate NG 80,957 —
Interest income from an associate —XEE R AR F B 65,138 52,258
Interest expense to a substantial shareholder —ZF ZRXE 2 Fll 27 H 469 3,507
Interest expense to non-controlling i EPNGIE S u i Y d
shareholders of subsidiaries 35,020 19,420
Interest expense to a subsidiary of a —RXWBAANEERR ZFE
substantial shareholder X H 33,497 28,913
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders B 832~ F — 5 B A & 2 FE#%
of a subsidiary HllAR R - 70,607
Details of balances with related parties and other B BN Bl 45 R I B A ER 5 2 H A2 5
transactions with related parties are set out in the FHIEEVRNIZE AR R RHTEE6
consolidated statement of financial position and notes 6, 202632 }&35-°

20, 26, 32 and 35.
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41.

Major Non-Cash Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
HK$77,125,000 (2016: HK$42,160,000) in relation to
the addition of property, plant and equipment was not
settled as at 31 December 2017 and was included in
accrued charges, rental deposits and other payables.
Details are set out in note 35.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, amount of
approximately HK$65,138,000 (2016: HK$52,258,000)
in relation to interest income generated from loan
advanced to an associate, which was not settled as at
31 December 2017 and was included in amounts due
from associates as at 31 December 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, amount of
approximately HK$7,068,000 (2016: HK$14,595,000)
in relation to interest income generated from loan
receivable to a third party, which was not settled as
at 31 December 2017 and was included in deposits,
prepayment and other receivables as at 31 December
2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
HK$32,424,000 (2016: HK$19,420,000) in relation
to finance costs, which were not settled as at 31
December 2017 and were included in accrued charges,
rental deposits and other payable as at 31 December
2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary made capital
injection of HK$83,763,000 (2016: nil) by capitalisation
of shareholder’s loan due from this subsidiary.

41.

MBHR M

TEFRERS

B B Z2017F12A83818 It & &
N BEREME BERRKEFRZ
77,125,000 7 75 (2016 4F : 42,160,000
HBIL)MR2017F 12 A31 B A I
EEERENER  A5Ee REMmE
A o FBEHTIRKIFESS

REZE2017F12A31BIEFEN - &
BB F—REE A RmEE 2T B U
A & %8 4965,138,0007% jT (2016 4F :
52,258,000 7T ) 18 R 2 30 B 5 AR
2017412 A 31 B 2 JE Yl & A Al K
ﬁq °

REBZE2017F12 A1 HLEFERN - &
BME=ZFRRERZFERAZH
7,068,000/ JT(20164F : 14,595,000
HBIL) R 2017 F 12 A31 B iH R I
EaERe « BARREMERFA

RBZE2017F12A31HIEFERN - &
% B 7% & B £ ¥ #432,424,0007% TT
(2016 4F : 19,420,000/ JT ) #2017
FI2AN BRI N AEBEEETE
A A%iEs REMENRA -

REZE2017F 12 A31 BIEFERN « Mt
BARIMELEFESBREEANHE
Bt B A Al FE AR R B R TTIE B
83,763,000 7T (2016 5 : #&) o
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BZE2017F 12731 HIFFE
42. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates 42, B ARIREEZE QAT
(a) General information of subsidiaries (a) KWEBAR—RER
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly AAREEXEEFENHEAR
held by the Company at the end of the reporting A BR AR EBARETIAOT -

period are set out below:

Country/ Nominal value of
place of issued ordinary Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ share capital/ value of issued ordinary share capital/
establishment registered capital registered capital held by the Company
Narme of subsidiary /R ERTEERES/ KARKEECRTEERRE Principal activities
ARER B%/fis AMEREE AMEREELA IEXH
2017 2016
T AT Directly  Indirectly
BE [} B% Rk
Beifing East Gate Development Co., ~ PRC (Note ) US$100,413,500 - 100% — 100%  Property development and
Ltd. (*Beijing East Gate”) e ) 100,413,500%7T Investment
IRREEXERAT(IRRE]) VESEYGE
Yinda PRC (No\t,e i RMB10,000,000 - - - 90%  Property management
ifed PEAZI) AR 10,000,000 (Note v) UES::
(Wit
Beiing Ju Fu Real Estate PRC (Note i) RMB105,000,000 - 90% - 90%  Property development and
Development Company Limited A E( 1) ARE105,000,0007C investment
("Beijing Ju Fu’) UES TN
S REBENEREARAT
(tRER])
Greenhill Property Limited Britsh Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% - 100% = Investment holding
ABRUES 137 REmR
Likesway Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% - 100% —  Property holding and
HRFERAT & 25T investment
RENZRRE
Real China Development Limited Hong Kong HK§2 100% - 100% —  Property holding and
RRERERLA ) 28T investment
RENZRIRE
Siiver Grant Hainan Investment (BV)) ~ British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% - 100% —  Inactie
Limited RBRAHE 127 EEXH
Silver Grant Infra-Structure British Virgin Islands ~ USS$1 100% - 100% = Investment holding
Investment (BVI) Limited RERAEE B REZR
Ju Fu San Yan Jing Investment Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited & 25T REER
ER=BHRAERAA
Silver Grant International Securities  Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% — 100%  Securities trading
Investment Limited B 25T Z5EE

SRARTARARRAT
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42. MBARIKBE QTR (%)

42. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates

204

BRARAERAARLT

(Continued)
(a) General information of subsidiaries (Continued) (a) MIBAR—MRER(E)
Country/ Nominal value of
place of issued ordinary Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ share capital/ value of issued ordinary share capital/
establishment registered capital registered capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary /R BRIEERRE/ KAAREEERTEBRRA Principal activities
ARER B%/fis AMEREE AREREERLA IBER
2017 2016
TRl Directly  Indirectly
B B BR R
Silver Grant Securities Investment ~ British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% - 100% = Investment holding
(BV) Limited RERAES 1%7 REZR
Straight View Hong Kong (Note v) HK$100 - - 100% = Investment holding
iz EAH) 10047 fote) BERE
(Hitv)
SYJ Holding Limited British Virgin Islands HK$2,j 0 100% - 100% = Investment holding
EBRTHE 217087 RERK
Twin Sparkle Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% - 100% —  Property holding and
EMEERAA &k AT investment
RANERRE
Winner Property Limited Britsh Virgin Islands ~ US$1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
ABRAES (E REZRK
Sun Steed International Investment  British Virgin Islands ~ US$100 100% - 100% = Investment holding
Limited RERTES 100X RERR
BRARREERAT
Silver Grant International Hong Kong HK$100 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Petrochemical Limited 5 1007 REER
FEARAIERAR
TZ Dong Thai PRC (Note i RMB420,000,000 - 69.78% - 69.78%  Investment holding and
Rz Bl i) AE%420,000,0007 nvestment
REPRREE
TZ United East” PRC (Note iv) RMB463,645,186 - 66.77% — 66.77%  Production and trading
FNRBILT wEfE i) N 463,645,186 7T of petrochemical
products and provision
of subcontracting
service
RERHERM IED
RERMIRE
Platinum Two Limited Mauritius Usst - = 100% = Inactive
TEXY E5 (Note v} TE2K
(Hitu)
Siver Grant International Assets Hong Kong HK$100 100% = 100% - Inactive
Investment Limited 7B 100AT HEE
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42. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates
(Continued)

(@) General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

S BHRME

42. MIBARIKBE QTR (%)

(@) MERXI-—RERE)

Country/ Nominal value of
place of issued ordinary Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ share capital/ value of issued ordinary share capital/
establishment registered capital registered capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary /R BRTEERRE/ ARAMEECRALARRA Principal activities
ARER B%/Fit AMEREE AMEAEELS
2017 2016
IGO0  Directly  Indirectly
E# B Bl i
Xin Jiang Zhong Qing Luan Chuang ~ PRC (Note iv) RMB5,000,000 - 60% - 60%  Investment holding
Technology Company Limited & (4722 i) AK5,000,00070 REER
(“Zhong Qing”)’
L aHE%EJﬂ&E RAR(HE])
Fast Winner Investments Limited Britsh Virgin Islands ~ US$1,000 100% - 100% = Inective
EBRTES 1,000%7 EEE 3
Aesco Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000 100% - 100% = Investment holding
&k 200,000/57 REER
Beijing Runda International PRC (Note i) RMB100,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Investment Management Limited R #2 i) AB%100,000,0007% AR
(“Beijing Runda”)
IR LIMS BERAT
([ErEE])
Long Bright Gapital Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US§100 70% - 70% —  Investment holding
REZRERAT EBRIES 100£7 REZR
Konson Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 = 0% - 70%  Investment holding
BFREBRAT &k 1007 RERR
Fast Growing International Limited ~ British Virgin Islands ~ USS1 100% - 100% = Investment holding
ABRUES 137 REER
Taizhou Yinjian Energy Investment ~ PRC (Note ii) RMB100,000,000 - 100% — 100%  Environmental
Co. Limited (‘Taizhou Yinjian®) =R Bl (477 AR100,000,0007 conservation and
TNBREERERRAA renewable energy
(TRMER) investment
BERERBERRE
Silver Grant International Infra- Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
structure Investment Limited Ak 2B RERR
REARERREARAT
Jing Yin International Investment PRC (Note ii) RMB100,000,000 - 100% — 100%  Inactive
Consultant (Befing) Company Ltd R EX(##1i) AR100,000,0007C e

(ding Yin)
,?%EIMé“ AR ERAT
\/?\%E)
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42. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates
(Continued)

(@) General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

A

The names in English are for identification only.
Three out of five directors of this subsidiary are
appointed by the Group. The Group control 60%
of the voting right in general meeting.

#

Notes:

(i) It is registered as a wholly foreign-owned
enterprise.

(if) It is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company
established in the PRC. Under the joint venture
agreement, the Group is responsible to contribute
RMB9,000,000 to the registered capital of Yinda
and share 90% of the profits and losses of Yinda.

(i)  These subsidiaries are registered domestic
enterprises.

(iv) It is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company
established in the PRC.

(V) These subsidiaries had been disposed of during
the year ended 31 December 2017.

(vi)  This subsidiary had been deregistered during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
at the end of the year.

Other than the investment holding companies
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which have
no principal place of operation, and Beijing East Gate,
Beijing Ju Fu, TZ Dong Thai, TZ United East, Jing Ying,
Taizhou Yinjian, Zhong Qing and Beijing Runda which
operate principally in the PRC, all other subsidiaries
principally operate in Hong Kong (2016: Beijing East
Gate, Yinda, Beijing Ju Fu, TZ Dong Thai, TZ United
East, Jing Yin, Taizhou Yinjian, Zhong Qing and Beijing
Runda which operate principally in the PRC, all other
subsidiaries principally operate in Hong Kong).

42. BRI REEE AT (&)

(@) MERXT-—RERE)

: RXAEEHRSE o

! ZMBARMERESEMESD
ZHAAEERMET  AEER
PR A& _EEHI60% RERHE

i) HHBARRUA—KEZINEHE
B -

(i) BR-ZFRABERIZZFBINE
Bh¥ - REALER ' A&
B & & & AR®9,000,000
TERREZFMER W E
ERED ZIRE 0% B

(i) ZEMBARAR/ZTMAELE -

vy ZMIBRRABRFBEKILZH
INEERE -

(v) ZHMIEBARRN2017F 12 A 31
BZFERALE -

(viy KB RMN2017F12 A 31
B2 FRR I o

RER WEMBARAETE
AN ES -

BRBREZESEMRIZERE
R AR T BEREIAN
ERRER - LRER FME
- BIMMRBET - R - FM
R - PERIERBFETERR
R ESN - PR B E A
BEEREBAKE(2016% : 1t
REER - RE - AERER - FM
RE - FMERBET RR - F
MRE - P ERIEEETER
RABEEIN  FAEEMBHER
AIHEEREBRLS -
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42. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates 42,

(Continued)

(b) Particulars of the Group’s associates at 31
December 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

MEQRREE QR (E)

(b) XEBEzHZE QR NR2017TF R
2016 £12 B 31 BHUEEIEANTE :

Place/
country of Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ value of issued
Form of establishment  Principal ordinary share capital/
business /R place of Class of registered capital held by
Name of company structure B5#%/  business shares held FRECRITEBRRE/  Principal activities
ARER 35t i IEEXNY  fRROER AMEAEELS IEXE
Cinda Jianrun Domestic PRC PRC Registered 30% 30%  Investment holding
(EREH enterprise G capital REZR
RERE AMER
Zhong Hai You Qi Domestic PRC PRC Registered 23.03% 23.03%  Production and trading
AR enterprise & ﬁF capital of petroleum and
nNatx iftan petrochemical products
EERBERRRARL
IEm

V&
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42. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates
(Continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material
non-controlling interests:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt &R R M sE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ

42. BRI REEE AT (&)
(c) FEEARFEHERZIZESR
BB AT 2 FE

TRIGFEEARFFEH#ER
FEEHEMBRRZFS

Proportion of

Place of ownership

incorporation interests and

and principal  voting rights held by Profit (loss) allocated

place of non-controlling to non-controlling Accumulated

business interests interests non-controlling
Name of subsidiary RUFERRE FRHEGZ HEERL PR TR ER 2 interests
WEARERE ZEENY LHRREE aA (68) Rit 2 FEhlER

2017

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$'000 [GTCHWINN HKS'000 [T
FET T FET T

TZ Dong Thai PRC 30.22%
FMRR i
TZ United East PRC 33.23%
FMREET i

Individually immaterial subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests

R RHIES 2 @RI EANE AR

Summarised financial information in respect of
each of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material
non-controlling interests is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2017, two
immaterial subsidiaries declared and distributed
dividend of HK$47,806,000 to their shareholders.
HK$8,101,000 were distributed to their non-
controlling shareholders.

30.22% 65,635 2,255 252,235 173,156

33.23% (9,000 (118,872) 119,486 41,534

4,365 630 13,372 19,021

385,093 233,711

BRABAEAFZEH S 2 ANE
BEMEBARZHBENBESR
SIS - A THHBERBER
TR 2 28 -

Hiat & 22017 F12B31HB 2 F &
A MRTEANWBRAAE
15 N2 R B B 8. 47,806,000 7T
FERLER ° 8,101,000 T3 MW
MEIEIEHIRERIRR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B &R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HZE2017F12H31 HIEFEFE
42. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates 42. MBA R REEE AT (&)

(Continued)

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries (c) BEEAIFEGHERZIZEE
that have material non-controlling interests EMB AR 2S5 (4E)
(Continued)

TZ Dong Thai EMRE

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETL
Current assets RBEE 159,084 231,291
Non-current assets EMBEE 1,210,404 816,494
Current liabilities k=Y (534,825)  (474,800)
Non-current liabilities EmEatE - =
Equity attributable to owners of the RATHES ANEEIRAR
Company (582,428) (399,829)
Non-controlling interest FEfE il (252,235) (173,156)
Revenue WA - —
Other income, gains and losses Hla A - Wz K EE 258,660 40,827
Expenses S (41,469) (33,364)
Profit for the year F A 217,191 7,463
Profit for the year attributable to: F R A PR -
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIETZ= DN 151,556 5,208
Non-controlling interests FE1% il = 65,635 2,255
Profit for the year F N Al 217,191 7,463

N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B &R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2017

B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ
42. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates 42, MELATIREE QAT (&)

(Continued)

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries (c) BEEAFEHERZZEE
that have material non-controlling interests EMB AR 2S5 (4E)
(Continued)

TZ Dong Thai (Continued) BMRFE(E)
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Total comprehensive income (expense) 2EWA (T ) BREFE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RARHEER A 182,599 (32,790)
Non-controlling interests FEPE il 79,079 (14,201)
Total comprehensive income (expense) FREEBA(EH) 258
for the year 261,678 (46,991)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests ~ $Z=ME 2 2 JEEHI#EZE 2 B
of TZ Dong Thai (Note) NI E(HaT) - 70,607
Net cash outflow from operating activities L& £/ 2 FIR LR (32,664) (22,199)
Net cash outflow from investing activities ~ RE X% 2 FR LR (77,709)  (164,994)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BB X 2 FHRERA 133,471 171,042
Net cash inflow (outflow) FREBMAORL) 23,098 (16,151)

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2016, TZ

At -

Dong Thai declared and distributed RMBO0.4762
(equivalent to HK$0.5563) per share dividend to its
shareholders, approximately HK$70,607,000 was
distributed to its non-controlling shareholders.

REE20165F 128318 2 F
BA - ZMEED IR KRR
BERARK0.4762 T(FHER
0.5563 78 7T) T E KR  JEF=EH|
1 2= & R 9 K 49 70,607,000
BTT
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ

42. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates 42,

(Continued)
(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests

(Continued)

TZ United East

MEQRREE QR (E)

(c) FEEARFEHEZZFZEE
BERBARZFHE(E)

EMEBT

2017 2016

HK$°000 HK$’000
FET T

Current assets mENEE 665,212 524,695
Non-current assets EREEE 3,864,208 3,683,972
Current liabilities mEEE (3,838,252) (3,230,850)
Non-current liabilities FRBAE (331,550) (852,812
Equity attributable to owners of the iN/NEIE FS DN i

Company (240,132) (83,471)
Non-controlling interest FEIRE Il A (119,486) (41,534)
Revenue A 805,301 48,814
Other income, gains and losses Ed g A - Wik & EE 6,468 1,701
Expenses ¥ H (838,855)  (408,284)
Loss for the year FNEE (27,086) (357,769)
Loss for the year attributable to: FNBEE

Owners of the Company RREERA (18,086)  (238,897)

Non-controlling interests IR (9,000) (118,872)
Loss for the year FANEE (27,086) (357,769)

N
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that have material non-controlling interests

(Continued)

TZ United East (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B &R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2017

B Z=20174E 12 H31 HIFEE
42, Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates 42, B ARIREEE AT (&)
(Continued)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries (c) FEEARFEHERZIZESE
BEMBLATZFHE(E)

FEMRBEL ()

2017 2016
HK$°000

HK$’000
Fiax (T

Total comprehensive expense 2EZ LAEEN

attributable to:

Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIETZS DN (11,677)  (250,295)

Non-controlling interests FEFE Il (5,811)  (124,542)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FAEE X 4258 (17,488)  (374,837)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating R 2 FHERACRD)

activities 364,702 (307,885)
Net cash outflow from investing activities ~ RE X% 2 FIR LR (118,015)  (365,934)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BMEXBEFHRERA 149,860 433,486
Net cash inflow (outflow) FREBR/ACRE) 396,547 (240,333)

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2017, the

non-controlling shareholder made capital injection
of RMB69,774,000 (equivalent to HK$83,763,000)
(2016: nil) by capitalisation of shareholder’s loan

due from this subsidiary.

HEE -

RE 22017F12 A318 2 &
R - JEIRRR i S RE SR Uk FE W E
KM B AR 2 R ERE AN
1TEARE A AR 69,774,000
JT(# & 783,763,000 TT )
(2016 4F : £&)
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43. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves

of the Company

43. AR BB ERRRFEEE

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties TEYE 102,762 96,490
Property, plant and equipment ey 37,286 33,839
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries RENIE LB AR 678,299 735,073
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE LB B A B R 3,076,109 2,345,046
Structured finance securities HEEE S mES 6,999 6,831
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 25,339 2,779
Loan receivable R E 163,020 =
4,089,814 3,220,058
Current assets nBEE
Held-for-trading investments RIEEERE 100,526 146,668
Deposits, prepayments and other B - BIARREAM
receivables FEUT TR 10,634 102,069
Amounts due from subsidiaries AR ENEI BN 320,804 777,706
Amounts due from associates NI 10,410 10,410
Loan receivable FE W B X - 155,450
Bank balances and cash RITEHR LB 25,904 78,372
468,278 1,270,675
TOTAL ASSETS EEHAE 4,558,092 4,490,733
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43. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves 43. KD RBMBRRARFEERE)
of the Company (Continued)

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

EQUITY (&S
Capital and reserves BEARR #E
Share capital N 3,626,781 3,626,781
Reserves EE 621,749 533,204
TOTAL EQUITY RAEE 4,248,530 4,159,985
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities ERBEME
Deferred tax liabilities RIETHIEE B 8,863 8,863
8,863 8,863
Current liabilities =R
Accrued charges, rental deposits and other EETER « HKiEe kHEA
payables FERT R 42,015 21,912
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR ENGIE:N 58,684 49,192
Borrowings BE 200,000 250,781
300,699 321,885
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEAE 309,562 330,748
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BRAR & EHEE 4,558,092 4,490,733
Net current assets BREEE 167,579 948,790
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERABEE 4,257,393 4,168,848
The financial statements were approved and authorised W mikDEEEFN 201843 A 23
for issue by the board of directors on 23 March 2018 HRR RIXFERITWE T RERERE
and are signed on its behalf by: ETER
Mr. Gao Jian Min Mr. Liu Tianni
SERLE BIR R EE

Director £ % Director %
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43. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves
of the Company (Continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserve

43.

KRR BMRR R EERE)

RRBREZEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANAEE AER
Asset
revaluation Retained
reserve profits Total
BEEMREE REEF ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FHET
At 1 January 2016 R2016F1 818 86,559 503,765 590,324
Loss for the year FREE - (56,900) (56,900)
Other comprehensive expense FREMZEYH
for the year (220) — (220)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FAZAX LA (220) (56,900) (57,120)
At 31 December 2016 R2016% 12 A31 H 86,339 446,865 533,204
Profit for the year FRHEH - 84,466 84,466
Other comprehensive income FAEMEEBA
for the year 4,079 — 4,079
Total comprehensive income FRZEKALSE
for the year 4,079 84,466 88,545
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12 A31 B 90,418 531,331 621,749
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4&

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ

44. Capital Risk Management

MBHR M

44, EXEpEE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the borrowings, net of cash and cash
equivalents, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves

and retained profits.

Management of the Group reviews the capital structure
on a continuous basis taking into account the cost of
capital and the risk associated with the capital. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through
new share issues and the issue of new debt or the
redemption of the existing debt.

REEFBAEARBENEREERE
HREEEEAUREBEE NI R A ESR
AFBEE T AFEY R ESRERD
HHEAL - NREBHEBREEATF
BHRH— -

AEEZENGEBHBEFERGEREE
E ReFRRkReFEREKRARK
AEBARIGERA - HPBREEHTK
A~ EERRE BT o

AEBEEEEUFEET A A RER
BEAGERYIRAKEBESKNAARES
B mm e EBR o AR SR B E B BT R AR
FETHERXBRIREERS A
N EBEBHNERER

45. Financial Instruments 45. €@ TR
Categories of financial instruments EWMITEZER
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financial assets EWMEE
FVTPL RIBRRZ AR ERRE
— Held-for-trading — BEEE 100,526 146,668
— Designated as at FVTPL — BEARERREANE
raged 6,999 6,831
Loans and receivables B E W TE 2,734,276 2,975,694
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE 906,897 288,903
Financial liabilities =i
Amortised cost B SH A AR 4,151,616 3,799,739
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45. Financial Instruments (Continued) 45. ST HE#E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies SRR REERERBE

The Group’s major financial instruments include
structured finance securities, available-for-sale
investments, held-for-trading investments, amounts
due from associates, trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables, loan receivables, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances, trade and bills payables,
accrued charges, other payables and borrowings. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no significant change to the Group’s
exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk from prior year.

Market risks
Interest rate risk management

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk as at 31
December 2017 and 2016 relates primarily to its fixed-
rate amounts due from associates, fixed-rate pledged
bank deposits, fixed-rate loan receivables, fixed-rate
other receivables, fixed-rate other payable and fixed-
rate borrowings.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk as at 31
December 2017 primarily relates to its bank balances
carried at prevailing deposit rate, variable-rate structured
bank deposits and floating-rate borrowings (2016: bank
balances carried at prevailing deposit rate, variable-rate
loan receivable and floating-rate borrowings).

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps in order
to mitigate its exposure associated with fluctuations
relating to interest cash flows. However, management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary actions when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated. In addition, the Group has
concentration risk on its floating-rate loan receivables,
bank balances and borrowings which expose the Group
significantly towards the change in HIBOR, Hong Kong
prime rate, the PBOC interest rate and the SHPB
interest rate.

AEBETIECRTABERABESR
EE o AHEERE  BHEEERE
FEURE & R RRSK - RURR - e R
HipUGRIE - BER - EIIRTTE
R RITEH - BARANER - B&f
ER - REMENRREER - BZEER
T B8R 2 Bk K an AR R % 5 LR 2
BEHNTX - EREEEERERZ
ERE - ARER K EBE R IREUE &

H i o

AEEfMEENNSRARKEENE
T35 [\ fi 1 75 7% B LA A 7 J2 I S 8 K2R

%4
= °

5 m R

AREEM2017F K 2016 F 12 A31 H
ZARERERERERN FZIRE UEE
MEAEZHBLERNRIR HIFRITHE
o ERER  MERARITELAZ
JEWE KR « EMEUR - AR

3 -

AKEBFR2017FE12A31B 2R E R
FIRBEBRERN ERERIFRAEZRTT
e FEAER  FEABERITES
R EEE (2016 : ERHEAIFERH
R Z BTG P EF R BAENK
BERREER) -

7R 6% B 30 S 48 PR A ] 6] R 4 HY S 0o ) =R
ReNEsH R 2Bk - A &2
BHMEREETERYERNERS
ANZREREEBEEFHROE MY E
MEEITE) - B AREREBREHR
WFBF RS2 BBER - RITHHK
LEE - HRBERTRAERE - AR
RITAE K LR RBITH R L
UAEEREATE -

217



D 4

218

X

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt &R R M sE
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BB 20174612 531 HILFE
45. Financial Instruments (Continued) 45. SRTHE#E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

EREREEEERBE(E)

(Continued)
Market risks (Continued) TSR (E)
Interest rate risk management (Continued) FI R E e & FE (48 )

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to the floating-rate borrowings,
variable-rate bank balances and variable-rate structured
bank deposits (2016: floating-rate borrowings, variable-
rate loan receivables and variable-rate bank balances)
at the end of the reporting period and the reasonable
possible change taking place at the beginning of each
year, held constant throughout the year. The directors
of the Company remained using 150 (2016: 150) basis
points for assessing interest rate risk on the above
balances (except for bank balances) after considering
the impact of the volatile financial market conditions.
The directors of the Company used 10 (2016: 10) basis
points for assessing interest rate risk on bank balances
because they considered that the fluctuations on the
interest rate on bank balances would be less significant.
If interest rates had been 150 basis points (2016:
150 basis points) higher/lower for the above balances
(except for bank balances) and 10 basis points (2016:
10 basis points) higher/lower for bank balances and all
other variables were held constant, the potential effect
on post-tax profit for the year is as follows:

A THBBES T I ERZBRITE
B YBRTAESMEEGEEERTE
A(2016F : IBFBFIRFEMEER
H B R T — R KB A Rl 2 FEIEHIAR
R BEHFRFENRRERRIRT
B R EMRITAES)RARBFE K
MERBR AR SFEFNEENSEA EE
LW BEERBEFERNEFTEHRR
AEME ARREEEEISEMS
IRIE R 78 B LAY 52 28 1 4 35 SRR 150
(2016 4F : 150) E 2 AEFE % LA £ 45
BRUBTTEHBRINOFERAR - AQ
AIEELA10(2016 4F : 10) EBh{ERT 1%
RITHESBZFERR - BAEEDFE
RIBITERAEBIEIRNE o HEFER
AR (BRITAEBRBR SN ) 3R 150 B 2
(2016 4F - 150 &8 )M EF /TR &
105 25(20164F - 10EB)W LEF T
BRRBITRBIE BRI M — T E Y
FABRTE MO BEZENT ¢

2017 2016
HK$°000

HK$'000
TET TAET

Decrease in post-tax profit (2016: increase in
post-tax loss) for the year

FARRBIRE MR D (2016 F -
BRBL1Z BTIRIE )

(28,178) (24,194)
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45. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Foreign currency risk management

The major financial assets and liabilities of the Group
are denominated in the functional currency of the
respective group entities. Other than the items stated
below, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange risk is
insignificant as the majority of the Group’s transactions
are denominated in the functional currency of each
individual group entity. The equivalent amounts of HKD
are set out below:

45. €M I A#E)

CHEAREEEERBEKE)

w5 m bR (E)
SRR BT

NEBARAREERUINEE RETEE
UWAEETIZeREERSBMAE-
BTAIEB S NRAREERRAEE
PREER SN ERE Y T ERE - A
SENERRXHRATELEERFIN
NEEEERRFEMN - AFEZBTH
I

2017 2016
LLEY Ol HK$'000
TET TAT

Bank balances and cash RITEHR LB

— HKD — BT 26,520 72,632

— Euro — BT - 7,452

— United States dollars — 5 1,753 2,846

28,273 82,930

Loan receivable U E X

— United States dollars — XETT 163,020 155,450
Other receivable H i & R

— HKD — BT 10,058 101,397
Borrowings BE

— HKD — BT 200,000 250,781
Other payables H th FE A 3K

— HKD — BT 40,091 24,711
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BZ2017F 12531 AILF/E
45. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Foreign currency risk management (Continued)

Basis of sensitivity analysis:

Sensitivity analysis is prepared to demonstrate the
effect of foreign exchange differences by 10% change in
exchange rate of the functional currency (mainly RMB)
against the relevant foreign currencies of the Company
and respective subsidiaries, assuming all other variables
were held constant. A positive number below indicates
an increase in post-tax profit or decrease in post-
tax loss where the functional currencies weaken 10%
against the relevant foreign currencies of the Company
and respective subsidiaries. For a 10% strengthening of
the functional currencies of the Company and respective
subsidiaries, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the loss/profit for the year.

SRMIAE)

EREREEEERBE(E)

5 mEE (&)

SME R B ()

BUREDITRE

REREMAIERZ @R TE - RBED
BRINEER ZRAE10% NS
BEAARBRE)ZEREHARAR
HEAMBRRE - AT ZIERRTEDRE
B E RN E L REESNES510%
RN IB B IREIR D
=02 e NI = NG
10% * 5| BEAFRBIERFEE
MRMR TR

2017 2016
HK$°000

HK$'000
TET TAT

Decrease in post-tax profit (2016: decrease in 4 RIER i 12 % K4 (2016 4 -

post-tax loss) for the year

BRI RIR L)

(3,235) 5,368
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45. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Price risk management

Equity investments

As at 31 December 2017, the Group is exposed to
price risk through its held-for-trading investments
and available-for-sale investments (2016: held-for-
trading investments). For available-for-sale investments
measured at cost less impairment, as the fair value
could not be measured reliably, they have not been
included in the sensitivity analysis.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at end
of the reporting period. If the prices of the respective
available-for-sale investments in listed equity securities,
certain unlisted equities which measured at fair value
and held-for-trading investments had been 10% (2016:
10%) higher/lower, assuming all other variables were
held constant, the impact to the Group would be:

X

MBHR M

45. €M I A#E)

EREREEEERBE(E)

B8 E R &

MR2017F12A31 8 "REBREH
EEERERAHEERE (2016 F -
RIEEERE ) ERERRR o AKX
RFEFENAIHEERETLER
FERGRRESHT - AEAREL TR

SERT2 ©

T%;Eﬁ@zﬁ%rt‘*“ﬁ)ﬁdmzﬁ&%,ﬁﬂﬂiz
RERERRR o fini %5 AH B LM AR
zlxaaﬁZTf,\ﬁ%&,\ - JE EMRRANIR
M ERFEEBERE 2 BRI R
110% (2016 F : 10%) * BRZEH AL AT
BRAIEREHFIIE  UAEFEHNTE
H#%‘E

2017 2016
HK$°000

HK$'000
TET TAET

Held-for-trading investments:
Increase/decrease in post-tax loss for the
year (2016: Increase/decrease in post-tax

HFEERA :
AR E 55 FIEE 0, R
(2016 : FAKTHEZEEEMN,

loss for the year) ) 8,394 12,247
Available-for-sale investments: AREERE -
Increase/decrease in other comprehensive 380,54 H th 2 E WA
income (net of tax) (BrFi1%) 47,160 —

10% (2016: 10%) change in equity investment price
represents the directors of the Company’s assessment
of the reasonable possible change in price.

10% (2016 4F : 10%) R I A& & B 1%
REARREZBHEERATRELRNE
e
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45. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Price risk management (Continued)

Equity investments (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group is
exposed to concentration risk on the held-for-trading
investments as they comprise equity shares issued by
several companies listed Hong Kong and an investment
in a fund which is classified as available-for-sale
investment.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

45.

SRMIAE)

EREREEEERBE(E)

B mREE (&)

KRERE (&)

R2017F Kk2016F 12 A81H + &%
EMBIEEEREMS  FEBESER
Rk BZERETNES LTHE
TFRAAEITRDERERRNES 2IREH
DERIHHERE -

REEBRDECAR  AEEERTM
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45. Financial Instruments (Continued) 45. SRTHE#E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies tREREEEERBE(Z)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) FEEERE(E)
Liquidity tables HBE K
The following table details the Group’s remaining TS FI) 2R 551 A 55 B B LA R AR AR
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial NZIFTETESHEBGBERNFEIEREH
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The AR - ZIKBERERBEZTITR
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted BERmEERAEE I HERKRNKERE
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest HKBRE - FRBENEREASHES
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The e BERNERATZEFER - RNITEMEMN
table includes both interest and principal cash flows. RITH RPN AR E BIRFTE ©

To the extent that interest flows are floating-rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from existing interest
rate at the end of the reporting period.

On demand Total

Weighted or contractual

average less than 6 months undiscounted
interest rate 6 months to 1-2 2-5 Over cash flow Carrying
% REXY, 1year years years 5 years Afife value

mEYSNE  OReR  6EAE1E  1FE2E  2FE5E BRsE  ReR4E KEE
% HKSO0  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKBOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOMD
TAT AL TAL TAL TAL T TAL

As at 31 December ~ R2017%

2017 128318
Trade and bl R

payables JiE3 N/A TR 7686 = - - - 7686 7,686
Other payables Hbpefiz NA TG 912,610 = = = = 912,610 912,610
Borrowings {8 5,62 1,667,604 684,328 412,10 220,405 575,062 3561525 3231,120

2,688,120 684,328 412,106 222405 575,062 4,482,021 4,151,616

Asat 31 December  H2016%

2016 128318
Trade and bils TR

payables JiE3 N/A TR 76,571 = - - - 76,571 76,571
Other payables Hi N NATEf 615,067 - - - - 615,067 615,067
Borrowings s 5.36 930,547 824,141 646,042 519,291 606390 3526411 3108101

1,622,185 824,141 646,042 519,291 606,390 4,218,049 3,799,739
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BB 20174612 531 HILFE
45. Financial Instruments (Continued) 45. ST HE#E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity tables (Continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 6 months” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December
2017, the aggregate carrying amounts of these bank
loans of the Group amounted to HK$201,682,000
(2016: HK$204,511,000). Taking into account the
Group’s financial position, the directors of the Company
do not believe that it is probable that the banks will
exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors of the Company believe
that such bank loans of the Group will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements in note 32. The aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows of the Group will
amount to HK$202,149,000 (2016: HK$205,091,000).

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

EREREEEERBE(E)

mEBEEmEE(E)

RBE IR (&)

BEREREREX ZRITE R
A LB ERER D AT 2[R B K=k D
RefE A | & & A R2017412 A4
JIHZEASERTERCEERE
48 % 5201,682,0007% JT(20164F :
204,511,000/ 70 ) - &KZEEARNEE 2
MR - NRARESLTAEERITA
BEETFEENBREIERAEER - AA
RIEZEEHE  ZEAEBRITERS
SRBWFHR2EN 2 ERBREME <
BEEERBHEE - AEEZ2A S K
F B3R & 7 i 4858 & 202,149,000 7 7T
(2016 : 205,091,000 7T) °

BB B RARE KA 2 5
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MBHR M

45. Financial Instruments (Continued) 45. SRTHE#E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties failure to perform their
obligations as at the end of the reporting period
in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The Group has significant concentration
of credit risk in respect of amounts due from one
(2016: two) associates of HK$671,372,000 (2016:
HK$1,140,253,000), loan receivables from two (2016:
two) independent third parties of total HK$223,044,000
(2016: HK$407,682,000), loan interest receivables
from three (2016: two) independent third parties of
total HK$15,023,000 (2016: HK$60,873,000), as at
31 December 2016 amount due from one third party
of HK$220,540,000 and HK$62,600,000 (2016: nil)
of trade receivables due from an associate. In order
to minimise the credit risk, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt throughout
the year to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts at the end of the
reporting period. In this regard, the Group considers
that the Group’s credit risk are significantly reduced.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds deposited with a few major banks. However,
the credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.

EREREEEERBE(E)

=EE R

RAREHAR AR ZFEFREBITE
EAMERAEBMEERNSEESRE
ZEHZHEANEERR - BZEE
EDRRGEMBRRARINE ZER
B REMEKTRMNS  ~AEBEEX
WiEERAEETRAR - EIR—K(2016
F: MR ) E A A 5671,372,000 7
7£(20164F : 1,140,253,000% JT ) °
FREWM A (2016 4F : ME)BILE =
7 B X 48 223,044,000 JC(2016
% : 407,682,000/ T )~ fE WK = F
(20164 : W& )IBILE =77 EZRF
B # 515,023,000 JT(2016 4 :
60,873,000/ 7T ) * A 20164 12 A 31
B W — % B % = 5 5220,540,000
78 7T K FE Uk Bt & /A | BR 5X62,600,000
5%7%(2016@ ) REZREKEE
C RNEERAS B ERERER
$¢&%,HH3EE@T@M&zﬂawﬁﬁeﬁfm
AR EERERANBERSIE - K
I AEERE  AEEZEERRE
RigR L o

$%lli§$ﬁ5&ﬁé%%$§$ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
EEERBEEET - AMARBDESZ
EERR Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ ARXSHFAR
BB RHABMIRT °
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45. Financial Instruments (Continued) 45. ST HE#E)
Fair value measurement of financial instruments SRTIAZAREFE
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and AEBRAAGEHBEERTHERZZ
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value RABEDZEEMEELL A EE

on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s assets and financial liabilities are REBEFHeREERSRBENREE
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting MEHRRIUAAAELE - TRIEED
period. The following table gives information about how METZScHEERSRBENAR
the fair values of these financial assets and financial BErNEEER_HERAN G ERE
liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation =)o

technique(s) and inputs used).

Financial assets/ Fair value
financial liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy  Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)
LREE /SRAE ARER AREER MHEFLIRBEEZR
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE FET
1) Held-for-trading investment 100,526 146,668 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
BIEEERE F18  WNERMSZEARE
2) Structured finance securities 6,999 6,831 Level 3 Valuation provided by counterparty.
RS HES F38 AR ZEForEBRE o GE -
3) Available-for-sale investment 628,802 — Level 3 Valuation provided by counterparty.
AHRHERE £3% AR SEFeREERE 2 HE -
There is no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 in the BN FA1ERE 2 M EERE o
period.
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45. Financial Instruments (Continued) 45. SRTHE#E)
Fair value measurement of financial instruments SRMIEZARBEFEE)
(Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and rEFEHEERTHMEBZALEIH
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair BAREMEEL L L EE

value on recurring basis

The management of the Group estimates the fair value AEBEEERBNMABRERED
of its financial assets and financial liabilities measured - EETHREHEK AT EZ R EE
at amortised cost using the discounted cash flows kegad s AnE -

analysis.

The management of the Group considers that the AEEERERES  REAMBEHRERIE
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial BHEAAA Rz eREERERAGBY
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated FEESEEQARERE °

financial statements approximate their fair values.

227



D 4

228

X

45. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process

The executive directors of the Company are responsible
to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for fair value measurements.

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value
for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market-
observable data or information provided by counterparty
financial institutions to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available or counterparty financial
institutions cannot provide sufficient information in
relation to fair value, the management of the Group
will engage third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation. The finance manager reports to management
of the Group semi-annually to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the assets.

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

31 December 2017

45.
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SRMIAE)

EMIAZAREFEE)

RAAEFTBRIGERESF

ARBZHTESARETEANGE
RAEZEERNREAE -

AEBZ AN EERARAETENH
HEZEW - At —BEEHBEZ
DRER - AEERAAREG 2 ABE
MEHBATHEBRIZIHFREZE
Ko ML EE 1 R ABEHSRBER
SEHFREREETHBHEIAEZE
o AEEEREESERF=188%
HERAETHE - BEKESEYF
AAREEEERS  HEEAWEEL
RERSHZRA -

M2017F K 2016F 12 A31 HH A A2
BEER -

31 December 2016

R2017£12A 318 1201612 A 31 H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
18 %28 %38 218 F0E £38 o
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
77 FET FE7 AT AT AT AT
Financial assets at FVTPL ~ WERRRAAEREN
SREE
Structured finance securities &2 EES - - 6,999 6,999 = = 6,831 6,831
Non-derivative financial assets ~ B{EEERE 23R4
held-for-trading SREE 100,526 - - 100,526 146,668 - - 146,668
Available-for-sale investment  AIEHEES - - 628802 628,802 - = - =
Total a5 100,526 - 635,801 736,327 146,668 - 6,331 153,499




X

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt & R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZ2017F 12 H31 HIFF/ZE
45. Financial Instruments (Continued) 45. SRTHE#E)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements FEIEEHMEENSREBZANES
of financial assets and financial liabilities S
Loan
receivable
with
embedded Structured
derivative finance
ME#® AR securities
Fund fT£IHEZ EE Total
% EWER SRE S #EE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2016 R20164%F1 A 1H — 736,866 6,728 743,594
Total gains or losses: W ek sk BB AR
— Change in fair value — RAEE
(Note) =) — 75,778 103 75,881
Redemption fE — (812,644) — (812,644)
At 31 December 2016 R2016F 12 A 31 H — — 6,831 6,831
Total gains or losses: WEs sk BEREE
— Change in fair value — AnEE
(Note) (Ha) — — 168 168
Addition iz 628,802 — — 628,802
At 31 December 2017 M2017%F12 831 H 628,802 — 6,999 635,801

Note: Changes in fair value are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The total gain for the
year included in profit or loss of HK$168,000 (2016:
HK$75,881,000) relates to the fund, structured finance
securities (2016: loan receivable with embedded
derivative and structured finance securities) held at the
end of the reporting period.

Wit - RARERBHENERBRRBEA -
RAREHESERATEAREE R
FEMESmMES (201645 - MARA

AITETEZ EK

1= =
SN

MEBEE

Bh 55 % ) 2 Uk 2= 48 %8 /& 168,000 7% 7T
(20164 : 75,881,000/87T) °

V&
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46.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 46.

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

arising from financing activities, including both cash and

non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing

activities are those which cash flows were, or future

cash flow will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated

statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

HEMEERELE2AEHAGR

TERFHINAREHBEXRTELZARE
ERAEMIREEY HREELELZ
BERAKEZAHASRERTHE
BEBEEAZHSRIHR AL

activities.
Amount
payable to
an entity
controlled
by a
director
of the Borrowings
Company and
P — B interest
RRAF— L Dividend payables
EERFZ payables BER Total
N PEfS AR S EARE Bt
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET F&T FET
(Note 32
(Note 35)  (Note 42(c)) and 35)
(Kist 32
(B15t35)  (Biat42(c)) £ 35)
At 1 January 2017 n2017F1 18 — — 3,126,853 3,126,853
Cash changes: BERE
— Interest paid — BfFE - - (152,243) (152,243)
— Loan raised — EXEE - - 1,504,619 1,504,619
— Repayment of loans — BEEX - - (1,598,332) (1,598,332)
— Dividend paid — ZFBRF - (8,101) - (8,101)
— Proceeds received on behalf — RIFKIE
of an entity 375,688 — — 375,688
Non-cash changes: FREEH :
Dividend declared to non- BREEHTIEZERES
controlling interests of non- 2B R A2 I
wholly-owned subsidiaries R — 8,101 — 8,101
Finance cost recognised BRIV BER - - 178,446 178,446
Foreign exchange translation HSNERE 15,388 - 216,586 231,974
At 31 December 2017 R2017% 12 A31H 391,076 — 3,275,929 3,667,005
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE2017F 12 31 HIFEE
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31AILEE
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million RLEHYo HKS Million
BERAT BEET AEET BEET FEEn
Results E
Revenue N 400.8 424.2 340.0 426.8 1,032.5
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to owners A Bl B AE(EE R
of the Company fil(E#) 65.0 109.4 (65.8) (35.1) 260.2
At 31 December
M12P31 A
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HKS Million  IRLERHITEN
AE8T BEET BEET BERT FEEn
Assets and liabilities BERERE
Investment properties and property, plant RENERDE
and equipment EEE 5,082.4 5,948.1 6,399.7 6,100.5 6,502.1
Land use rights T ERE 222.8 216.3 199.6 182.5 192.0
Goodwill HE 46.5 46.5 46.5 46.5 39.5
Structured finance securities EEESRES 6.2 6.6 6.7 6.8 7.0
Interests in associates BENRER 1,458.5 562.4 7435 865.0 1,334.6
Avallable-for-sale investments MEHERE 480.1 352.3 310.2 288.9 300.7
Deposits paid for purchase of land use rights BB HiERERNE -
and property, plant and equipment BEREE RS 91.7 = = = -
Loan receivable with embedded HERARITETEZE
derivative WER 720.8 733.8 736.9 - -
Loan receivables - non-current EWES - ERE 127.9 570.3 - = 223.0
Net current assets FRBEE 1,072.7 1,039.1 150.4 802.1 111.9
9,309.6 9,475.4 8,593.5 8,292.3 8,710.8
Share capital A 461.0 3,626.8 3,626.8 3,626.8 3,626.8
Reserves M 6,937.5 3,732.1 3,163.4 2,730.3 3,476.6
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ A2 Rl A AEERA 7,398.5 7,358.9 6,790.2 6,357.1 7,103.4
Non-controlling interests EE R 449.9 4588 370.9 233.7 385.1
Non-current liabilities FEHEE 1,461.2 1,657.7 1,432.4 1,701.5 1,202.3
9,309.6 9,475.4 8,593.5 8,292.3 8,710.8
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B 22017 F 1231 HIFFZ
The following is a list of the Group's investment properties at THABAREBMMKR2017F12 831 HHEEY
31 December 2017: E- -
Investment properties in the PRC NRAPEZREYE
Location Lease term Purpose Gross area
I B4 AR A& EEEE
Sq. ft.
FHR
1. Basement 1, Basement 2, Level 0 and Level 1 to 3 of Medium Commercial 700,427
East Gate Plaza, 19 Dongzhong Street, term lease [SES
Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC HHj
FEIERRERPEH19ORRIRESGMEE  HE2E -
REFR1EBEIE
2. Level 4 to 31 of South Apartment Tower (including 401, Long lease Residential 31,171
402, 408, 405, 406, 407, 408, 501, 502, 5083, 505, 506, -t *F=E
507, 508, 30/F and 31/F) East Gate Plaza, 39 Dongzhong
Street, Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC
R R RIE R A A RIRE S EAEE
$4%31B(HFE 401, 402, 403, 405, 4086, 407, 408,
501, 502, 5083, 505, 506, 507, 508, 30#£ % 311&)
3. Level 4 to 31, North Apartment Tower, Long lease Residential 339,993
East Gate Plaza, 19 Dongzhong Street, KH E=E
Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC
FEIERTRBERF 19N RIRESILEAEE
FA4ZE 3
4. Portion of Level 2-5, 6 and 8 of Hua Po Lou, Medium term Commercial 10,540
No. 28 Dong Zhong Jie Jia, lease (EES
Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC (Note) A
AR EJE T Rk R R R A R 28 SR EERIEE 2 =5
6 & 8EABH (H1it)
Note: The legal title of the properties have not been passed to the BiaE - WWEYMEZEEMR2017F12 831 BHAR
Group at 31 December, 2017. BEFALER o
Investment properties in the Hong Kong VRBEBEZIREYE
Location Lease term Purpose Gross area
i 24 AR Pk EEmEmE
Sq. ft.
FIHR
Flat B, 9 Floor, 6A Bowen Road, Hong Kong Long lease Residential 3,007
ABBEEEGCAIEBE A F=



SiLvER GRANT INTERNATIONAL
INDUSTRIES LIMITED
REBEBREXETR 2T

B 1 1L 8% Stock code: 171

Suite 4901, 4%th Floor

Office Tower, Convention Plaza
1 Harbour Road, Wanchai
Hong Kong
BERETBEBEE
ERESHARE
49124901 E



	封面
	目錄
	財務摘要
	企業資料
	董事總經理報告
	董事簡介
	高級管理人員簡介
	環境、社會及管治
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益表
	綜合損益表及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動報表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務概要表
	投資物業概要
	封底

